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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

·2· ·September 17, 2025, at 621 Woodland Square Loop

·3· ·Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:32 p.m., the

·4· ·following monthly meeting of the Washington State

·5· ·Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

·6· ·wit:

·7

·8· · · · · · · · · · · ·<<<<<< >>>>>>

·9

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Good afternoon.· If

11· ·I could have everyone's attention, please.

12· · · ·This is Kurt Beckett calling the September 17th

13· ·meeting of the Energy Facility Siting Council to

14· ·order.· It's 1:32 p.m.

15· · · ·And, Ms. Barker, if you could call the roll,

16· ·please.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Certainly.

18· · · ·Department of Commerce.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· Elizabeth Osborne,

20· ·present.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Department of Ecology.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Eli Levitt, present.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Department of Fish and

24· ·Wildlife.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Nate Pamplin,



·1· ·present.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Department of Natural

·3· ·Resources.

·4· · · ·Utilities and Transportation Commission.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster,

·6· ·present.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Local government and

·8· ·optional State agencies.

·9· · · ·For the Hop Hill project, Paul Krupin.

10· · · ·For the Carriger Solar project, Matt Chiles.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CHILES:· Matt Chiles, present.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· The Wallula Gap

13· ·project, Adam Fyall.

14· · · ·For the Goldeneye BESS project, Robby Eckroth.

15· · · ·Assistant attorney generals.· Jon Thompson.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Present.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Zack Packer.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PACKER:· Present.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Talia Thuet.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. THUET:· Present.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· For EFSEC staff, I

22· ·will call those anticipated to speak today.

23· · · ·Ami Hafkemeyer.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Present.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Amy Moon.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Present.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Sara Randolph.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Present.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Sean Greene.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· Present.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· John Barnes.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BARNES:· Present.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Joanne Snarski.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· Here.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· For optional --

11· ·operational updates.

12· · · ·Kittitas Valley wind project.

13· · · ·Wild Horse Wind Power Project.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GALBRAITH:· Jennifer Galbraith,

15· ·present.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Grays Harbor Energy

17· ·Center.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PACE:· Pace, present.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Chehalis Generation

20· ·Facility.

21· · · ·Columbia Generating Station.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LaPORTE:· Josh LaPorte,

23· ·present.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Columbia Solar.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. DRACHENBERG:· Elizabeth



·1· ·Drachenberg, present.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Goose Prairie Solar.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. JIA:· Nelson Jia, present.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Ostrea Solar.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. VOLTZ:· Jon Voltz, present.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Is there anyone online

·7· ·for the counsel of the environment?

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· Sarah Reyneveld is

·9· ·present.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Chair, there is a

11· ·quorum for all councils.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you very

13· ·much.

14· · · ·Council members, we have a posted agenda before

15· ·us.

16· · · ·Is there a motion to adopt the agenda?

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Mr. Chair, this is

18· ·Nate Pamplin.· I move that we approve the agenda.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you, Council.

20· · · ·Is there a second?

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster.

22· ·Second.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you, Council.

24· · · ·The agenda has been moved and seconded, is on the

25· ·table.· Are there any comments or changes to the



·1· ·agenda from the Council?

·2· · · ·Hearing none.· All those in favor of approving

·3· ·the agenda, say "aye."

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Opposed?

·6· · · ·Agenda is approved.

·7· · · ·Moving on to approval of minutes.· Council, we

·8· ·have the minutes before us.· Is there a motion to

·9· ·approve the minutes?

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· Elizabeth Osborne.

11· ·So moved.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you, Council.

13· · · ·Second?

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Second.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you, Council

16· ·Pamplin.

17· · · ·The minutes are on the table.· Are there any

18· ·changes or amendments to the minutes from Council?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· This is Stacey

20· ·Brewster.· I have one change.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Please.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· On Page 27, Line 24,

23· ·the word is "needs."· Should be changed to "meets,"

24· ·m-e-e-t-s.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you, Council



·1· ·Brewster.

·2· · · ·Are there other -- I'm sure that will be taken as

·3· ·a friendly amendment.

·4· · · ·Are there any other comments or changes?

·5· · · ·Okay.· Then hearing none, we will treat that

·6· ·suggestion as a friendly amendment.

·7· · · ·And all in favor of approving the minutes as

·8· ·amended, please say "aye."

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Opposed, say "nay."

11· · · ·Minutes are approved.· Thank you.

12· · · ·Moving on to our project updates.

13· · · ·Kittitas Valley wind project.· Mr. Caseday.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CASEDAY:· Yes.· Good afternoon,

15· ·Chair Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.· I'm sorry

16· ·that I did not call roll call, but this is Jarred

17· ·Caseday with EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley

18· ·wind power project.

19· · · ·And we had nothing nonroutine to report for the

20· ·period.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

22· · · ·Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.

23· ·Ms. Galbraith.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GALBRAITH:· Yes.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Galbraith.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GALBRAITH:· Thank you, Chair

·2· ·Beckett, Council members, and EFSEC staff.· This is

·3· ·Jennifer Galbraith from Puget Sound Energy

·4· ·representing the Wild Horse wind facility.

·5· · · ·I have a few updates for this reporting period.

·6· ·First, the Wild Horse Technical Advisory Committee

·7· ·met on August 21st for the annual meeting.· The

·8· ·meeting was held jointly with the Wild Horse

·9· ·coordinated resource management group to review

10· ·history, agreements, processes, and results,

11· ·upgrades, and management since inception of the Wild

12· ·Horse CRM in 2006.

13· · · ·This was an informational meeting.· There were no

14· ·items that required formal actions or recommendations

15· ·from the TAC for the Council's consideration.

16· · · ·For the second update, as requested in a letter

17· ·received from Ami Hafkemeyer, EFSEC director of

18· ·siting and compliance, PSE provided a status update

19· ·on our plans to install FAA-approved light-mitigating

20· ·technology at Wild Horse in accordance with new

21· ·legislative requirements to reduce light pollution at

22· ·wind energy facilities in Washington State.

23· · · ·As required by the RCW, PSE will apply to the FAA

24· ·prior to January 1st, 2028, and will install a new

25· ·light-mitigating system within 24 months of receiving



·1· ·FAA approval.

·2· · · ·And for the final update, as of today, there has

·3· ·been no change to the damaged wind turbine tower

·4· ·initially reported to the Council on July 14th.· We

·5· ·continue to monitor the turbine 24/7 and are

·6· ·developing plans to safely decommission the tower

·7· ·following the wildfire season.· Emergency responders

·8· ·remain on standby in the event of tower failure, and

·9· ·the site will remain closed to the publ- -- pubic

10· ·access for the remainder of 2025.

11· · · ·Thank you very much.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you very much

13· ·for the update.

14· · · ·Any questions or comments from Council?

15· · · ·Okay.· Hearing none.

16· · · ·Moving on to Chehalis Generation Facility.

17· ·Mr. Smith and Randolph, Sara Randolph.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Thank you, Chair

19· ·Beckett, Council members, and staff.· For the record,

20· ·this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Chehalis.

21· · · ·The facility update is provided in your packet.

22· ·Last month, it was discussed that the flow level of

23· ·the Chehalis River, the facility's water source, had

24· ·dropped below 165 cubic feet per second.· With enough

25· ·rainfall, the facility was able to resume withdrawal



·1· ·of water, that they did not need to purchase water to

·2· ·maintain operations.· As a result, a special Council

·3· ·meeting to take up action to approve purchase of

·4· ·water from the City was not needed.

·5· · · ·Staff met with Chehalis facility to develop a

·6· ·plan for anticipating Council action during periods

·7· ·of low river flow.· The facility will notify EFSEC as

·8· ·soon as they begin using their reserves, giving us

·9· ·earlier notice than in the past.· Staff will also

10· ·communicate with the facility periodically, while

11· ·reserves are being used, to track the potential need

12· ·for Council action.

13· · · ·This approach will be used for the next two to

14· ·three years.· However, if the plan proves

15· ·insufficient, staff will reopen discussions with the

16· ·facility and may propose addressing the issue through

17· ·an amendment to the site certification agreement, or

18· ·the SCA.· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you very

20· ·much.

21· · · ·And I don't believe we had Jeremy Smith with us

22· ·today.· I just wanted to confirm.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· I didn't hear him on

24· ·the line.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Yeah.· Okay.· Thank



·1· ·you.· And thank you, again, for the update.

·2· · · ·Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center.· Eric --

·3· ·Mr. Pace, if you're on, as well as then followed by

·4· ·Sara Randolph again.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PACE:· Good afternoon, Chair

·6· ·Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.· Eric Pace

·7· ·reporting for Grays Harbor.

·8· · · ·Grays Harbor Energy does not have anything

·9· ·nonroutine to report for the period.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you,

11· ·Mr. Pace.

12· · · ·Ms. Randolph?

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Yes.· Chair Beckett,

14· ·Council members, and staff, for the record again,

15· ·this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays

16· ·Harbor.

17· · · ·The facility update is provided in your packet.

18· ·There are two items that will be discussed for the

19· ·Council.· First is the National Pollutant Discharge

20· ·Elimination System, or NPDES, permit renewal.· And

21· ·second is the air operating permit, or the AOP,

22· ·renewal.

23· · · ·EFSEC received NPDES permit renewal application

24· ·from the facility on December 17th, 2023, and permit

25· ·ending June 30th, 2024, and has continued to operate



·1· ·under an administrative extension which was approved

·2· ·by EFSEC for the previous NPDES permit in accordance

·3· ·with Washington Administrative Code, or WAC,

·4· ·173.220.180.

·5· · · ·Grays Harbor submitted an engineering report

·6· ·which was followed by several rounds of a review and

·7· ·coordination between the EFSEC staff and the

·8· ·facility.· EFSEC approved the engineering report on

·9· ·April 2nd and has been working with our contractor at

10· ·Ecology to develop the NPDES renewal permit.

11· · · ·Staff have made a tentative determination to

12· ·issue the following public comment.· Will bring the

13· ·comments and documents to Council for vote on final

14· ·issuance after the comment period.· Staff recommend

15· ·that the comment period begins on September 29th and

16· ·continue for 30 days, ending at close of business on

17· ·October 28th.

18· · · ·A public meeting is not planned for this comment

19· ·period.· Historically, public meetings for the

20· ·facility's permits have not been attended by the

21· ·public, and a meeting is not required.· However, we

22· ·will have one if requested.

23· · · ·If there are any questions on any technical

24· ·aspects of the permit, our contractors with Ecology

25· ·are here and able to address any concerns.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Council, any

·2· ·question or comment?· I'll check on my screen here

·3· ·again since we have some of our members online.

·4· · · ·Okay.· I don't think so.· So moving --

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Okay.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· -- on.· Thank you,

·7· ·Ms. Randolph.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Yes.· I'll continue

·9· ·on for the air operating permit, or AOP.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Sorry.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· No.· All good.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· The AOP first

14· ·notification was issued by EFSEC July 17th, 2024.

15· ·The AOP renewal application was submitted on December

16· ·11th, 2024, adding in the acid rain permit in with a

17· ·Title V AOP permit, ending June 17, 2025, and

18· ·continue to operate under administrative extension.

19· · · ·The acid rain permit contains the statement of

20· ·basis; SO2 allowances under -- allocated under this

21· ·permit; and NOx requirements for each affected unit;

22· ·comments, notes, and justifications regarding permit

23· ·decisions and changes made to the permit application;

24· ·and any additional requirements or conditions as per

25· ·WAC 173-406-501, acid rain permit contents, as



·1· ·adopted by WAC 463-78.

·2· · · ·The permit application submitted for this source

·3· ·per WAC 173-406-106, standard requirements as adopted

·4· ·by WAC 463-78, the owners and operators of the source

·5· ·must comply with the standard requirements and

·6· ·special provisions set forth in the application.· In

·7· ·accordance with WAC 463-78, general and operating

·8· ·permit regulations for air pollution sources, which

·9· ·adopts WAC 173-406, acid rain regulation, and

10· ·WAC 173-401, operating permit regulation, is based on

11· ·the provisions of Title 40, Code of Federal

12· ·Regulations, or CFR, Parts 72 through 76, which is

13· ·part of the Title IV of the Clean Air Act.

14· · · ·In accordance with WAC 173-406-103, Combustion

15· ·Turbine Generator No. 1, or CTG 1, and CTG 2 are

16· ·utility units because they serve generators greater

17· ·than 25 megawatts and do not qualify for any of the

18· ·exemptions provided under the WAC 173-406-103.· As

19· ·such, they are subject to the acid rain requirements

20· ·under WAC 173-406.

21· · · ·In coordination with Olympic Region Clean Air

22· ·Agency, or ORCAA, staff have reviewed the application

23· ·materials.· Staff are finalizing documents to put out

24· ·for public comment and anticipate it to go out for

25· ·public comment on October 6.



·1· · · ·Following public comment period, staff will bring

·2· ·the comments and documents to Council.· If no

·3· ·substantive comments, then it will go to the

·4· ·Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, for EPA to

·5· ·review for 45 days.· Once the EPA has concluded their

·6· ·review, staff will bring the permit back to the

·7· ·Council to vote for issuance.

·8· · · ·If there are any questions on any technical

·9· ·aspects of the permit, our contractors from ORCAA are

10· ·here and able to address any concerns.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you,

12· ·Ms. Randolph.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Thank you.· Thank

14· ·you.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Council, any

16· ·questions or further feedback for the staff?

17· ·Appreciate the thorough update.

18· · · ·Okay.· Hearing and seeing none.· We will move on

19· ·to Columbia Solar.· Ms. Drachenberg.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. DRACHENBERG:· Good afternoon,

21· ·Chair, EFSEC Council, and staff.· This is Elizabeth

22· ·Drachenberg, Columbia Solar.

23· · · ·There are no nonroutine updates to report for

24· ·this period.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.



·1· · · ·Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and

·2· ·WNP 1 and 4.· And my understanding is Josh LaPorte is

·3· ·with us to give the update today.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LaPORTE:· That's correct, Chair

·5· ·Beckett.· Thank you.

·6· · · ·Good afternoon, EFSEC Council and staff.· This is

·7· ·Josh LaPorte for the Columbia Generating Station and

·8· ·Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.

·9· · · ·The facilities update is included in your packet

10· ·for both sites, and there are no additional

11· ·nonroutine updates to report for the month of August

12· ·for either site.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· And I just

14· ·want to acknowledge the staff's update as well on

15· ·some of the previous environmental issues of the last

16· ·meeting.· I assume we have nothing further on that,

17· ·but let me just double-check with Ms. Hafkemeyer.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· That's correct.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· That

20· ·concludes the update, then.· Unless there were

21· ·questions from Council.· Seeing none.

22· · · ·Moving on, then, to Goose Prairie.· Mr. Jia.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. JIA:· Good afternoon, everyone.

24· ·This is Nelson providing an update for the month of

25· ·August.



·1· · · ·Total generation, approximately 21,667 megawatt

·2· ·hours.· And on some positive news, all of our

·3· ·inverters on-site were fully available for the month

·4· ·of August.· So we were able to fix our A/C breaker

·5· ·issue, which is nice.

·6· · · ·Otherwise, no other updates from an environmental

·7· ·safety compliance perspective.· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Very well.

·9· · · ·Comments?· Hearing none.

10· · · ·We will move on to Ostrea Solar.· Mr. Voltz.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. VOLTZ:· Thank you, Chair

12· ·Beckett, Council members, and staff.· This is Jon

13· ·Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing

14· ·Ostrea Solar project.

15· · · ·In the month of August, construction progressed

16· ·in full.· All scopes are underway.· We received the

17· ·last of the solar modules.· Those have all been

18· ·delivered out.· The main power transformer is

19· ·on-site, set on the pad, preparing for the dress and

20· ·testing there.· We also received all of the

21· ·inverters.· All 22 have arrived and been set on the

22· ·pad.· So we are continuing with install and

23· ·proceeding toward mechanical completion.

24· · · ·Other than that, nothing nonroutine to report for

25· ·the period.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you,

·2· ·Mr. Voltz.

·3· · · ·I would call out one item that was in the monthly

·4· ·update that I thought was bearing calling out, which

·5· ·was just in terms of local outreaches and I would

·6· ·call it a newer neighbor into Yakima County.· The

·7· ·project had found time amidst its construction

·8· ·schedule to participate in the back-to-school drive

·9· ·for Yakima County Schools.· And just thought that was

10· ·worth noting here in the public session.· So

11· ·appreciate Cypress Creek's effort in that regard.

12· · · ·Unless there's other comments, questions, we will

13· ·move on to Carriger Solar.· And Ms. Snarski is here

14· ·to provide an update on that project, including -- I

15· ·will note for the public that our intent is to signal

16· ·the process in other upcoming public comment periods.

17· ·Some of that is a little bit in flux still, I

18· ·believe, but we'll hear from Ms. Snarski, and she'll

19· ·fill in the details, so...

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· I'll do my best.

21· · · ·Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council

22· ·members.· For the record, this is Joanne Snarski, the

23· ·siting specialist for the proposed Carriger Solar

24· ·facility in Klickitat County.

25· · · ·On June 25th, 2025, the Council voted to send a



·1· ·recommendation to approve the Carriger Solar facility

·2· ·site certification agreement and was subsequently

·3· ·sent to the governor for review.· On August 22nd,

·4· ·2025, Governor Ferguson provided a letter to Chair

·5· ·Beckett, directing the Council to reconsider certain

·6· ·aspects of the draft site certification agreement.

·7· ·The governor outlined the following actions for EFSEC

·8· ·to take.

·9· · · ·First, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an

10· ·opportunity to review and provide input on the June

11· ·19, 2025, memorandum from the EFSEC chair to the

12· ·EFSEC Council members, describing the chair and the

13· ·staff's June 4th, 2025, meeting with the tribe.

14· · · ·Second, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an

15· ·opportunity to provide further input on the following

16· ·five mitigation measures.

17· · · ·On the increased setbacks of fencing and solar

18· ·panels from SR 142 and Knight Road; the increased

19· ·setbacks on fencing and solar panels on both north

20· ·and south side of the Department of Natural Resources

21· ·managed parcel, the installation of further screening

22· ·tools, such as earthen berms, rock piles, or native

23· ·vegetation, to further mitigate visual impacts to the

24· ·users of the north side of the adjacent State-owned

25· ·parcel, the DNR parcel; the traffic control plan as



·1· ·required in the SCA, the site certification

·2· ·agreement, to ensure the tribal -- the tribe has

·3· ·access to its TCPs and that they are maintained

·4· ·throughout construction.

·5· · · ·Finally, the fifth mitigation is that EFSEC will

·6· ·include Yakama Nation in the review of the initial

·7· ·site restoration and the detailed site restoration

·8· ·plans as required in the SCA.

·9· · · ·In response to the request, the governor's

10· ·request, on August 26, 2025, Chair Beckett sent a

11· ·letter to Chairman Gerald Lewis of the Yakama Nation

12· ·Tribal Council.· Chair Beckett requested the tribe

13· ·review all of the actions I just described and sent

14· ·along all of the supporting documentation for that

15· ·review.

16· · · ·In that letter, we requested that the Yakama

17· ·Nation respond to these requests by September 26th in

18· ·order to meet a 60-day timeline that was identified

19· ·by the governor.· Following receipt of additional

20· ·comments from the Yakama Nation, staff will review

21· ·and develop response documents or revisions to the

22· ·draft site certification agreement as appropriate.

23· · · ·We expect these decisional documents to be posted

24· ·for public comment in early October and are currently

25· ·targeting a comment period from August -- or excuse



·1· ·me -- October 6th through October 19th.· Staff are

·2· ·proposing a special Council meeting on October 21st

·3· ·for the -- for the purposes of Council action.· And

·4· ·we will provide required public notice for this

·5· ·meeting once these details unfold and are available.

·6· · · ·That's all I have for now.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

·8· · · ·So just for clarity of not only the record but

·9· ·for those who may be watching, the public, the

10· ·intended comment period is October 6 through the

11· ·19th.· That will be published officially, so what I

12· ·just stated is not yet in the record officially, but

13· ·that's --

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· Correct.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· -- our intent, and

16· ·so we wanted --

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· -- to signal that

19· ·as early as we could here in our public meeting

20· ·today.

21· · · ·So, Council, were there other questions, comments

22· ·you wanted to share as a group and/or back to the

23· ·staff?

24· · · ·Council Pamplin.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Yeah, thank you,



·1· ·Mr. Chair.

·2· · · ·Ms. Snarski, is the Council's decision in June to

·3· ·recommend approval of this project to the governor,

·4· ·since the governor wrote a letter -- and hasn't

·5· ·approved it yet -- and laid out a number of

·6· ·conditions, is there an action that we need to take

·7· ·relative to our June decision, or does that decision

·8· ·essentially kind of die on the vine until we act

·9· ·again at the October meeting?

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· I think that's kind

11· ·of a legal question.· Maybe Jon would better be

12· ·suited to answer.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah, Council Member

14· ·Pamplin, I'd be happy to venture an answer, then.

15· · · ·The section of RCW 80.50, the EFSEC-enabling

16· ·statutes that talks about the steps that happen with

17· ·regard to the Council making a recommendation to the

18· ·governor and then the governor's options thereafter,

19· ·it basically allows the governor to request that the

20· ·Council reconsider certain aspects of the site

21· ·certification agreement.

22· · · ·And then thereafter, depending on what decision

23· ·the Council makes, to return the site certification

24· ·agreement with any revisions that you make.· It

25· ·doesn't talk about amending the recommendation or



·1· ·anything of that sort.· It's just the only thing that

·2· ·the statute speaks to is just returning the site

·3· ·certification agreement that the governor has asked

·4· ·you to reconsider parts of.

·5· · · ·The recommendation, I wouldn't say it died on the

·6· ·vine.· It's -- you've made your recommendation, and

·7· ·then this is just a follow-on process to focus in on

·8· ·certain aspects of it and decide whether you want to

·9· ·change them at the governor's request and then make

10· ·those amendments to the SCA, if you choose to do so.

11· · · ·Does that answer your question?

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Yeah.· Thanks to you

13· ·both.· And I wasn't trying to -- please don't infer

14· ·into the substance of the question.· It was just a

15· ·policy process --

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah.· Yeah.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· -- relative to an

18· ·action EFSEC took and then do we need to kind of

19· ·unring that bell or just -- or essentially ring it

20· ·again after we see the -- we have the meeting on

21· ·October 21st.· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Well, yeah, if I --

23· ·actually, if I can follow up, Council Member Pamplin.

24· · · ·Yeah, it's -- I think it's a good practice and

25· ·advisable for you to -- to explain what -- what



·1· ·you've done in response to the governor's direction.

·2· ·And the form that would generally take is a Council

·3· ·resolution, so -- that would -- that would explain,

·4· ·yeah, just explain what you've -- what you've -- what

·5· ·you've done, what you've chosen to do or not do with

·6· ·respect to the terms of the SCA.· I think that would

·7· ·be the --

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· So it'd be a revised

·9· ·SCA or an amended SCA at that time.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Correct.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Thanks.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· If I could add,

13· ·staff are anticipating developing a resolution to

14· ·capture the process we're engaging in right now and

15· ·proposing that that would go for public comment and

16· ·Council review along with, should there be any

17· ·appropriate revisions to the SCA, both of those would

18· ·be provided together, depending on what ultimately

19· ·comes back -- comes back as comments from Yakama

20· ·Nation, which remains to be seen.

21· · · ·And so the resolution is our plan to sort of

22· ·capture this process, and then any -- any changes or

23· ·additions to an SCA would also be put out for public

24· ·comment as well.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Great.· Thank you.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· And I would just

·2· ·add that was Ami Hafkemeyer from the EFSEC staff,

·3· ·just for benefit of our minutes.· So thank you for

·4· ·the added context, Ami.

·5· · · ·Other questions or comments from the Carriger

·6· ·Council?

·7· · · ·Okay.· Hearing none.· Let me double-check with

·8· ·Adrienne that we don't have online hands I don't see.

·9· · · ·Okay.· All right.· Then we will move on to the

10· ·Hop Hill solar project, Mr. Barnes.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BARNES:· Thank you, Chair

12· ·Beckett and Council members.· This is John Barnes,

13· ·EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.

14· · · ·EFSEC staff are awaiting from the applicant's

15· ·supplemental materials concerning project

16· ·enlargement.· These materials are needed for a SEPA

17· ·review and determination of this project.

18· · · ·Once supplemental materials are received, we will

19· ·continue to coordinate and review the application

20· ·with our contractor, contracted agencies, and tribal

21· ·governments.

22· · · ·Are there any questions?

23· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Council, questions

24· ·on Hop Hill?· That was kind of an interim update,

25· ·obviously, so...



·1· · · ·Seeing none.· We will move on to Wallula Gap.

·2· ·Also Mr. Barnes.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BARNES:· Thank you, Chair

·4· ·Beckett and Council members.· This is John Barnes,

·5· ·EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.

·6· · · ·Staff are working with the applicant to complete

·7· ·supplemental wetland report materials.· Staff are

·8· ·also working with the applicant to identify

·9· ·additional analysis and mitigation following receipt

10· ·of the TCP study from the Yakama Nation cultural

11· ·resource program staff.

12· · · ·Are there any questions?

13· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Comments?

14· · · ·Hearing none.· We will move on to Goldeneye

15· ·battery storage project.· Ms. Snarski.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· Thank you.· Again,

17· ·this is Joanne Snarski, the siting specialist for the

18· ·proposed Goldeneye battery energy storage facility in

19· ·Skagit County.

20· · · ·Most notably, Chair Beckett and project staff

21· ·members will be traveling to meet with the Upper

22· ·Skagit Indian Tribe for government-to-government

23· ·consultation.· The meeting is a special meeting for

24· ·the tribal council specifically to consult with EFSEC

25· ·on Goldeneye energy storage project.



·1· · · ·It is worth noting, during the scheduling of this

·2· ·consultation, EFSEC made sure the Upper Skagit Tribe

·3· ·was aware that Chair Beckett has recused himself from

·4· ·deliberations and voting on the Council's

·5· ·recommendation to the governor on the Goldeneye BESS

·6· ·project -- or excuse me -- energy storage project.

·7· · · ·The tribe confirmed that they did not object to

·8· ·Chair Beckett representing EFSEC Council for this

·9· ·consultation.· Acting Chair Brewster will be in

10· ·attendance, and staff will work with her to develop

11· ·communications to the Council following the Monday

12· ·meeting.· I don't think I mentioned the date, but the

13· ·date is next Monday, the 22nd, September 22nd.

14· · · ·Finally, staff are continuing to work with our

15· ·partnering agencies to review and seek information on

16· ·the application for site certification.

17· · · ·I have no further updates.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you for the

19· ·updates.

20· · · ·I would just add, as the chair who's recused

21· ·myself on this project in this instance, that Acting

22· ·Chair Brewster -- the two of us attending that

23· ·meeting, in this instance Acting Chair Brewster will

24· ·be the chair by which that input and consultation

25· ·back to the Council for Goldeneye BESS will be



·1· ·provided by Acting Chair Brewster.· So just wanted to

·2· ·add that for clarity for the record.

·3· · · ·Are there other questions or comments on the

·4· ·Goldeneye battery storage project?

·5· · · ·Any from our local representative?· I don't see

·6· ·any hands.

·7· · · ·Okay.· Then we will move on to our transmission

·8· ·programatic environmental impact statement.· And

·9· ·Mr. Greene will provide us the update.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· Thank you.

11· · · ·Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council

12· ·members.· This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for

13· ·EFSEC.

14· · · ·EFSEC staff and our consultant, WSP, are busy at

15· ·work putting together the final revisions to the

16· ·transmission programatic EIS with an anticipated

17· ·publication date for the final programmatic EIS in

18· ·early October of this year.

19· · · ·Are there any questions?

20· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Council, any

21· ·further questions?

22· · · ·I know there is a general intent to continue to

23· ·do some further outreach.· And I'm sorry if I missed

24· ·a piece in my ear from your update just now, but --

25· ·but there is an intent to do some integrated



·1· ·outreach, including with the Department of Ecology,

·2· ·knowing they have their three programmatic

·3· ·environmental impact statements out as well.

·4· · · ·And so I just want to thank the staff of both

·5· ·agencies for at times what is an added bit of work to

·6· ·try and have that -- that integrated engagement and

·7· ·look forward to just seeing how that --- that

·8· ·ultimately plays out, including, you know, what I

·9· ·would call who are potential first movers that would

10· ·help us understand how did we do on the effectiveness

11· ·of the programmatics, which are a lot of work just to

12· ·bring forward.· So I want to thank everybody for that

13· ·as well, so...

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· Yes.· Thank you.

15· · · ·We -- we do anticipate doing further outreach in

16· ·concert with the Department of Ecology once the final

17· ·programatic EIS is published, and we anticipate

18· ·continuing our engagement efforts with tribal

19· ·representatives as projects begin to use the

20· ·programatic EIS to make sure that it is being used in

21· ·a manner that is as designed.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Appreciate that.

23· ·And would encourage that for sure.

24· · · ·Okay.· Then we will move on to our Horse Heaven

25· ·Wind Farm project, which will have an update, but



·1· ·first and soon we will be recessing to executive

·2· ·session, which I'll speak to in more detail in a

·3· ·moment.

·4· · · ·But, Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Moon, are there any

·5· ·opening comments you wanted to make before we recess

·6· ·into executive session?

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Not at this time,

·8· ·no.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· I don't have any.· Thank

11· ·you.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· So just for

13· ·clarity of the public, there will be a further

14· ·project update upon our return to our public forum

15· ·here.· And for the record, at this time, the Council

16· ·will be recessing to executive session for 30

17· ·minutes -- it's now 2:05 -- as allowed in the Open

18· ·Public Meeting Act's provision on executive session

19· ·to discuss litigation to which the party -- agency is

20· ·a party with EFSEC's legal counsel.· This is

21· ·necessary to avoid disclosing attorney-client advice

22· ·and attorney work product pertaining to the decisions

23· ·before the Council that are subject to litigation.

24· · · ·The first part of this discussion will be about

25· ·the Horse Heaven project litigation, and the second



·1· ·part pertains to recently filed petitions for

·2· ·judicial review of the Council's amendment to its

·3· ·delegation of authority policy for plans submitted

·4· ·under site certification agreements.

·5· · · ·Due to my original recusal from this project,

·6· ·Horse Heaven, and the partial connection of the

·7· ·delegation policy to Horse Heaven for which I've also

·8· ·recused myself out of an abundance of caution, I will

·9· ·not participate in the executive session discussion

10· ·except as an observer.· Any decisions of these issues

11· ·in general will be made in the Council's open public

12· ·meeting per statute.· There are no intended decisions

13· ·on any of these issues for today, just for

14· ·clarification as well.

15· · · ·So with that, we will recess into executive

16· ·session and will return at 2:40.· So the next public

17· ·meeting will not begin until at least 2:40.· So thank

18· ·you.

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · (Pause in meeting

20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·proceedings from 2:07 p.m.

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·to 2:41 p.m. for purposes

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·of executive session.)

23

24· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Good afternoon.

25· ·This is EFSEC Council Chair Beckett just noting we



·1· ·are gathering back in here.· And I will note at 2:41,

·2· ·we have gavelled back into our regular public

·3· ·session.· I'll get my computer back open here as

·4· ·well.

·5· · · ·Do we have everyone online that we started with,

·6· ·Ms. Barker?

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· So with

·9· ·that, let me return us to our Horse Heaven project

10· ·briefing.· And I believe Ms. Moon will kick us off in

11· ·the project update, and Ms. Hafkemeyer may well soon

12· ·join in along the way.· So I'll turn this over to

13· ·both of you.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Thank you.

15· · · ·Good afternoon, Council Chair Beckett and EFSEC

16· ·Council members.· I, Amy Moon, am reporting on the

17· ·Horse Heaven wind project in Benton County.

18· · · ·At the August 20th Council meeting, Sean Greene,

19· ·the State Environmental Policy Act specialist,

20· ·provided a presentation and information on the

21· ·Pre-operational Technical Advisory Group, otherwise

22· ·known as the PTAG, P-T-A-G.· He advised -- he

23· ·provided information on the Species-5 recommendation.

24· · · ·As presented by Mr. Greene, Species-5 has

25· ·prescriptive mitigation requirements that do not



·1· ·allow the siting of primary project components within

·2· ·0.6 miles of a documented ferruginous hawk nest and

·3· ·within two miles of a documented ferruginous hawk

·4· ·nest unless the nesting site is no longer available

·5· ·or the foraging habitat within two miles of the nest

·6· ·is no longer viable, with the exception of the east

·7· ·battery energy storage system, or BESS, B-E-S-S, that

·8· ·is specifically exempted.

·9· · · ·At the August Council meeting, Mr. Greene

10· ·presented the certificate holder's recommendation,

11· ·which included recommendations associated with six

12· ·nests of which the recommendations were not supported

13· ·unanimously by the PTAG.

14· · · ·The August 20th Council meeting closed with open

15· ·mitigation questions for the Council.· We are here

16· ·today to offer EFSEC staff recommendations regarding

17· ·Species-5 mitigation and to request the Council make

18· ·a determination on the Species-5 mitigation criteria

19· ·for the nest areas, including the group of 39 where

20· ·the PTAG reached consensus, and those where consensus

21· ·was not reached, which are represented by the letters

22· ·A, B, C, D, E, and F on the confidential figures that

23· ·you-all, Council, have.

24· · · ·So please refer to the confidential figures

25· ·provided in the Council SharePoint that's at your



·1· ·disposal, and use these letters in your discussions.

·2· ·Staff also provided a summary document to the Council

·3· ·that may be useful for reference.

·4· · · ·Are there any questions on those provided

·5· ·documents?· Thank you.

·6· · · ·EFSEC staff recommend applying the buffer

·7· ·unanimously recommended by the PTAG for the 39 nests

·8· ·that are identified in the facilitator report and

·9· ·recommendation from the certificate holder.

10· · · ·Is there any discussion on that, or questions?

11· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· None at this time,

12· ·it appears.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· All right.· Thank you.

14· · · ·As the certificate holder is not proposing

15· ·primary infrastructure within the 0.6-, or one

16· ·kilometer, to two-mile buffer of Nest A, the Council

17· ·does not need to make a determination on this nest at

18· ·this time.

19· · · ·However, if the Council would like to make a

20· ·determination on this nest, staff recommend that

21· ·primary infrastructure be allowed within the 0.6- to

22· ·two-mile buffer.

23· · · ·Are there any discussion or questions on that?

24· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Council Brewster.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· This is Stacey



·1· ·Brewster.

·2· · · ·Is there a benefit to making a decision on that

·3· ·at this point?· If no determination is needed,

·4· ·perhaps it can be held off.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Do you want to

·6· ·answer that?

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah.· Council

·8· ·Member Brewster, I -- yeah, as I see it, there's

·9· ·no -- because there's no micro-siting corridor for

10· ·turbines or any primary infrastructure that's

11· ·currently approved in that area, in the radius of

12· ·that, the certificate holder would need to come back

13· ·and amend the SCA to allow for that.· So it could

14· ·be -- this question would only really become relevant

15· ·if and when that were to occur.· So if you don't have

16· ·to make that decision, I would recommend that you not

17· ·make that decision.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Thanks.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Any further questions on

20· ·that?· I'll move forward.

21· · · ·So staff recommend applying the two-mile buffer

22· ·for nests represented by letters B, C, D, E, and F.

23· ·And based on a Council discussion, staff will prepare

24· ·a draft resolution.· So once you guys have a

25· ·discussion and respond to us on your outcome of that



·1· ·discussion, I can prepare a draft resolution to the

·2· ·Council.

·3· · · ·And so I want to leave it open right now for you

·4· ·to discuss the nests at B, C, D, E, and F and that

·5· ·recommendation to apply a two-mile buffer.

·6· · · ·Do you have any questions on that?

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· And the 39 nests

·8· ·in Nest A.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Oh.· Yes.· And the 39

10· ·nests in Nest A -- or, I mean --

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· Yeah.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· -- Circle A.· Yeah.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· We would request that

14· ·the Council make a determination on the application

15· ·of Species-5 for all 45 nests that are -- or sorry --

16· ·for 44 of the 45 nests that are subject to Species-5.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· If I -- if I may

18· ·add, just to -- I don't think -- we're certainly not

19· ·looking for a final decision today.· We're -- I think

20· ·what staff's looking for is just, you know, if the

21· ·Council is comfortable with discussing initial

22· ·thoughts on this, just to get a sense of where the

23· ·opinion of the Council members are at this point,

24· ·that would help with drafting a decisional document

25· ·for a decision at a subsequent meeting.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Yes.· Thanks, Jon, for

·3· ·putting it so clearly.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Other Council

·5· ·members?· Comments or feedback for the staff at this

·6· ·point?

·7· · · ·Council Member Pamplin.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Thank you, Mr. Chair.

·9· · · ·At this point, I'm very comfortable with the

10· ·resolution bringing forward to the Council as you've

11· ·described, Ms. Moon.· I just want to express my

12· ·appreciation to the PTAG members and the staff for --

13· ·it's clearly some tough discussions.· And appreciate

14· ·that you-all are framing this discussion and these

15· ·recommendations to the Council for us to make a

16· ·decision here in the next month, I believe.· So thank

17· ·you.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Other comments from

20· ·Council members?

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster.  I

22· ·would echo that sentiment from Council Member

23· ·Pamplin.· I appreciate all of the work put in by

24· ·staff and members of the PTAG in considering all of

25· ·the information that need to be processed for that.



·1· · · ·I -- the 39 nests is a easy decision.· Consensus

·2· ·was made.· It sounds like habitat and nest

·3· ·availability were identified.· I support that

·4· ·decision.

·5· · · ·As for the Nests B through F -- again, having

·6· ·read through all of the materials and appreciating

·7· ·the robust discussion and deliberation by the PTAG --

·8· ·I agree with the recommendation from staff to stick

·9· ·with the two-mile radius buffers on those nests.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· All right.· Thank you,

11· ·both, Council Member Pamplin and Council Member

12· ·Brewster, and Jon, for supporting this

13· ·recommendation.

14· · · ·So based on Council discussion, staff --

15· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· I'm sorry,

16· ·Ms. Moon.· It looks like --

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· There might be

18· ·more Council members.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· -- Council Levitt

20· ·has his hand raised.· And I believe one other as

21· ·well.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Yes.· I also want to

23· ·echo what the previous two Council members said.· I'm

24· ·supportive of the staff recommendation, and I deeply

25· ·appreciate all of the technical work that went into



·1· ·both the PTAG and EFSEC staff coming to these

·2· ·conclusions.· So, yeah, just wanted to share my

·3· ·sentiment.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Ms. Barker or

·5· ·Ms. Brewster, can you tell me whose hand is up.

·6· ·Because my screen is off.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BARKER:· Yes.· It's Elizabeth

·8· ·Osborne.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Ah.· Council

10· ·Osborne, please.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· Thank you, Mr. Chair.

12· · · ·I think everyone will sense a theme here.· I also

13· ·am in support of staff developing a resolution as

14· ·described, consistent with the staff recommendation,

15· ·and also would like to express my appreciation for

16· ·the work of staff and the PTAG to provide the Council

17· ·with the advice that they have.· I know it was a lot

18· ·of work, and I'm very appreciative of that effort.

19· ·So thank you.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

21· · · ·Any other comments from Council members for the

22· ·Horse Heaven project?

23· · · ·Thank you for letting me "I spy" on your...

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Yeah, sure.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· Are there



·1· ·other comments from the staff or Council in response

·2· ·to what you've heard here from Council members for

·3· ·Horse Heaven?

·4· · · ·And, again, soon the last call on comments from

·5· ·the Horse Heaven Council members, in case anyone

·6· ·changes their mind in the next minute.· Staff first

·7· ·or Council, any closing comments or questions of

·8· ·Council's feedback?

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· I don't have any

10· ·questions.· I can summarize, though.· I can provide a

11· ·summary of what I heard Council...

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· I think generally

13· ·that's good practice from a procedural standpoint.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Okay.· So based on the

15· ·Council discussion -- and I apologize for not seeing

16· ·that there were hands raised online -- that staff

17· ·will prepare a draft resolution stating that Council

18· ·will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for the 39 nests

19· ·on which the PTAG reached consensus.· And the Council

20· ·will implement the two-mile buffer for the following

21· ·nests:· Nests A, B, C -- I mean, I'm sorry.· Not A.

22· ·I'm sorry.· A is -- let me retract.

23· · · ·Staff will draft a resolution stating that the

24· ·Council will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for

25· ·Nest A.· And then the Council will implement a



·1· ·two-mile buffer for Nests B, C, D, E, and F.· This

·2· ·draft resolution will be posted for public comment

·3· ·ahead of Council action at the next Council meeting.

·4· · · ·Sean.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· One point of

·6· ·clarification.· I believe the Council indicated that

·7· ·they will not be making a determination on --

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· A.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· They are not -- they

10· ·are following staff's recommendation to not suggest a

11· ·determination on Nest A.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Yes.· Correct.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· Is that correct?

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Thank you, Sean.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GREENE:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Thank you for tracking

17· ·that.

18· · · ·Anything else?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Any further

20· ·restatements?· Since, understandably, we've had a

21· ·little, you know, churn in the restatements.· Did we

22· ·capture it all, Amy, from your standpoint?

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· I think we captured it

24· ·all, and it will be in our draft resolution to --

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Yes.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· -- to you.· Yeah.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· So I think that

·3· ·spells out our next steps, is to draft this.· And we

·4· ·will, as Ms. Moon stated, provide this to Council and

·5· ·for public comment ahead of the October meeting.· And

·6· ·I believe we have additional update about a request

·7· ·from Scout with relation to the October meeting.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Yeah.· Yeah.· Thank you,

·9· ·Ami Hafkemeyer.

10· · · ·Yeah, Scout submitted a letter to EFSEC,

11· ·requesting a special meeting to make -- to make this

12· ·decision as soon as possible.· This decision that

13· ·we've just been discussing.· But staff will need some

14· ·time to prepare that draft resolution and post for

15· ·comment.

16· · · ·So in looking at the Council's availability ahead

17· ·of the regularly scheduled October 15th meeting, it

18· ·may be difficult to gather a quorum of Council

19· ·members to vote.· So if the Council would like to and

20· ·are able to move existing commitments around, staff

21· ·can work to schedule something at the end of the week

22· ·prior to the regularly scheduled October Council

23· ·meeting.· So that would be, like, potentially a

24· ·meeting on October 9th or 10th, if the Council wants

25· ·to support that or wants to meet.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· Well,

·2· ·Council, any initial feedback?· I realize you may

·3· ·need to look at calendars or reflect on that rather

·4· ·than here in the public session.

·5· · · ·I would note that, either way, how that relates

·6· ·to public comment period should not be taken lightly,

·7· ·obviously.· So I would just observe procedurally,

·8· ·knowing what that comment plan would look like for an

·9· ·earlier date versus October 15th would be important

10· ·to do very quickly if not here today.

11· · · ·But more importantly, Council for the Horse

12· ·Heaven project, any further feedback to Amy Moon or

13· ·Ami Hafkemeyer's comments and questions?

14· · · ·Council Brewster.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· I would say, if we

16· ·need the meeting prior to the October regularly

17· ·scheduled meeting, I would be able to make myself

18· ·available if needed.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Council Pamplin.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Thanks.· Thanks,

21· ·Mr. Chair.

22· · · ·Yeah, I'm just -- completely understand the

23· ·project proponent's request for a special meeting.

24· ·You know, October 10th versus October 15th I just

25· ·don't think is, you know, in the scheme of timelines



·1· ·here, the five days is necessary to schedule a

·2· ·special meeting.· I know my calendar is completely

·3· ·slammed.· And so I'd be asking, if we do something,

·4· ·it be an after-hours meeting.· And I'm fine with

·5· ·that.· And I'm sorry if that's an inconvenience for

·6· ·others.· But 5:00 meetings are great for me.· My

·7· ·schedule's usually pretty open.

·8· · · ·But having said that, this is also an opportunity

·9· ·for the public comment.· So rather than having an

10· ·additional public comment period outside of another

11· ·timeline, I just -- I don't know if the juice is

12· ·worth the squeeze there.· So unless there's just a

13· ·complete traffic jam on your agenda for October at

14· ·the regularly scheduled meeting, I suggest we just

15· ·have this decision come forward at the regular

16· ·October meeting.· Thanks.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you, Council.

18· · · ·Are there other online Council members who wish

19· ·to comment?

20· · · ·Thank you, Council Brewster.· Technical issue

21· ·here on my computer, it looks like.

22· · · ·Seeing none.· Okay.

23· · · ·I think that concludes feedback to the staff on

24· ·Horse Heaven.

25· · · ·Any other comments or questions of staff to the



·1· ·Council for Horse Heaven?

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· I don't have anything

·3· ·further.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· Then we will

·5· ·conclude the Horse Heaven project discussion.

·6· · · ·And before we adjourn, I had one update from a

·7· ·Council membership standpoint that I wanted to turn

·8· ·this to Council Levitt from the Department of Ecology

·9· ·to share a few updates on his membership of the

10· ·Council.· So Council Levitt.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Thank you, Chair.

12· · · ·Yeah, this is Eli Levitt, Ecology's current

13· ·Council member.· As of October 1st, Ecology has put

14· ·forth a recommendation for a new Council member.

15· ·That will be Blake Nelson.· He's a section manager in

16· ·Ecology's solid waste management program.

17· · · ·I just want to take a moment to say thank you for

18· ·the honor and privilege for serving as a Council

19· ·member.· I appreciate the work of the Council, Chair

20· ·Beckett, Chair Drew in the past, and others who have

21· ·helped me through this process of being a Council

22· ·member.· You know, I do really think the role that we

23· ·serve is an important role, bringing our agency

24· ·expertise and knowledge and trying to apply it to all

25· ·of these proposals as well as current projects.



·1· · · ·I'm hopeful that the Council will continue with

·2· ·EFSEC staff to look at the public comment process and

·3· ·making sure that people feel both heard and seen

·4· ·through that public comment process, whether it's

·5· ·meetings in person or written public comment.· So

·6· ·we've been looking at that lately, and I do think

·7· ·some of the improvements we're putting on paper

·8· ·should be quite helpful.

·9· · · ·I do also want to briefly advocate that I hope

10· ·the Council and EFSEC staff continue to do site

11· ·visits and get out regularly to those places where

12· ·projects are proposed or even ongoing.· I think it's

13· ·an excellent way to make sure we're understanding

14· ·everything about our project as well as getting to

15· ·know community members and leaders and those who are

16· ·interested and/or concerned in projects.

17· · · ·You know, this site visit tradition, it goes back

18· ·a long time.· When I first started at Ecology, Hedia

19· ·Adelsman, once a Council member for Ecology, mentored

20· ·me briefly.· And, you know, I remember her coming

21· ·back with just the stories of riding in vans and

22· ·minivans, buses, to go to various places in the state

23· ·and meet with people one-on-one.· And that's a really

24· ·important part of our process, getting to know people

25· ·in the communities.



·1· · · ·So, again, thank you for the privilege of serving

·2· ·on the Council, and I wish -- I wish everyone the

·3· ·best of luck as we continue this process moving

·4· ·forward.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Council Levitt,

·6· ·thank you very much for your service as well as the

·7· ·update and update on Blake Nelson beginning to serve

·8· ·on October 1st on the EFSEC Council as part of -- as

·9· ·the Department of Ecology's representative.

10· · · ·And I personally want to thank you for your time

11· ·and helping me onboard as the new chair as well as

12· ·your time and service, especially on things like

13· ·Horse Heaven, given the discussion today.· So that

14· ·amongst many projects.· So it's been a pleasure, and

15· ·we thank you.

16· · · ·If there are other Council comments to add to

17· ·mine, I'll certainly open that up for any further

18· ·comment.

19· · · ·And I should note, Eli, that we will -- Council

20· ·Member Levitt, that we ask that you agree to return

21· ·for a proper thank-you at a brief future cameo

22· ·appearance at one of our regular meetings.

23· · · ·Sorry, Council Brewster.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Sounds good.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· This is --



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· -- Stacey Brewster.

·3· ·Council Levitt, it has been a pleasure serving with

·4· ·you.· I've appreciated your time on the Council.· And

·5· ·I'm sorry to see you go, but I'll look forward to

·6· ·meeting your replacement.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

·9· · · ·Just looking for other hands.· And I finally see

10· ·another screen I should have been looking at earlier.

11· · · ·All right.· Well, with that, again, thank you,

12· ·Council Levitt.· And we wish you well in your

13· ·continued juggling of many issues, which we know is

14· ·certainly part of your consideration here.· So we

15· ·will miss you, as was said.

16· · · ·Are there any other closing Council comments

17· ·before we adjourn?

18· · · ·All right.· Seeing none.

19· · · ·Ms. Hafkemeyer, any closing comments on behalf of

20· ·the staff?· And it's okay if not, but thought I would

21· ·ask.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· I don't have

23· ·anything further.· Thank you.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· All right.

25· ·Excellent.· Well, then we are adjourned.· Thank you,



·1· ·everyone, for your time and participation today.· It

·2· ·is 3:02 p.m., and we are now officially adjourned.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · (Meeting adjourned at

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·3:02 p.m.)
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 1                     BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

 2   September 17, 2025, at 621 Woodland Square Loop

 3   Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:32 p.m., the

 4   following monthly meeting of the Washington State

 5   Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

 6   wit:

 7

 8                       <<<<<< >>>>>>

 9

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Good afternoon.  If

11   I could have everyone's attention, please.

12       This is Kurt Beckett calling the September 17th

13   meeting of the Energy Facility Siting Council to

14   order.  It's 1:32 p.m.

15       And, Ms. Barker, if you could call the roll,

16   please.

17                     MS. BARKER:  Certainly.

18       Department of Commerce.

19                     MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,

20   present.

21                     MS. BARKER:  Department of Ecology.

22                     MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, present.

23                     MS. BARKER:  Department of Fish and

24   Wildlife.

25                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin,
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 1   present.

 2                     MS. BARKER:  Department of Natural

 3   Resources.

 4       Utilities and Transportation Commission.

 5                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster,

 6   present.

 7                     MS. BARKER:  Local government and

 8   optional State agencies.

 9       For the Hop Hill project, Paul Krupin.

10       For the Carriger Solar project, Matt Chiles.

11                     MR. CHILES:  Matt Chiles, present.

12                     MS. BARKER:  The Wallula Gap

13   project, Adam Fyall.

14       For the Goldeneye BESS project, Robby Eckroth.

15       Assistant attorney generals.  Jon Thompson.

16                     MR. THOMPSON:  Present.

17                     MS. BARKER:  Zack Packer.

18                     MR. PACKER:  Present.

19                     MS. BARKER:  Talia Thuet.

20                     MS. THUET:  Present.

21                     MS. BARKER:  For EFSEC staff, I

22   will call those anticipated to speak today.

23       Ami Hafkemeyer.

24                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.

25                     MS. BARKER:  Amy Moon.
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 1                     MS. MOON:  Present.

 2                     MS. BARKER:  Sara Randolph.

 3                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Present.

 4                     MS. BARKER:  Sean Greene.

 5                     MR. GREENE:  Present.

 6                     MS. BARKER:  John Barnes.

 7                     MR. BARNES:  Present.

 8                     MS. BARKER:  Joanne Snarski.

 9                     MS. SNARSKI:  Here.

10                     MS. BARKER:  For optional --

11   operational updates.

12       Kittitas Valley wind project.

13       Wild Horse Wind Power Project.

14                     MS. GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith,

15   present.

16                     MS. BARKER:  Grays Harbor Energy

17   Center.

18                     MR. PACE:  Pace, present.

19                     MS. BARKER:  Chehalis Generation

20   Facility.

21       Columbia Generating Station.

22                     MR. LaPORTE:  Josh LaPorte,

23   present.

24                     MS. BARKER:  Columbia Solar.

25                     MS. DRACHENBERG:  Elizabeth
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 1   Drachenberg, present.

 2                     MS. BARKER:  Goose Prairie Solar.

 3                     MR. JIA:  Nelson Jia, present.

 4                     MS. BARKER:  Ostrea Solar.

 5                     MR. VOLTZ:  Jon Voltz, present.

 6                     MS. BARKER:  Is there anyone online

 7   for the counsel of the environment?

 8                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld is

 9   present.

10                     MS. BARKER:  Chair, there is a

11   quorum for all councils.

12                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very

13   much.

14       Council members, we have a posted agenda before

15   us.

16       Is there a motion to adopt the agenda?

17                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Mr. Chair, this is

18   Nate Pamplin.  I move that we approve the agenda.

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.

20       Is there a second?

21                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.

22   Second.

23                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.

24       The agenda has been moved and seconded, is on the

25   table.  Are there any comments or changes to the
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 1   agenda from the Council?

 2       Hearing none.  All those in favor of approving

 3   the agenda, say "aye."

 4                     MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 5                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?

 6       Agenda is approved.

 7       Moving on to approval of minutes.  Council, we

 8   have the minutes before us.  Is there a motion to

 9   approve the minutes?

10                     MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.

11   So moved.

12                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.

13       Second?

14                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Second.

15                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council

16   Pamplin.

17       The minutes are on the table.  Are there any

18   changes or amendments to the minutes from Council?

19                     MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey

20   Brewster.  I have one change.

21                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Please.

22                     MS. BREWSTER:  On Page 27, Line 24,

23   the word is "needs."  Should be changed to "meets,"

24   m-e-e-t-s.

25                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council
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 1   Brewster.

 2       Are there other -- I'm sure that will be taken as

 3   a friendly amendment.

 4       Are there any other comments or changes?

 5       Okay.  Then hearing none, we will treat that

 6   suggestion as a friendly amendment.

 7       And all in favor of approving the minutes as

 8   amended, please say "aye."

 9                     MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed, say "nay."

11       Minutes are approved.  Thank you.

12       Moving on to our project updates.

13       Kittitas Valley wind project.  Mr. Caseday.

14                     MR. CASEDAY:  Yes.  Good afternoon,

15   Chair Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  I'm sorry

16   that I did not call roll call, but this is Jarred

17   Caseday with EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley

18   wind power project.

19       And we had nothing nonroutine to report for the

20   period.

21                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

22       Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.

23   Ms. Galbraith.

24                     MS. GALBRAITH:  Yes.

25                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Galbraith.
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 1                     MS. GALBRAITH:  Thank you, Chair

 2   Beckett, Council members, and EFSEC staff.  This is

 3   Jennifer Galbraith from Puget Sound Energy

 4   representing the Wild Horse wind facility.

 5       I have a few updates for this reporting period.

 6   First, the Wild Horse Technical Advisory Committee

 7   met on August 21st for the annual meeting.  The

 8   meeting was held jointly with the Wild Horse

 9   coordinated resource management group to review

10   history, agreements, processes, and results,

11   upgrades, and management since inception of the Wild

12   Horse CRM in 2006.

13       This was an informational meeting.  There were no

14   items that required formal actions or recommendations

15   from the TAC for the Council's consideration.

16       For the second update, as requested in a letter

17   received from Ami Hafkemeyer, EFSEC director of

18   siting and compliance, PSE provided a status update

19   on our plans to install FAA-approved light-mitigating

20   technology at Wild Horse in accordance with new

21   legislative requirements to reduce light pollution at

22   wind energy facilities in Washington State.

23       As required by the RCW, PSE will apply to the FAA

24   prior to January 1st, 2028, and will install a new

25   light-mitigating system within 24 months of receiving
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 1   FAA approval.

 2       And for the final update, as of today, there has

 3   been no change to the damaged wind turbine tower

 4   initially reported to the Council on July 14th.  We

 5   continue to monitor the turbine 24/7 and are

 6   developing plans to safely decommission the tower

 7   following the wildfire season.  Emergency responders

 8   remain on standby in the event of tower failure, and

 9   the site will remain closed to the publ- -- pubic

10   access for the remainder of 2025.

11       Thank you very much.

12                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much

13   for the update.

14       Any questions or comments from Council?

15       Okay.  Hearing none.

16       Moving on to Chehalis Generation Facility.

17   Mr. Smith and Randolph, Sara Randolph.

18                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Chair

19   Beckett, Council members, and staff.  For the record,

20   this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Chehalis.

21       The facility update is provided in your packet.

22   Last month, it was discussed that the flow level of

23   the Chehalis River, the facility's water source, had

24   dropped below 165 cubic feet per second.  With enough

25   rainfall, the facility was able to resume withdrawal
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 1   of water, that they did not need to purchase water to

 2   maintain operations.  As a result, a special Council

 3   meeting to take up action to approve purchase of

 4   water from the City was not needed.

 5       Staff met with Chehalis facility to develop a

 6   plan for anticipating Council action during periods

 7   of low river flow.  The facility will notify EFSEC as

 8   soon as they begin using their reserves, giving us

 9   earlier notice than in the past.  Staff will also

10   communicate with the facility periodically, while

11   reserves are being used, to track the potential need

12   for Council action.

13       This approach will be used for the next two to

14   three years.  However, if the plan proves

15   insufficient, staff will reopen discussions with the

16   facility and may propose addressing the issue through

17   an amendment to the site certification agreement, or

18   the SCA.  Thank you.

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very

20   much.

21       And I don't believe we had Jeremy Smith with us

22   today.  I just wanted to confirm.

23                     MS. RANDOLPH:  I didn't hear him on

24   the line.

25                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.  Okay.  Thank
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 1   you.  And thank you, again, for the update.

 2       Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Eric --

 3   Mr. Pace, if you're on, as well as then followed by

 4   Sara Randolph again.

 5                     MR. PACE:  Good afternoon, Chair

 6   Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  Eric Pace

 7   reporting for Grays Harbor.

 8       Grays Harbor Energy does not have anything

 9   nonroutine to report for the period.

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,

11   Mr. Pace.

12       Ms. Randolph?

13                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  Chair Beckett,

14   Council members, and staff, for the record again,

15   this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays

16   Harbor.

17       The facility update is provided in your packet.

18   There are two items that will be discussed for the

19   Council.  First is the National Pollutant Discharge

20   Elimination System, or NPDES, permit renewal.  And

21   second is the air operating permit, or the AOP,

22   renewal.

23       EFSEC received NPDES permit renewal application

24   from the facility on December 17th, 2023, and permit

25   ending June 30th, 2024, and has continued to operate
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 1   under an administrative extension which was approved

 2   by EFSEC for the previous NPDES permit in accordance

 3   with Washington Administrative Code, or WAC,

 4   173.220.180.

 5       Grays Harbor submitted an engineering report

 6   which was followed by several rounds of a review and

 7   coordination between the EFSEC staff and the

 8   facility.  EFSEC approved the engineering report on

 9   April 2nd and has been working with our contractor at

10   Ecology to develop the NPDES renewal permit.

11       Staff have made a tentative determination to

12   issue the following public comment.  Will bring the

13   comments and documents to Council for vote on final

14   issuance after the comment period.  Staff recommend

15   that the comment period begins on September 29th and

16   continue for 30 days, ending at close of business on

17   October 28th.

18       A public meeting is not planned for this comment

19   period.  Historically, public meetings for the

20   facility's permits have not been attended by the

21   public, and a meeting is not required.  However, we

22   will have one if requested.

23       If there are any questions on any technical

24   aspects of the permit, our contractors with Ecology

25   are here and able to address any concerns.
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 1                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any

 2   question or comment?  I'll check on my screen here

 3   again since we have some of our members online.

 4       Okay.  I don't think so.  So moving --

 5                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Okay.

 6                     CHAIR BECKETT:  -- on.  Thank you,

 7   Ms. Randolph.

 8                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  I'll continue

 9   on for the air operating permit, or AOP.

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

11                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Sorry.

12                     CHAIR BECKETT:  No.  All good.

13                     MS. RANDOLPH:  The AOP first

14   notification was issued by EFSEC July 17th, 2024.

15   The AOP renewal application was submitted on December

16   11th, 2024, adding in the acid rain permit in with a

17   Title V AOP permit, ending June 17, 2025, and

18   continue to operate under administrative extension.

19       The acid rain permit contains the statement of

20   basis; SO2 allowances under -- allocated under this

21   permit; and NOx requirements for each affected unit;

22   comments, notes, and justifications regarding permit

23   decisions and changes made to the permit application;

24   and any additional requirements or conditions as per

25   WAC 173-406-501, acid rain permit contents, as
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 1   adopted by WAC 463-78.

 2       The permit application submitted for this source

 3   per WAC 173-406-106, standard requirements as adopted

 4   by WAC 463-78, the owners and operators of the source

 5   must comply with the standard requirements and

 6   special provisions set forth in the application.  In

 7   accordance with WAC 463-78, general and operating

 8   permit regulations for air pollution sources, which

 9   adopts WAC 173-406, acid rain regulation, and

10   WAC 173-401, operating permit regulation, is based on

11   the provisions of Title 40, Code of Federal

12   Regulations, or CFR, Parts 72 through 76, which is

13   part of the Title IV of the Clean Air Act.

14       In accordance with WAC 173-406-103, Combustion

15   Turbine Generator No. 1, or CTG 1, and CTG 2 are

16   utility units because they serve generators greater

17   than 25 megawatts and do not qualify for any of the

18   exemptions provided under the WAC 173-406-103.  As

19   such, they are subject to the acid rain requirements

20   under WAC 173-406.

21       In coordination with Olympic Region Clean Air

22   Agency, or ORCAA, staff have reviewed the application

23   materials.  Staff are finalizing documents to put out

24   for public comment and anticipate it to go out for

25   public comment on October 6.
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 1       Following public comment period, staff will bring

 2   the comments and documents to Council.  If no

 3   substantive comments, then it will go to the

 4   Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, for EPA to

 5   review for 45 days.  Once the EPA has concluded their

 6   review, staff will bring the permit back to the

 7   Council to vote for issuance.

 8       If there are any questions on any technical

 9   aspects of the permit, our contractors from ORCAA are

10   here and able to address any concerns.

11                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,

12   Ms. Randolph.

13                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you.  Thank

14   you.

15                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any

16   questions or further feedback for the staff?

17   Appreciate the thorough update.

18       Okay.  Hearing and seeing none.  We will move on

19   to Columbia Solar.  Ms. Drachenberg.

20                     MS. DRACHENBERG:  Good afternoon,

21   Chair, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Elizabeth

22   Drachenberg, Columbia Solar.

23       There are no nonroutine updates to report for

24   this period.

25                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.
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 1       Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and

 2   WNP 1 and 4.  And my understanding is Josh LaPorte is

 3   with us to give the update today.

 4                     MR. LaPORTE:  That's correct, Chair

 5   Beckett.  Thank you.

 6       Good afternoon, EFSEC Council and staff.  This is

 7   Josh LaPorte for the Columbia Generating Station and

 8   Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.

 9       The facilities update is included in your packet

10   for both sites, and there are no additional

11   nonroutine updates to report for the month of August

12   for either site.

13                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  And I just

14   want to acknowledge the staff's update as well on

15   some of the previous environmental issues of the last

16   meeting.  I assume we have nothing further on that,

17   but let me just double-check with Ms. Hafkemeyer.

18                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  That's correct.

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  That

20   concludes the update, then.  Unless there were

21   questions from Council.  Seeing none.

22       Moving on, then, to Goose Prairie.  Mr. Jia.

23                     MR. JIA:  Good afternoon, everyone.

24   This is Nelson providing an update for the month of

25   August.
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 1       Total generation, approximately 21,667 megawatt

 2   hours.  And on some positive news, all of our

 3   inverters on-site were fully available for the month

 4   of August.  So we were able to fix our A/C breaker

 5   issue, which is nice.

 6       Otherwise, no other updates from an environmental

 7   safety compliance perspective.  Thank you.

 8                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.

 9       Comments?  Hearing none.

10       We will move on to Ostrea Solar.  Mr. Voltz.

11                     MR. VOLTZ:  Thank you, Chair

12   Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is Jon

13   Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing

14   Ostrea Solar project.

15       In the month of August, construction progressed

16   in full.  All scopes are underway.  We received the

17   last of the solar modules.  Those have all been

18   delivered out.  The main power transformer is

19   on-site, set on the pad, preparing for the dress and

20   testing there.  We also received all of the

21   inverters.  All 22 have arrived and been set on the

22   pad.  So we are continuing with install and

23   proceeding toward mechanical completion.

24       Other than that, nothing nonroutine to report for

25   the period.
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 1                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,

 2   Mr. Voltz.

 3       I would call out one item that was in the monthly

 4   update that I thought was bearing calling out, which

 5   was just in terms of local outreaches and I would

 6   call it a newer neighbor into Yakima County.  The

 7   project had found time amidst its construction

 8   schedule to participate in the back-to-school drive

 9   for Yakima County Schools.  And just thought that was

10   worth noting here in the public session.  So

11   appreciate Cypress Creek's effort in that regard.

12       Unless there's other comments, questions, we will

13   move on to Carriger Solar.  And Ms. Snarski is here

14   to provide an update on that project, including -- I

15   will note for the public that our intent is to signal

16   the process in other upcoming public comment periods.

17   Some of that is a little bit in flux still, I

18   believe, but we'll hear from Ms. Snarski, and she'll

19   fill in the details, so...

20                     MS. SNARSKI:  I'll do my best.

21       Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council

22   members.  For the record, this is Joanne Snarski, the

23   siting specialist for the proposed Carriger Solar

24   facility in Klickitat County.

25       On June 25th, 2025, the Council voted to send a
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 1   recommendation to approve the Carriger Solar facility

 2   site certification agreement and was subsequently

 3   sent to the governor for review.  On August 22nd,

 4   2025, Governor Ferguson provided a letter to Chair

 5   Beckett, directing the Council to reconsider certain

 6   aspects of the draft site certification agreement.

 7   The governor outlined the following actions for EFSEC

 8   to take.

 9       First, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an

10   opportunity to review and provide input on the June

11   19, 2025, memorandum from the EFSEC chair to the

12   EFSEC Council members, describing the chair and the

13   staff's June 4th, 2025, meeting with the tribe.

14       Second, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an

15   opportunity to provide further input on the following

16   five mitigation measures.

17       On the increased setbacks of fencing and solar

18   panels from SR 142 and Knight Road; the increased

19   setbacks on fencing and solar panels on both north

20   and south side of the Department of Natural Resources

21   managed parcel, the installation of further screening

22   tools, such as earthen berms, rock piles, or native

23   vegetation, to further mitigate visual impacts to the

24   users of the north side of the adjacent State-owned

25   parcel, the DNR parcel; the traffic control plan as
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 1   required in the SCA, the site certification

 2   agreement, to ensure the tribal -- the tribe has

 3   access to its TCPs and that they are maintained

 4   throughout construction.

 5       Finally, the fifth mitigation is that EFSEC will

 6   include Yakama Nation in the review of the initial

 7   site restoration and the detailed site restoration

 8   plans as required in the SCA.

 9       In response to the request, the governor's

10   request, on August 26, 2025, Chair Beckett sent a

11   letter to Chairman Gerald Lewis of the Yakama Nation

12   Tribal Council.  Chair Beckett requested the tribe

13   review all of the actions I just described and sent

14   along all of the supporting documentation for that

15   review.

16       In that letter, we requested that the Yakama

17   Nation respond to these requests by September 26th in

18   order to meet a 60-day timeline that was identified

19   by the governor.  Following receipt of additional

20   comments from the Yakama Nation, staff will review

21   and develop response documents or revisions to the

22   draft site certification agreement as appropriate.

23       We expect these decisional documents to be posted

24   for public comment in early October and are currently

25   targeting a comment period from August -- or excuse
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 1   me -- October 6th through October 19th.  Staff are

 2   proposing a special Council meeting on October 21st

 3   for the -- for the purposes of Council action.  And

 4   we will provide required public notice for this

 5   meeting once these details unfold and are available.

 6       That's all I have for now.

 7                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

 8       So just for clarity of not only the record but

 9   for those who may be watching, the public, the

10   intended comment period is October 6 through the

11   19th.  That will be published officially, so what I

12   just stated is not yet in the record officially, but

13   that's --

14                     MS. SNARSKI:  Correct.

15                     CHAIR BECKETT:  -- our intent, and

16   so we wanted --

17                     MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.

18                     CHAIR BECKETT:  -- to signal that

19   as early as we could here in our public meeting

20   today.

21       So, Council, were there other questions, comments

22   you wanted to share as a group and/or back to the

23   staff?

24       Council Pamplin.

25                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thank you,
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 1   Mr. Chair.

 2       Ms. Snarski, is the Council's decision in June to

 3   recommend approval of this project to the governor,

 4   since the governor wrote a letter -- and hasn't

 5   approved it yet -- and laid out a number of

 6   conditions, is there an action that we need to take

 7   relative to our June decision, or does that decision

 8   essentially kind of die on the vine until we act

 9   again at the October meeting?

10                     MS. SNARSKI:  I think that's kind

11   of a legal question.  Maybe Jon would better be

12   suited to answer.

13                     MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, Council Member

14   Pamplin, I'd be happy to venture an answer, then.

15       The section of RCW 80.50, the EFSEC-enabling

16   statutes that talks about the steps that happen with

17   regard to the Council making a recommendation to the

18   governor and then the governor's options thereafter,

19   it basically allows the governor to request that the

20   Council reconsider certain aspects of the site

21   certification agreement.

22       And then thereafter, depending on what decision

23   the Council makes, to return the site certification

24   agreement with any revisions that you make.  It

25   doesn't talk about amending the recommendation or
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 1   anything of that sort.  It's just the only thing that

 2   the statute speaks to is just returning the site

 3   certification agreement that the governor has asked

 4   you to reconsider parts of.

 5       The recommendation, I wouldn't say it died on the

 6   vine.  It's -- you've made your recommendation, and

 7   then this is just a follow-on process to focus in on

 8   certain aspects of it and decide whether you want to

 9   change them at the governor's request and then make

10   those amendments to the SCA, if you choose to do so.

11       Does that answer your question?

12                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah.  Thanks to you

13   both.  And I wasn't trying to -- please don't infer

14   into the substance of the question.  It was just a

15   policy process --

16                     MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.  Yeah.

17                     MR. PAMPLIN:  -- relative to an

18   action EFSEC took and then do we need to kind of

19   unring that bell or just -- or essentially ring it

20   again after we see the -- we have the meeting on

21   October 21st.  Thank you.

22                     MR. THOMPSON:  Well, yeah, if I --

23   actually, if I can follow up, Council Member Pamplin.

24       Yeah, it's -- I think it's a good practice and

25   advisable for you to -- to explain what -- what
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 1   you've done in response to the governor's direction.

 2   And the form that would generally take is a Council

 3   resolution, so -- that would -- that would explain,

 4   yeah, just explain what you've -- what you've -- what

 5   you've done, what you've chosen to do or not do with

 6   respect to the terms of the SCA.  I think that would

 7   be the --

 8                     MR. PAMPLIN:  So it'd be a revised

 9   SCA or an amended SCA at that time.

10                     MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.

11                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks.

12                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  If I could add,

13   staff are anticipating developing a resolution to

14   capture the process we're engaging in right now and

15   proposing that that would go for public comment and

16   Council review along with, should there be any

17   appropriate revisions to the SCA, both of those would

18   be provided together, depending on what ultimately

19   comes back -- comes back as comments from Yakama

20   Nation, which remains to be seen.

21       And so the resolution is our plan to sort of

22   capture this process, and then any -- any changes or

23   additions to an SCA would also be put out for public

24   comment as well.

25                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you.
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 1                     CHAIR BECKETT:  And I would just

 2   add that was Ami Hafkemeyer from the EFSEC staff,

 3   just for benefit of our minutes.  So thank you for

 4   the added context, Ami.

 5       Other questions or comments from the Carriger

 6   Council?

 7       Okay.  Hearing none.  Let me double-check with

 8   Adrienne that we don't have online hands I don't see.

 9       Okay.  All right.  Then we will move on to the

10   Hop Hill solar project, Mr. Barnes.

11                     MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair

12   Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,

13   EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.

14       EFSEC staff are awaiting from the applicant's

15   supplemental materials concerning project

16   enlargement.  These materials are needed for a SEPA

17   review and determination of this project.

18       Once supplemental materials are received, we will

19   continue to coordinate and review the application

20   with our contractor, contracted agencies, and tribal

21   governments.

22       Are there any questions?

23                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, questions

24   on Hop Hill?  That was kind of an interim update,

25   obviously, so...
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 1       Seeing none.  We will move on to Wallula Gap.

 2   Also Mr. Barnes.

 3                     MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair

 4   Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,

 5   EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.

 6       Staff are working with the applicant to complete

 7   supplemental wetland report materials.  Staff are

 8   also working with the applicant to identify

 9   additional analysis and mitigation following receipt

10   of the TCP study from the Yakama Nation cultural

11   resource program staff.

12       Are there any questions?

13                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Comments?

14       Hearing none.  We will move on to Goldeneye

15   battery storage project.  Ms. Snarski.

16                     MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you.  Again,

17   this is Joanne Snarski, the siting specialist for the

18   proposed Goldeneye battery energy storage facility in

19   Skagit County.

20       Most notably, Chair Beckett and project staff

21   members will be traveling to meet with the Upper

22   Skagit Indian Tribe for government-to-government

23   consultation.  The meeting is a special meeting for

24   the tribal council specifically to consult with EFSEC

25   on Goldeneye energy storage project.
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 1       It is worth noting, during the scheduling of this

 2   consultation, EFSEC made sure the Upper Skagit Tribe

 3   was aware that Chair Beckett has recused himself from

 4   deliberations and voting on the Council's

 5   recommendation to the governor on the Goldeneye BESS

 6   project -- or excuse me -- energy storage project.

 7       The tribe confirmed that they did not object to

 8   Chair Beckett representing EFSEC Council for this

 9   consultation.  Acting Chair Brewster will be in

10   attendance, and staff will work with her to develop

11   communications to the Council following the Monday

12   meeting.  I don't think I mentioned the date, but the

13   date is next Monday, the 22nd, September 22nd.

14       Finally, staff are continuing to work with our

15   partnering agencies to review and seek information on

16   the application for site certification.

17       I have no further updates.

18                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

19   updates.

20       I would just add, as the chair who's recused

21   myself on this project in this instance, that Acting

22   Chair Brewster -- the two of us attending that

23   meeting, in this instance Acting Chair Brewster will

24   be the chair by which that input and consultation

25   back to the Council for Goldeneye BESS will be

0033

 1   provided by Acting Chair Brewster.  So just wanted to

 2   add that for clarity for the record.

 3       Are there other questions or comments on the

 4   Goldeneye battery storage project?

 5       Any from our local representative?  I don't see

 6   any hands.

 7       Okay.  Then we will move on to our transmission

 8   programatic environmental impact statement.  And

 9   Mr. Greene will provide us the update.

10                     MR. GREENE:  Thank you.

11       Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council

12   members.  This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for

13   EFSEC.

14       EFSEC staff and our consultant, WSP, are busy at

15   work putting together the final revisions to the

16   transmission programatic EIS with an anticipated

17   publication date for the final programmatic EIS in

18   early October of this year.

19       Are there any questions?

20                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any

21   further questions?

22       I know there is a general intent to continue to

23   do some further outreach.  And I'm sorry if I missed

24   a piece in my ear from your update just now, but --

25   but there is an intent to do some integrated
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 1   outreach, including with the Department of Ecology,

 2   knowing they have their three programmatic

 3   environmental impact statements out as well.

 4       And so I just want to thank the staff of both

 5   agencies for at times what is an added bit of work to

 6   try and have that -- that integrated engagement and

 7   look forward to just seeing how that --- that

 8   ultimately plays out, including, you know, what I

 9   would call who are potential first movers that would

10   help us understand how did we do on the effectiveness

11   of the programmatics, which are a lot of work just to

12   bring forward.  So I want to thank everybody for that

13   as well, so...

14                     MR. GREENE:  Yes.  Thank you.

15       We -- we do anticipate doing further outreach in

16   concert with the Department of Ecology once the final

17   programatic EIS is published, and we anticipate

18   continuing our engagement efforts with tribal

19   representatives as projects begin to use the

20   programatic EIS to make sure that it is being used in

21   a manner that is as designed.

22                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.

23   And would encourage that for sure.

24       Okay.  Then we will move on to our Horse Heaven

25   Wind Farm project, which will have an update, but
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 1   first and soon we will be recessing to executive

 2   session, which I'll speak to in more detail in a

 3   moment.

 4       But, Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Moon, are there any

 5   opening comments you wanted to make before we recess

 6   into executive session?

 7                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Not at this time,

 8   no.  Thank you.

 9                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.

10                     MS. MOON:  I don't have any.  Thank

11   you.

12                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  So just for

13   clarity of the public, there will be a further

14   project update upon our return to our public forum

15   here.  And for the record, at this time, the Council

16   will be recessing to executive session for 30

17   minutes -- it's now 2:05 -- as allowed in the Open

18   Public Meeting Act's provision on executive session

19   to discuss litigation to which the party -- agency is

20   a party with EFSEC's legal counsel.  This is

21   necessary to avoid disclosing attorney-client advice

22   and attorney work product pertaining to the decisions

23   before the Council that are subject to litigation.

24       The first part of this discussion will be about

25   the Horse Heaven project litigation, and the second
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 1   part pertains to recently filed petitions for

 2   judicial review of the Council's amendment to its

 3   delegation of authority policy for plans submitted

 4   under site certification agreements.

 5       Due to my original recusal from this project,

 6   Horse Heaven, and the partial connection of the

 7   delegation policy to Horse Heaven for which I've also

 8   recused myself out of an abundance of caution, I will

 9   not participate in the executive session discussion

10   except as an observer.  Any decisions of these issues

11   in general will be made in the Council's open public

12   meeting per statute.  There are no intended decisions

13   on any of these issues for today, just for

14   clarification as well.

15       So with that, we will recess into executive

16   session and will return at 2:40.  So the next public

17   meeting will not begin until at least 2:40.  So thank

18   you.

19                            (Pause in meeting

20                             proceedings from 2:07 p.m.

21                             to 2:41 p.m. for purposes

22                             of executive session.)

23

24                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Good afternoon.

25   This is EFSEC Council Chair Beckett just noting we
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 1   are gathering back in here.  And I will note at 2:41,

 2   we have gavelled back into our regular public

 3   session.  I'll get my computer back open here as

 4   well.

 5       Do we have everyone online that we started with,

 6   Ms. Barker?

 7                     MS. BARKER:  Yes.

 8                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  So with

 9   that, let me return us to our Horse Heaven project

10   briefing.  And I believe Ms. Moon will kick us off in

11   the project update, and Ms. Hafkemeyer may well soon

12   join in along the way.  So I'll turn this over to

13   both of you.

14                     MS. MOON:  Thank you.

15       Good afternoon, Council Chair Beckett and EFSEC

16   Council members.  I, Amy Moon, am reporting on the

17   Horse Heaven wind project in Benton County.

18       At the August 20th Council meeting, Sean Greene,

19   the State Environmental Policy Act specialist,

20   provided a presentation and information on the

21   Pre-operational Technical Advisory Group, otherwise

22   known as the PTAG, P-T-A-G.  He advised -- he

23   provided information on the Species-5 recommendation.

24       As presented by Mr. Greene, Species-5 has

25   prescriptive mitigation requirements that do not
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 1   allow the siting of primary project components within

 2   0.6 miles of a documented ferruginous hawk nest and

 3   within two miles of a documented ferruginous hawk

 4   nest unless the nesting site is no longer available

 5   or the foraging habitat within two miles of the nest

 6   is no longer viable, with the exception of the east

 7   battery energy storage system, or BESS, B-E-S-S, that

 8   is specifically exempted.

 9       At the August Council meeting, Mr. Greene

10   presented the certificate holder's recommendation,

11   which included recommendations associated with six

12   nests of which the recommendations were not supported

13   unanimously by the PTAG.

14       The August 20th Council meeting closed with open

15   mitigation questions for the Council.  We are here

16   today to offer EFSEC staff recommendations regarding

17   Species-5 mitigation and to request the Council make

18   a determination on the Species-5 mitigation criteria

19   for the nest areas, including the group of 39 where

20   the PTAG reached consensus, and those where consensus

21   was not reached, which are represented by the letters

22   A, B, C, D, E, and F on the confidential figures that

23   you-all, Council, have.

24       So please refer to the confidential figures

25   provided in the Council SharePoint that's at your

0039

 1   disposal, and use these letters in your discussions.

 2   Staff also provided a summary document to the Council

 3   that may be useful for reference.

 4       Are there any questions on those provided

 5   documents?  Thank you.

 6       EFSEC staff recommend applying the buffer

 7   unanimously recommended by the PTAG for the 39 nests

 8   that are identified in the facilitator report and

 9   recommendation from the certificate holder.

10       Is there any discussion on that, or questions?

11                     CHAIR BECKETT:  None at this time,

12   it appears.

13                     MS. MOON:  All right.  Thank you.

14       As the certificate holder is not proposing

15   primary infrastructure within the 0.6-, or one

16   kilometer, to two-mile buffer of Nest A, the Council

17   does not need to make a determination on this nest at

18   this time.

19       However, if the Council would like to make a

20   determination on this nest, staff recommend that

21   primary infrastructure be allowed within the 0.6- to

22   two-mile buffer.

23       Are there any discussion or questions on that?

24                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Brewster.

25                     MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey
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 1   Brewster.

 2       Is there a benefit to making a decision on that

 3   at this point?  If no determination is needed,

 4   perhaps it can be held off.

 5                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Do you want to

 6   answer that?

 7                     MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.  Council

 8   Member Brewster, I -- yeah, as I see it, there's

 9   no -- because there's no micro-siting corridor for

10   turbines or any primary infrastructure that's

11   currently approved in that area, in the radius of

12   that, the certificate holder would need to come back

13   and amend the SCA to allow for that.  So it could

14   be -- this question would only really become relevant

15   if and when that were to occur.  So if you don't have

16   to make that decision, I would recommend that you not

17   make that decision.

18                     MS. BREWSTER:  Thanks.

19                     MS. MOON:  Any further questions on

20   that?  I'll move forward.

21       So staff recommend applying the two-mile buffer

22   for nests represented by letters B, C, D, E, and F.

23   And based on a Council discussion, staff will prepare

24   a draft resolution.  So once you guys have a

25   discussion and respond to us on your outcome of that
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 1   discussion, I can prepare a draft resolution to the

 2   Council.

 3       And so I want to leave it open right now for you

 4   to discuss the nests at B, C, D, E, and F and that

 5   recommendation to apply a two-mile buffer.

 6       Do you have any questions on that?

 7                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  And the 39 nests

 8   in Nest A.

 9                     MS. MOON:  Oh.  Yes.  And the 39

10   nests in Nest A -- or, I mean --

11                     MR. GREENE:  Yeah.

12                     MS. MOON:  -- Circle A.  Yeah.

13                     MR. GREENE:  We would request that

14   the Council make a determination on the application

15   of Species-5 for all 45 nests that are -- or sorry --

16   for 44 of the 45 nests that are subject to Species-5.

17                     MR. THOMPSON:  If I -- if I may

18   add, just to -- I don't think -- we're certainly not

19   looking for a final decision today.  We're -- I think

20   what staff's looking for is just, you know, if the

21   Council is comfortable with discussing initial

22   thoughts on this, just to get a sense of where the

23   opinion of the Council members are at this point,

24   that would help with drafting a decisional document

25   for a decision at a subsequent meeting.
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 1                     MR. GREENE:  Thank you.

 2                     MS. MOON:  Yes.  Thanks, Jon, for

 3   putting it so clearly.

 4                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Other Council

 5   members?  Comments or feedback for the staff at this

 6   point?

 7       Council Member Pamplin.

 8                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

 9       At this point, I'm very comfortable with the

10   resolution bringing forward to the Council as you've

11   described, Ms. Moon.  I just want to express my

12   appreciation to the PTAG members and the staff for --

13   it's clearly some tough discussions.  And appreciate

14   that you-all are framing this discussion and these

15   recommendations to the Council for us to make a

16   decision here in the next month, I believe.  So thank

17   you.

18                     MS. MOON:  Thank you.

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Other comments from

20   Council members?

21                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  I

22   would echo that sentiment from Council Member

23   Pamplin.  I appreciate all of the work put in by

24   staff and members of the PTAG in considering all of

25   the information that need to be processed for that.

0043

 1       I -- the 39 nests is a easy decision.  Consensus

 2   was made.  It sounds like habitat and nest

 3   availability were identified.  I support that

 4   decision.

 5       As for the Nests B through F -- again, having

 6   read through all of the materials and appreciating

 7   the robust discussion and deliberation by the PTAG --

 8   I agree with the recommendation from staff to stick

 9   with the two-mile radius buffers on those nests.

10                     MS. MOON:  All right.  Thank you,

11   both, Council Member Pamplin and Council Member

12   Brewster, and Jon, for supporting this

13   recommendation.

14       So based on Council discussion, staff --

15                     CHAIR BECKETT:  I'm sorry,

16   Ms. Moon.  It looks like --

17                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  There might be

18   more Council members.

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  -- Council Levitt

20   has his hand raised.  And I believe one other as

21   well.

22                     MR. LEVITT:  Yes.  I also want to

23   echo what the previous two Council members said.  I'm

24   supportive of the staff recommendation, and I deeply

25   appreciate all of the technical work that went into
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 1   both the PTAG and EFSEC staff coming to these

 2   conclusions.  So, yeah, just wanted to share my

 3   sentiment.  Thank you.

 4                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Ms. Barker or

 5   Ms. Brewster, can you tell me whose hand is up.

 6   Because my screen is off.

 7                     MS. BARKER:  Yes.  It's Elizabeth

 8   Osborne.

 9                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Ah.  Council

10   Osborne, please.

11                     MS. OSBORNE:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

12       I think everyone will sense a theme here.  I also

13   am in support of staff developing a resolution as

14   described, consistent with the staff recommendation,

15   and also would like to express my appreciation for

16   the work of staff and the PTAG to provide the Council

17   with the advice that they have.  I know it was a lot

18   of work, and I'm very appreciative of that effort.

19   So thank you.

20                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

21       Any other comments from Council members for the

22   Horse Heaven project?

23       Thank you for letting me "I spy" on your...

24                     MS. BREWSTER:  Yeah, sure.

25                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Are there
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 1   other comments from the staff or Council in response

 2   to what you've heard here from Council members for

 3   Horse Heaven?

 4       And, again, soon the last call on comments from

 5   the Horse Heaven Council members, in case anyone

 6   changes their mind in the next minute.  Staff first

 7   or Council, any closing comments or questions of

 8   Council's feedback?

 9                     MS. MOON:  I don't have any

10   questions.  I can summarize, though.  I can provide a

11   summary of what I heard Council...

12                     CHAIR BECKETT:  I think generally

13   that's good practice from a procedural standpoint.

14                     MS. MOON:  Okay.  So based on the

15   Council discussion -- and I apologize for not seeing

16   that there were hands raised online -- that staff

17   will prepare a draft resolution stating that Council

18   will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for the 39 nests

19   on which the PTAG reached consensus.  And the Council

20   will implement the two-mile buffer for the following

21   nests:  Nests A, B, C -- I mean, I'm sorry.  Not A.

22   I'm sorry.  A is -- let me retract.

23       Staff will draft a resolution stating that the

24   Council will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for

25   Nest A.  And then the Council will implement a
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 1   two-mile buffer for Nests B, C, D, E, and F.  This

 2   draft resolution will be posted for public comment

 3   ahead of Council action at the next Council meeting.

 4       Sean.

 5                     MR. GREENE:  One point of

 6   clarification.  I believe the Council indicated that

 7   they will not be making a determination on --

 8                     MS. MOON:  A.

 9                     MR. GREENE:  They are not -- they

10   are following staff's recommendation to not suggest a

11   determination on Nest A.

12                     MS. MOON:  Yes.  Correct.

13                     MR. GREENE:  Is that correct?

14                     MS. MOON:  Thank you, Sean.

15                     MR. GREENE:  Thank you.

16                     MS. MOON:  Thank you for tracking

17   that.

18       Anything else?

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Any further

20   restatements?  Since, understandably, we've had a

21   little, you know, churn in the restatements.  Did we

22   capture it all, Amy, from your standpoint?

23                     MS. MOON:  I think we captured it

24   all, and it will be in our draft resolution to --

25                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Yes.
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 1                     MS. MOON:  -- to you.  Yeah.

 2                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So I think that

 3   spells out our next steps, is to draft this.  And we

 4   will, as Ms. Moon stated, provide this to Council and

 5   for public comment ahead of the October meeting.  And

 6   I believe we have additional update about a request

 7   from Scout with relation to the October meeting.

 8                     MS. MOON:  Yeah.  Yeah.  Thank you,

 9   Ami Hafkemeyer.

10       Yeah, Scout submitted a letter to EFSEC,

11   requesting a special meeting to make -- to make this

12   decision as soon as possible.  This decision that

13   we've just been discussing.  But staff will need some

14   time to prepare that draft resolution and post for

15   comment.

16       So in looking at the Council's availability ahead

17   of the regularly scheduled October 15th meeting, it

18   may be difficult to gather a quorum of Council

19   members to vote.  So if the Council would like to and

20   are able to move existing commitments around, staff

21   can work to schedule something at the end of the week

22   prior to the regularly scheduled October Council

23   meeting.  So that would be, like, potentially a

24   meeting on October 9th or 10th, if the Council wants

25   to support that or wants to meet.
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 1                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Well,

 2   Council, any initial feedback?  I realize you may

 3   need to look at calendars or reflect on that rather

 4   than here in the public session.

 5       I would note that, either way, how that relates

 6   to public comment period should not be taken lightly,

 7   obviously.  So I would just observe procedurally,

 8   knowing what that comment plan would look like for an

 9   earlier date versus October 15th would be important

10   to do very quickly if not here today.

11       But more importantly, Council for the Horse

12   Heaven project, any further feedback to Amy Moon or

13   Ami Hafkemeyer's comments and questions?

14       Council Brewster.

15                     MS. BREWSTER:  I would say, if we

16   need the meeting prior to the October regularly

17   scheduled meeting, I would be able to make myself

18   available if needed.

19                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Pamplin.

20                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks.  Thanks,

21   Mr. Chair.

22       Yeah, I'm just -- completely understand the

23   project proponent's request for a special meeting.

24   You know, October 10th versus October 15th I just

25   don't think is, you know, in the scheme of timelines
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 1   here, the five days is necessary to schedule a

 2   special meeting.  I know my calendar is completely

 3   slammed.  And so I'd be asking, if we do something,

 4   it be an after-hours meeting.  And I'm fine with

 5   that.  And I'm sorry if that's an inconvenience for

 6   others.  But 5:00 meetings are great for me.  My

 7   schedule's usually pretty open.

 8       But having said that, this is also an opportunity

 9   for the public comment.  So rather than having an

10   additional public comment period outside of another

11   timeline, I just -- I don't know if the juice is

12   worth the squeeze there.  So unless there's just a

13   complete traffic jam on your agenda for October at

14   the regularly scheduled meeting, I suggest we just

15   have this decision come forward at the regular

16   October meeting.  Thanks.

17                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.

18       Are there other online Council members who wish

19   to comment?

20       Thank you, Council Brewster.  Technical issue

21   here on my computer, it looks like.

22       Seeing none.  Okay.

23       I think that concludes feedback to the staff on

24   Horse Heaven.

25       Any other comments or questions of staff to the
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 1   Council for Horse Heaven?

 2                     MS. MOON:  I don't have anything

 3   further.

 4                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Then we will

 5   conclude the Horse Heaven project discussion.

 6       And before we adjourn, I had one update from a

 7   Council membership standpoint that I wanted to turn

 8   this to Council Levitt from the Department of Ecology

 9   to share a few updates on his membership of the

10   Council.  So Council Levitt.

11                     MR. LEVITT:  Thank you, Chair.

12       Yeah, this is Eli Levitt, Ecology's current

13   Council member.  As of October 1st, Ecology has put

14   forth a recommendation for a new Council member.

15   That will be Blake Nelson.  He's a section manager in

16   Ecology's solid waste management program.

17       I just want to take a moment to say thank you for

18   the honor and privilege for serving as a Council

19   member.  I appreciate the work of the Council, Chair

20   Beckett, Chair Drew in the past, and others who have

21   helped me through this process of being a Council

22   member.  You know, I do really think the role that we

23   serve is an important role, bringing our agency

24   expertise and knowledge and trying to apply it to all

25   of these proposals as well as current projects.
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 1       I'm hopeful that the Council will continue with

 2   EFSEC staff to look at the public comment process and

 3   making sure that people feel both heard and seen

 4   through that public comment process, whether it's

 5   meetings in person or written public comment.  So

 6   we've been looking at that lately, and I do think

 7   some of the improvements we're putting on paper

 8   should be quite helpful.

 9       I do also want to briefly advocate that I hope

10   the Council and EFSEC staff continue to do site

11   visits and get out regularly to those places where

12   projects are proposed or even ongoing.  I think it's

13   an excellent way to make sure we're understanding

14   everything about our project as well as getting to

15   know community members and leaders and those who are

16   interested and/or concerned in projects.

17       You know, this site visit tradition, it goes back

18   a long time.  When I first started at Ecology, Hedia

19   Adelsman, once a Council member for Ecology, mentored

20   me briefly.  And, you know, I remember her coming

21   back with just the stories of riding in vans and

22   minivans, buses, to go to various places in the state

23   and meet with people one-on-one.  And that's a really

24   important part of our process, getting to know people

25   in the communities.
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 1       So, again, thank you for the privilege of serving

 2   on the Council, and I wish -- I wish everyone the

 3   best of luck as we continue this process moving

 4   forward.

 5                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Levitt,

 6   thank you very much for your service as well as the

 7   update and update on Blake Nelson beginning to serve

 8   on October 1st on the EFSEC Council as part of -- as

 9   the Department of Ecology's representative.

10       And I personally want to thank you for your time

11   and helping me onboard as the new chair as well as

12   your time and service, especially on things like

13   Horse Heaven, given the discussion today.  So that

14   amongst many projects.  So it's been a pleasure, and

15   we thank you.

16       If there are other Council comments to add to

17   mine, I'll certainly open that up for any further

18   comment.

19       And I should note, Eli, that we will -- Council

20   Member Levitt, that we ask that you agree to return

21   for a proper thank-you at a brief future cameo

22   appearance at one of our regular meetings.

23       Sorry, Council Brewster.

24                     MR. LEVITT:  Sounds good.

25                     MS. BREWSTER:  This is --
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 1                     MR. LEVITT:  Thank you.

 2                     MS. BREWSTER:  -- Stacey Brewster.

 3   Council Levitt, it has been a pleasure serving with

 4   you.  I've appreciated your time on the Council.  And

 5   I'm sorry to see you go, but I'll look forward to

 6   meeting your replacement.

 7                     MR. LEVITT:  Thank you.

 8                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

 9       Just looking for other hands.  And I finally see

10   another screen I should have been looking at earlier.

11       All right.  Well, with that, again, thank you,

12   Council Levitt.  And we wish you well in your

13   continued juggling of many issues, which we know is

14   certainly part of your consideration here.  So we

15   will miss you, as was said.

16       Are there any other closing Council comments

17   before we adjourn?

18       All right.  Seeing none.

19       Ms. Hafkemeyer, any closing comments on behalf of

20   the staff?  And it's okay if not, but thought I would

21   ask.

22                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  I don't have

23   anything further.  Thank you.

24                     CHAIR BECKETT:  All right.

25   Excellent.  Well, then we are adjourned.  Thank you,
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		265						LN		11		1		false		           1      agenda from the Council?				false

		266						LN		11		2		false		           2          Hearing none.  All those in favor of approving				false

		267						LN		11		3		false		           3      the agenda, say "aye."				false

		268						LN		11		4		false		           4                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		269						LN		11		5		false		           5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?				false

		270						LN		11		6		false		           6          Agenda is approved.				false

		271						LN		11		7		false		           7          Moving on to approval of minutes.  Council, we				false

		272						LN		11		8		false		           8      have the minutes before us.  Is there a motion to				false

		273						LN		11		9		false		           9      approve the minutes?				false

		274						LN		11		10		false		          10                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.				false

		275						LN		11		11		false		          11      So moved.				false

		276						LN		11		12		false		          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.				false

		277						LN		11		13		false		          13          Second?				false

		278						LN		11		14		false		          14                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Second.				false

		279						LN		11		15		false		          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council				false

		280						LN		11		16		false		          16      Pamplin.				false

		281						LN		11		17		false		          17          The minutes are on the table.  Are there any				false

		282						LN		11		18		false		          18      changes or amendments to the minutes from Council?				false

		283						LN		11		19		false		          19                        MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey				false

		284						LN		11		20		false		          20      Brewster.  I have one change.				false

		285						LN		11		21		false		          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Please.				false

		286						LN		11		22		false		          22                        MS. BREWSTER:  On Page 27, Line 24,				false

		287						LN		11		23		false		          23      the word is "needs."  Should be changed to "meets,"				false

		288						LN		11		24		false		          24      m-e-e-t-s.				false

		289						LN		11		25		false		          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council				false

		290						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		291						LN		12		1		false		           1      Brewster.				false

		292						LN		12		2		false		           2          Are there other -- I'm sure that will be taken as				false

		293						LN		12		3		false		           3      a friendly amendment.				false

		294						LN		12		4		false		           4          Are there any other comments or changes?				false

		295						LN		12		5		false		           5          Okay.  Then hearing none, we will treat that				false

		296						LN		12		6		false		           6      suggestion as a friendly amendment.				false

		297						LN		12		7		false		           7          And all in favor of approving the minutes as				false

		298						LN		12		8		false		           8      amended, please say "aye."				false

		299						LN		12		9		false		           9                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		300						LN		12		10		false		          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed, say "nay."				false

		301						LN		12		11		false		          11          Minutes are approved.  Thank you.				false

		302						LN		12		12		false		          12          Moving on to our project updates.				false

		303						LN		12		13		false		          13          Kittitas Valley wind project.  Mr. Caseday.				false

		304						LN		12		14		false		          14                        MR. CASEDAY:  Yes.  Good afternoon,				false

		305						LN		12		15		false		          15      Chair Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  I'm sorry				false

		306						LN		12		16		false		          16      that I did not call roll call, but this is Jarred				false

		307						LN		12		17		false		          17      Caseday with EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley				false

		308						LN		12		18		false		          18      wind power project.				false

		309						LN		12		19		false		          19          And we had nothing nonroutine to report for the				false

		310						LN		12		20		false		          20      period.				false

		311						LN		12		21		false		          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		312						LN		12		22		false		          22          Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.				false

		313						LN		12		23		false		          23      Ms. Galbraith.				false

		314						LN		12		24		false		          24                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Yes.				false

		315						LN		12		25		false		          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Galbraith.				false

		316						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		317						LN		13		1		false		           1                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Thank you, Chair				false

		318						LN		13		2		false		           2      Beckett, Council members, and EFSEC staff.  This is				false

		319						LN		13		3		false		           3      Jennifer Galbraith from Puget Sound Energy				false

		320						LN		13		4		false		           4      representing the Wild Horse wind facility.				false

		321						LN		13		5		false		           5          I have a few updates for this reporting period.				false

		322						LN		13		6		false		           6      First, the Wild Horse Technical Advisory Committee				false

		323						LN		13		7		false		           7      met on August 21st for the annual meeting.  The				false

		324						LN		13		8		false		           8      meeting was held jointly with the Wild Horse				false

		325						LN		13		9		false		           9      coordinated resource management group to review				false

		326						LN		13		10		false		          10      history, agreements, processes, and results,				false

		327						LN		13		11		false		          11      upgrades, and management since inception of the Wild				false

		328						LN		13		12		false		          12      Horse CRM in 2006.				false

		329						LN		13		13		false		          13          This was an informational meeting.  There were no				false

		330						LN		13		14		false		          14      items that required formal actions or recommendations				false

		331						LN		13		15		false		          15      from the TAC for the Council's consideration.				false

		332						LN		13		16		false		          16          For the second update, as requested in a letter				false

		333						LN		13		17		false		          17      received from Ami Hafkemeyer, EFSEC director of				false

		334						LN		13		18		false		          18      siting and compliance, PSE provided a status update				false

		335						LN		13		19		false		          19      on our plans to install FAA-approved light-mitigating				false

		336						LN		13		20		false		          20      technology at Wild Horse in accordance with new				false

		337						LN		13		21		false		          21      legislative requirements to reduce light pollution at				false

		338						LN		13		22		false		          22      wind energy facilities in Washington State.				false

		339						LN		13		23		false		          23          As required by the RCW, PSE will apply to the FAA				false

		340						LN		13		24		false		          24      prior to January 1st, 2028, and will install a new				false

		341						LN		13		25		false		          25      light-mitigating system within 24 months of receiving				false

		342						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		343						LN		14		1		false		           1      FAA approval.				false

		344						LN		14		2		false		           2          And for the final update, as of today, there has				false

		345						LN		14		3		false		           3      been no change to the damaged wind turbine tower				false

		346						LN		14		4		false		           4      initially reported to the Council on July 14th.  We				false

		347						LN		14		5		false		           5      continue to monitor the turbine 24/7 and are				false

		348						LN		14		6		false		           6      developing plans to safely decommission the tower				false

		349						LN		14		7		false		           7      following the wildfire season.  Emergency responders				false

		350						LN		14		8		false		           8      remain on standby in the event of tower failure, and				false

		351						LN		14		9		false		           9      the site will remain closed to the publ- -- pubic				false

		352						LN		14		10		false		          10      access for the remainder of 2025.				false

		353						LN		14		11		false		          11          Thank you very much.				false

		354						LN		14		12		false		          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much				false

		355						LN		14		13		false		          13      for the update.				false

		356						LN		14		14		false		          14          Any questions or comments from Council?				false

		357						LN		14		15		false		          15          Okay.  Hearing none.				false

		358						LN		14		16		false		          16          Moving on to Chehalis Generation Facility.				false

		359						LN		14		17		false		          17      Mr. Smith and Randolph, Sara Randolph.				false

		360						LN		14		18		false		          18                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Chair				false

		361						LN		14		19		false		          19      Beckett, Council members, and staff.  For the record,				false

		362						LN		14		20		false		          20      this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Chehalis.				false

		363						LN		14		21		false		          21          The facility update is provided in your packet.				false

		364						LN		14		22		false		          22      Last month, it was discussed that the flow level of				false

		365						LN		14		23		false		          23      the Chehalis River, the facility's water source, had				false

		366						LN		14		24		false		          24      dropped below 165 cubic feet per second.  With enough				false

		367						LN		14		25		false		          25      rainfall, the facility was able to resume withdrawal				false

		368						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		369						LN		15		1		false		           1      of water, that they did not need to purchase water to				false

		370						LN		15		2		false		           2      maintain operations.  As a result, a special Council				false

		371						LN		15		3		false		           3      meeting to take up action to approve purchase of				false

		372						LN		15		4		false		           4      water from the City was not needed.				false

		373						LN		15		5		false		           5          Staff met with Chehalis facility to develop a				false

		374						LN		15		6		false		           6      plan for anticipating Council action during periods				false

		375						LN		15		7		false		           7      of low river flow.  The facility will notify EFSEC as				false

		376						LN		15		8		false		           8      soon as they begin using their reserves, giving us				false

		377						LN		15		9		false		           9      earlier notice than in the past.  Staff will also				false

		378						LN		15		10		false		          10      communicate with the facility periodically, while				false

		379						LN		15		11		false		          11      reserves are being used, to track the potential need				false

		380						LN		15		12		false		          12      for Council action.				false

		381						LN		15		13		false		          13          This approach will be used for the next two to				false

		382						LN		15		14		false		          14      three years.  However, if the plan proves				false

		383						LN		15		15		false		          15      insufficient, staff will reopen discussions with the				false

		384						LN		15		16		false		          16      facility and may propose addressing the issue through				false

		385						LN		15		17		false		          17      an amendment to the site certification agreement, or				false

		386						LN		15		18		false		          18      the SCA.  Thank you.				false

		387						LN		15		19		false		          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very				false

		388						LN		15		20		false		          20      much.				false

		389						LN		15		21		false		          21          And I don't believe we had Jeremy Smith with us				false

		390						LN		15		22		false		          22      today.  I just wanted to confirm.				false

		391						LN		15		23		false		          23                        MS. RANDOLPH:  I didn't hear him on				false

		392						LN		15		24		false		          24      the line.				false

		393						LN		15		25		false		          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.  Okay.  Thank				false

		394						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		395						LN		16		1		false		           1      you.  And thank you, again, for the update.				false

		396						LN		16		2		false		           2          Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Eric --				false

		397						LN		16		3		false		           3      Mr. Pace, if you're on, as well as then followed by				false

		398						LN		16		4		false		           4      Sara Randolph again.				false

		399						LN		16		5		false		           5                        MR. PACE:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		400						LN		16		6		false		           6      Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  Eric Pace				false

		401						LN		16		7		false		           7      reporting for Grays Harbor.				false

		402						LN		16		8		false		           8          Grays Harbor Energy does not have anything				false

		403						LN		16		9		false		           9      nonroutine to report for the period.				false

		404						LN		16		10		false		          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,				false

		405						LN		16		11		false		          11      Mr. Pace.				false

		406						LN		16		12		false		          12          Ms. Randolph?				false

		407						LN		16		13		false		          13                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  Chair Beckett,				false

		408						LN		16		14		false		          14      Council members, and staff, for the record again,				false

		409						LN		16		15		false		          15      this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays				false

		410						LN		16		16		false		          16      Harbor.				false

		411						LN		16		17		false		          17          The facility update is provided in your packet.				false

		412						LN		16		18		false		          18      There are two items that will be discussed for the				false

		413						LN		16		19		false		          19      Council.  First is the National Pollutant Discharge				false

		414						LN		16		20		false		          20      Elimination System, or NPDES, permit renewal.  And				false

		415						LN		16		21		false		          21      second is the air operating permit, or the AOP,				false

		416						LN		16		22		false		          22      renewal.				false

		417						LN		16		23		false		          23          EFSEC received NPDES permit renewal application				false

		418						LN		16		24		false		          24      from the facility on December 17th, 2023, and permit				false

		419						LN		16		25		false		          25      ending June 30th, 2024, and has continued to operate				false

		420						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		421						LN		17		1		false		           1      under an administrative extension which was approved				false

		422						LN		17		2		false		           2      by EFSEC for the previous NPDES permit in accordance				false

		423						LN		17		3		false		           3      with Washington Administrative Code, or WAC,				false

		424						LN		17		4		false		           4      173.220.180.				false

		425						LN		17		5		false		           5          Grays Harbor submitted an engineering report				false

		426						LN		17		6		false		           6      which was followed by several rounds of a review and				false

		427						LN		17		7		false		           7      coordination between the EFSEC staff and the				false

		428						LN		17		8		false		           8      facility.  EFSEC approved the engineering report on				false

		429						LN		17		9		false		           9      April 2nd and has been working with our contractor at				false

		430						LN		17		10		false		          10      Ecology to develop the NPDES renewal permit.				false

		431						LN		17		11		false		          11          Staff have made a tentative determination to				false

		432						LN		17		12		false		          12      issue the following public comment.  Will bring the				false

		433						LN		17		13		false		          13      comments and documents to Council for vote on final				false

		434						LN		17		14		false		          14      issuance after the comment period.  Staff recommend				false

		435						LN		17		15		false		          15      that the comment period begins on September 29th and				false

		436						LN		17		16		false		          16      continue for 30 days, ending at close of business on				false

		437						LN		17		17		false		          17      October 28th.				false

		438						LN		17		18		false		          18          A public meeting is not planned for this comment				false

		439						LN		17		19		false		          19      period.  Historically, public meetings for the				false

		440						LN		17		20		false		          20      facility's permits have not been attended by the				false

		441						LN		17		21		false		          21      public, and a meeting is not required.  However, we				false

		442						LN		17		22		false		          22      will have one if requested.				false

		443						LN		17		23		false		          23          If there are any questions on any technical				false

		444						LN		17		24		false		          24      aspects of the permit, our contractors with Ecology				false

		445						LN		17		25		false		          25      are here and able to address any concerns.				false

		446						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		447						LN		18		1		false		           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any				false

		448						LN		18		2		false		           2      question or comment?  I'll check on my screen here				false

		449						LN		18		3		false		           3      again since we have some of our members online.				false

		450						LN		18		4		false		           4          Okay.  I don't think so.  So moving --				false

		451						LN		18		5		false		           5                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Okay.				false

		452						LN		18		6		false		           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- on.  Thank you,				false

		453						LN		18		7		false		           7      Ms. Randolph.				false

		454						LN		18		8		false		           8                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  I'll continue				false

		455						LN		18		9		false		           9      on for the air operating permit, or AOP.				false

		456						LN		18		10		false		          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		457						LN		18		11		false		          11                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Sorry.				false

		458						LN		18		12		false		          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  No.  All good.				false

		459						LN		18		13		false		          13                        MS. RANDOLPH:  The AOP first				false

		460						LN		18		14		false		          14      notification was issued by EFSEC July 17th, 2024.				false

		461						LN		18		15		false		          15      The AOP renewal application was submitted on December				false

		462						LN		18		16		false		          16      11th, 2024, adding in the acid rain permit in with a				false

		463						LN		18		17		false		          17      Title V AOP permit, ending June 17, 2025, and				false

		464						LN		18		18		false		          18      continue to operate under administrative extension.				false

		465						LN		18		19		false		          19          The acid rain permit contains the statement of				false

		466						LN		18		20		false		          20      basis; SO2 allowances under -- allocated under this				false

		467						LN		18		21		false		          21      permit; and NOx requirements for each affected unit;				false

		468						LN		18		22		false		          22      comments, notes, and justifications regarding permit				false

		469						LN		18		23		false		          23      decisions and changes made to the permit application;				false

		470						LN		18		24		false		          24      and any additional requirements or conditions as per				false

		471						LN		18		25		false		          25      WAC 173-406-501, acid rain permit contents, as				false

		472						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		473						LN		19		1		false		           1      adopted by WAC 463-78.				false

		474						LN		19		2		false		           2          The permit application submitted for this source				false

		475						LN		19		3		false		           3      per WAC 173-406-106, standard requirements as adopted				false

		476						LN		19		4		false		           4      by WAC 463-78, the owners and operators of the source				false

		477						LN		19		5		false		           5      must comply with the standard requirements and				false

		478						LN		19		6		false		           6      special provisions set forth in the application.  In				false

		479						LN		19		7		false		           7      accordance with WAC 463-78, general and operating				false

		480						LN		19		8		false		           8      permit regulations for air pollution sources, which				false

		481						LN		19		9		false		           9      adopts WAC 173-406, acid rain regulation, and				false

		482						LN		19		10		false		          10      WAC 173-401, operating permit regulation, is based on				false

		483						LN		19		11		false		          11      the provisions of Title 40, Code of Federal				false

		484						LN		19		12		false		          12      Regulations, or CFR, Parts 72 through 76, which is				false

		485						LN		19		13		false		          13      part of the Title IV of the Clean Air Act.				false

		486						LN		19		14		false		          14          In accordance with WAC 173-406-103, Combustion				false

		487						LN		19		15		false		          15      Turbine Generator No. 1, or CTG 1, and CTG 2 are				false

		488						LN		19		16		false		          16      utility units because they serve generators greater				false

		489						LN		19		17		false		          17      than 25 megawatts and do not qualify for any of the				false

		490						LN		19		18		false		          18      exemptions provided under the WAC 173-406-103.  As				false

		491						LN		19		19		false		          19      such, they are subject to the acid rain requirements				false

		492						LN		19		20		false		          20      under WAC 173-406.				false

		493						LN		19		21		false		          21          In coordination with Olympic Region Clean Air				false

		494						LN		19		22		false		          22      Agency, or ORCAA, staff have reviewed the application				false

		495						LN		19		23		false		          23      materials.  Staff are finalizing documents to put out				false

		496						LN		19		24		false		          24      for public comment and anticipate it to go out for				false

		497						LN		19		25		false		          25      public comment on October 6.				false

		498						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		499						LN		20		1		false		           1          Following public comment period, staff will bring				false

		500						LN		20		2		false		           2      the comments and documents to Council.  If no				false

		501						LN		20		3		false		           3      substantive comments, then it will go to the				false

		502						LN		20		4		false		           4      Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, for EPA to				false

		503						LN		20		5		false		           5      review for 45 days.  Once the EPA has concluded their				false

		504						LN		20		6		false		           6      review, staff will bring the permit back to the				false

		505						LN		20		7		false		           7      Council to vote for issuance.				false

		506						LN		20		8		false		           8          If there are any questions on any technical				false

		507						LN		20		9		false		           9      aspects of the permit, our contractors from ORCAA are				false

		508						LN		20		10		false		          10      here and able to address any concerns.				false

		509						LN		20		11		false		          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,				false

		510						LN		20		12		false		          12      Ms. Randolph.				false

		511						LN		20		13		false		          13                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you.  Thank				false

		512						LN		20		14		false		          14      you.				false

		513						LN		20		15		false		          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any				false

		514						LN		20		16		false		          16      questions or further feedback for the staff?				false

		515						LN		20		17		false		          17      Appreciate the thorough update.				false

		516						LN		20		18		false		          18          Okay.  Hearing and seeing none.  We will move on				false

		517						LN		20		19		false		          19      to Columbia Solar.  Ms. Drachenberg.				false

		518						LN		20		20		false		          20                        MS. DRACHENBERG:  Good afternoon,				false

		519						LN		20		21		false		          21      Chair, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Elizabeth				false

		520						LN		20		22		false		          22      Drachenberg, Columbia Solar.				false

		521						LN		20		23		false		          23          There are no nonroutine updates to report for				false

		522						LN		20		24		false		          24      this period.				false

		523						LN		20		25		false		          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		524						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		525						LN		21		1		false		           1          Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and				false

		526						LN		21		2		false		           2      WNP 1 and 4.  And my understanding is Josh LaPorte is				false

		527						LN		21		3		false		           3      with us to give the update today.				false

		528						LN		21		4		false		           4                        MR. LaPORTE:  That's correct, Chair				false

		529						LN		21		5		false		           5      Beckett.  Thank you.				false

		530						LN		21		6		false		           6          Good afternoon, EFSEC Council and staff.  This is				false

		531						LN		21		7		false		           7      Josh LaPorte for the Columbia Generating Station and				false

		532						LN		21		8		false		           8      Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.				false

		533						LN		21		9		false		           9          The facilities update is included in your packet				false

		534						LN		21		10		false		          10      for both sites, and there are no additional				false

		535						LN		21		11		false		          11      nonroutine updates to report for the month of August				false

		536						LN		21		12		false		          12      for either site.				false

		537						LN		21		13		false		          13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  And I just				false

		538						LN		21		14		false		          14      want to acknowledge the staff's update as well on				false

		539						LN		21		15		false		          15      some of the previous environmental issues of the last				false

		540						LN		21		16		false		          16      meeting.  I assume we have nothing further on that,				false

		541						LN		21		17		false		          17      but let me just double-check with Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		542						LN		21		18		false		          18                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  That's correct.				false

		543						LN		21		19		false		          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  That				false

		544						LN		21		20		false		          20      concludes the update, then.  Unless there were				false

		545						LN		21		21		false		          21      questions from Council.  Seeing none.				false

		546						LN		21		22		false		          22          Moving on, then, to Goose Prairie.  Mr. Jia.				false

		547						LN		21		23		false		          23                        MR. JIA:  Good afternoon, everyone.				false

		548						LN		21		24		false		          24      This is Nelson providing an update for the month of				false

		549						LN		21		25		false		          25      August.				false

		550						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		551						LN		22		1		false		           1          Total generation, approximately 21,667 megawatt				false

		552						LN		22		2		false		           2      hours.  And on some positive news, all of our				false

		553						LN		22		3		false		           3      inverters on-site were fully available for the month				false

		554						LN		22		4		false		           4      of August.  So we were able to fix our A/C breaker				false

		555						LN		22		5		false		           5      issue, which is nice.				false

		556						LN		22		6		false		           6          Otherwise, no other updates from an environmental				false

		557						LN		22		7		false		           7      safety compliance perspective.  Thank you.				false

		558						LN		22		8		false		           8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.				false

		559						LN		22		9		false		           9          Comments?  Hearing none.				false

		560						LN		22		10		false		          10          We will move on to Ostrea Solar.  Mr. Voltz.				false

		561						LN		22		11		false		          11                        MR. VOLTZ:  Thank you, Chair				false

		562						LN		22		12		false		          12      Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is Jon				false

		563						LN		22		13		false		          13      Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing				false

		564						LN		22		14		false		          14      Ostrea Solar project.				false

		565						LN		22		15		false		          15          In the month of August, construction progressed				false

		566						LN		22		16		false		          16      in full.  All scopes are underway.  We received the				false

		567						LN		22		17		false		          17      last of the solar modules.  Those have all been				false

		568						LN		22		18		false		          18      delivered out.  The main power transformer is				false

		569						LN		22		19		false		          19      on-site, set on the pad, preparing for the dress and				false

		570						LN		22		20		false		          20      testing there.  We also received all of the				false

		571						LN		22		21		false		          21      inverters.  All 22 have arrived and been set on the				false

		572						LN		22		22		false		          22      pad.  So we are continuing with install and				false

		573						LN		22		23		false		          23      proceeding toward mechanical completion.				false

		574						LN		22		24		false		          24          Other than that, nothing nonroutine to report for				false

		575						LN		22		25		false		          25      the period.				false

		576						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		577						LN		23		1		false		           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,				false

		578						LN		23		2		false		           2      Mr. Voltz.				false

		579						LN		23		3		false		           3          I would call out one item that was in the monthly				false

		580						LN		23		4		false		           4      update that I thought was bearing calling out, which				false

		581						LN		23		5		false		           5      was just in terms of local outreaches and I would				false

		582						LN		23		6		false		           6      call it a newer neighbor into Yakima County.  The				false

		583						LN		23		7		false		           7      project had found time amidst its construction				false

		584						LN		23		8		false		           8      schedule to participate in the back-to-school drive				false

		585						LN		23		9		false		           9      for Yakima County Schools.  And just thought that was				false

		586						LN		23		10		false		          10      worth noting here in the public session.  So				false

		587						LN		23		11		false		          11      appreciate Cypress Creek's effort in that regard.				false

		588						LN		23		12		false		          12          Unless there's other comments, questions, we will				false

		589						LN		23		13		false		          13      move on to Carriger Solar.  And Ms. Snarski is here				false

		590						LN		23		14		false		          14      to provide an update on that project, including -- I				false

		591						LN		23		15		false		          15      will note for the public that our intent is to signal				false

		592						LN		23		16		false		          16      the process in other upcoming public comment periods.				false

		593						LN		23		17		false		          17      Some of that is a little bit in flux still, I				false

		594						LN		23		18		false		          18      believe, but we'll hear from Ms. Snarski, and she'll				false

		595						LN		23		19		false		          19      fill in the details, so...				false

		596						LN		23		20		false		          20                        MS. SNARSKI:  I'll do my best.				false

		597						LN		23		21		false		          21          Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council				false

		598						LN		23		22		false		          22      members.  For the record, this is Joanne Snarski, the				false

		599						LN		23		23		false		          23      siting specialist for the proposed Carriger Solar				false

		600						LN		23		24		false		          24      facility in Klickitat County.				false

		601						LN		23		25		false		          25          On June 25th, 2025, the Council voted to send a				false

		602						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		603						LN		24		1		false		           1      recommendation to approve the Carriger Solar facility				false

		604						LN		24		2		false		           2      site certification agreement and was subsequently				false

		605						LN		24		3		false		           3      sent to the governor for review.  On August 22nd,				false

		606						LN		24		4		false		           4      2025, Governor Ferguson provided a letter to Chair				false

		607						LN		24		5		false		           5      Beckett, directing the Council to reconsider certain				false

		608						LN		24		6		false		           6      aspects of the draft site certification agreement.				false

		609						LN		24		7		false		           7      The governor outlined the following actions for EFSEC				false

		610						LN		24		8		false		           8      to take.				false

		611						LN		24		9		false		           9          First, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an				false

		612						LN		24		10		false		          10      opportunity to review and provide input on the June				false

		613						LN		24		11		false		          11      19, 2025, memorandum from the EFSEC chair to the				false

		614						LN		24		12		false		          12      EFSEC Council members, describing the chair and the				false

		615						LN		24		13		false		          13      staff's June 4th, 2025, meeting with the tribe.				false

		616						LN		24		14		false		          14          Second, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an				false

		617						LN		24		15		false		          15      opportunity to provide further input on the following				false

		618						LN		24		16		false		          16      five mitigation measures.				false

		619						LN		24		17		false		          17          On the increased setbacks of fencing and solar				false

		620						LN		24		18		false		          18      panels from SR 142 and Knight Road; the increased				false

		621						LN		24		19		false		          19      setbacks on fencing and solar panels on both north				false

		622						LN		24		20		false		          20      and south side of the Department of Natural Resources				false

		623						LN		24		21		false		          21      managed parcel, the installation of further screening				false

		624						LN		24		22		false		          22      tools, such as earthen berms, rock piles, or native				false

		625						LN		24		23		false		          23      vegetation, to further mitigate visual impacts to the				false

		626						LN		24		24		false		          24      users of the north side of the adjacent State-owned				false

		627						LN		24		25		false		          25      parcel, the DNR parcel; the traffic control plan as				false

		628						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		629						LN		25		1		false		           1      required in the SCA, the site certification				false

		630						LN		25		2		false		           2      agreement, to ensure the tribal -- the tribe has				false

		631						LN		25		3		false		           3      access to its TCPs and that they are maintained				false

		632						LN		25		4		false		           4      throughout construction.				false

		633						LN		25		5		false		           5          Finally, the fifth mitigation is that EFSEC will				false

		634						LN		25		6		false		           6      include Yakama Nation in the review of the initial				false

		635						LN		25		7		false		           7      site restoration and the detailed site restoration				false

		636						LN		25		8		false		           8      plans as required in the SCA.				false

		637						LN		25		9		false		           9          In response to the request, the governor's				false

		638						LN		25		10		false		          10      request, on August 26, 2025, Chair Beckett sent a				false

		639						LN		25		11		false		          11      letter to Chairman Gerald Lewis of the Yakama Nation				false

		640						LN		25		12		false		          12      Tribal Council.  Chair Beckett requested the tribe				false

		641						LN		25		13		false		          13      review all of the actions I just described and sent				false

		642						LN		25		14		false		          14      along all of the supporting documentation for that				false

		643						LN		25		15		false		          15      review.				false

		644						LN		25		16		false		          16          In that letter, we requested that the Yakama				false

		645						LN		25		17		false		          17      Nation respond to these requests by September 26th in				false

		646						LN		25		18		false		          18      order to meet a 60-day timeline that was identified				false

		647						LN		25		19		false		          19      by the governor.  Following receipt of additional				false

		648						LN		25		20		false		          20      comments from the Yakama Nation, staff will review				false

		649						LN		25		21		false		          21      and develop response documents or revisions to the				false

		650						LN		25		22		false		          22      draft site certification agreement as appropriate.				false

		651						LN		25		23		false		          23          We expect these decisional documents to be posted				false

		652						LN		25		24		false		          24      for public comment in early October and are currently				false

		653						LN		25		25		false		          25      targeting a comment period from August -- or excuse				false

		654						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		655						LN		26		1		false		           1      me -- October 6th through October 19th.  Staff are				false

		656						LN		26		2		false		           2      proposing a special Council meeting on October 21st				false

		657						LN		26		3		false		           3      for the -- for the purposes of Council action.  And				false

		658						LN		26		4		false		           4      we will provide required public notice for this				false

		659						LN		26		5		false		           5      meeting once these details unfold and are available.				false

		660						LN		26		6		false		           6          That's all I have for now.				false

		661						LN		26		7		false		           7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		662						LN		26		8		false		           8          So just for clarity of not only the record but				false

		663						LN		26		9		false		           9      for those who may be watching, the public, the				false

		664						LN		26		10		false		          10      intended comment period is October 6 through the				false

		665						LN		26		11		false		          11      19th.  That will be published officially, so what I				false

		666						LN		26		12		false		          12      just stated is not yet in the record officially, but				false

		667						LN		26		13		false		          13      that's --				false

		668						LN		26		14		false		          14                        MS. SNARSKI:  Correct.				false

		669						LN		26		15		false		          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- our intent, and				false

		670						LN		26		16		false		          16      so we wanted --				false

		671						LN		26		17		false		          17                        MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.				false

		672						LN		26		18		false		          18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- to signal that				false

		673						LN		26		19		false		          19      as early as we could here in our public meeting				false

		674						LN		26		20		false		          20      today.				false

		675						LN		26		21		false		          21          So, Council, were there other questions, comments				false

		676						LN		26		22		false		          22      you wanted to share as a group and/or back to the				false

		677						LN		26		23		false		          23      staff?				false

		678						LN		26		24		false		          24          Council Pamplin.				false

		679						LN		26		25		false		          25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thank you,				false

		680						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		681						LN		27		1		false		           1      Mr. Chair.				false

		682						LN		27		2		false		           2          Ms. Snarski, is the Council's decision in June to				false

		683						LN		27		3		false		           3      recommend approval of this project to the governor,				false

		684						LN		27		4		false		           4      since the governor wrote a letter -- and hasn't				false

		685						LN		27		5		false		           5      approved it yet -- and laid out a number of				false

		686						LN		27		6		false		           6      conditions, is there an action that we need to take				false

		687						LN		27		7		false		           7      relative to our June decision, or does that decision				false

		688						LN		27		8		false		           8      essentially kind of die on the vine until we act				false

		689						LN		27		9		false		           9      again at the October meeting?				false

		690						LN		27		10		false		          10                        MS. SNARSKI:  I think that's kind				false

		691						LN		27		11		false		          11      of a legal question.  Maybe Jon would better be				false

		692						LN		27		12		false		          12      suited to answer.				false

		693						LN		27		13		false		          13                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, Council Member				false

		694						LN		27		14		false		          14      Pamplin, I'd be happy to venture an answer, then.				false

		695						LN		27		15		false		          15          The section of RCW 80.50, the EFSEC-enabling				false

		696						LN		27		16		false		          16      statutes that talks about the steps that happen with				false

		697						LN		27		17		false		          17      regard to the Council making a recommendation to the				false

		698						LN		27		18		false		          18      governor and then the governor's options thereafter,				false

		699						LN		27		19		false		          19      it basically allows the governor to request that the				false

		700						LN		27		20		false		          20      Council reconsider certain aspects of the site				false

		701						LN		27		21		false		          21      certification agreement.				false

		702						LN		27		22		false		          22          And then thereafter, depending on what decision				false

		703						LN		27		23		false		          23      the Council makes, to return the site certification				false

		704						LN		27		24		false		          24      agreement with any revisions that you make.  It				false

		705						LN		27		25		false		          25      doesn't talk about amending the recommendation or				false

		706						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		707						LN		28		1		false		           1      anything of that sort.  It's just the only thing that				false

		708						LN		28		2		false		           2      the statute speaks to is just returning the site				false

		709						LN		28		3		false		           3      certification agreement that the governor has asked				false

		710						LN		28		4		false		           4      you to reconsider parts of.				false

		711						LN		28		5		false		           5          The recommendation, I wouldn't say it died on the				false

		712						LN		28		6		false		           6      vine.  It's -- you've made your recommendation, and				false

		713						LN		28		7		false		           7      then this is just a follow-on process to focus in on				false

		714						LN		28		8		false		           8      certain aspects of it and decide whether you want to				false

		715						LN		28		9		false		           9      change them at the governor's request and then make				false

		716						LN		28		10		false		          10      those amendments to the SCA, if you choose to do so.				false

		717						LN		28		11		false		          11          Does that answer your question?				false

		718						LN		28		12		false		          12                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah.  Thanks to you				false

		719						LN		28		13		false		          13      both.  And I wasn't trying to -- please don't infer				false

		720						LN		28		14		false		          14      into the substance of the question.  It was just a				false

		721						LN		28		15		false		          15      policy process --				false

		722						LN		28		16		false		          16                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.  Yeah.				false

		723						LN		28		17		false		          17                        MR. PAMPLIN:  -- relative to an				false

		724						LN		28		18		false		          18      action EFSEC took and then do we need to kind of				false

		725						LN		28		19		false		          19      unring that bell or just -- or essentially ring it				false

		726						LN		28		20		false		          20      again after we see the -- we have the meeting on				false

		727						LN		28		21		false		          21      October 21st.  Thank you.				false

		728						LN		28		22		false		          22                        MR. THOMPSON:  Well, yeah, if I --				false

		729						LN		28		23		false		          23      actually, if I can follow up, Council Member Pamplin.				false

		730						LN		28		24		false		          24          Yeah, it's -- I think it's a good practice and				false

		731						LN		28		25		false		          25      advisable for you to -- to explain what -- what				false

		732						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		733						LN		29		1		false		           1      you've done in response to the governor's direction.				false

		734						LN		29		2		false		           2      And the form that would generally take is a Council				false

		735						LN		29		3		false		           3      resolution, so -- that would -- that would explain,				false

		736						LN		29		4		false		           4      yeah, just explain what you've -- what you've -- what				false

		737						LN		29		5		false		           5      you've done, what you've chosen to do or not do with				false

		738						LN		29		6		false		           6      respect to the terms of the SCA.  I think that would				false

		739						LN		29		7		false		           7      be the --				false

		740						LN		29		8		false		           8                        MR. PAMPLIN:  So it'd be a revised				false

		741						LN		29		9		false		           9      SCA or an amended SCA at that time.				false

		742						LN		29		10		false		          10                        MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.				false

		743						LN		29		11		false		          11                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks.				false

		744						LN		29		12		false		          12                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  If I could add,				false

		745						LN		29		13		false		          13      staff are anticipating developing a resolution to				false

		746						LN		29		14		false		          14      capture the process we're engaging in right now and				false

		747						LN		29		15		false		          15      proposing that that would go for public comment and				false

		748						LN		29		16		false		          16      Council review along with, should there be any				false

		749						LN		29		17		false		          17      appropriate revisions to the SCA, both of those would				false

		750						LN		29		18		false		          18      be provided together, depending on what ultimately				false

		751						LN		29		19		false		          19      comes back -- comes back as comments from Yakama				false

		752						LN		29		20		false		          20      Nation, which remains to be seen.				false

		753						LN		29		21		false		          21          And so the resolution is our plan to sort of				false

		754						LN		29		22		false		          22      capture this process, and then any -- any changes or				false

		755						LN		29		23		false		          23      additions to an SCA would also be put out for public				false

		756						LN		29		24		false		          24      comment as well.				false

		757						LN		29		25		false		          25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you.				false

		758						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		759						LN		30		1		false		           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And I would just				false

		760						LN		30		2		false		           2      add that was Ami Hafkemeyer from the EFSEC staff,				false

		761						LN		30		3		false		           3      just for benefit of our minutes.  So thank you for				false

		762						LN		30		4		false		           4      the added context, Ami.				false

		763						LN		30		5		false		           5          Other questions or comments from the Carriger				false

		764						LN		30		6		false		           6      Council?				false

		765						LN		30		7		false		           7          Okay.  Hearing none.  Let me double-check with				false

		766						LN		30		8		false		           8      Adrienne that we don't have online hands I don't see.				false

		767						LN		30		9		false		           9          Okay.  All right.  Then we will move on to the				false

		768						LN		30		10		false		          10      Hop Hill solar project, Mr. Barnes.				false

		769						LN		30		11		false		          11                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair				false

		770						LN		30		12		false		          12      Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,				false

		771						LN		30		13		false		          13      EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.				false

		772						LN		30		14		false		          14          EFSEC staff are awaiting from the applicant's				false

		773						LN		30		15		false		          15      supplemental materials concerning project				false

		774						LN		30		16		false		          16      enlargement.  These materials are needed for a SEPA				false

		775						LN		30		17		false		          17      review and determination of this project.				false

		776						LN		30		18		false		          18          Once supplemental materials are received, we will				false

		777						LN		30		19		false		          19      continue to coordinate and review the application				false

		778						LN		30		20		false		          20      with our contractor, contracted agencies, and tribal				false

		779						LN		30		21		false		          21      governments.				false

		780						LN		30		22		false		          22          Are there any questions?				false

		781						LN		30		23		false		          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, questions				false

		782						LN		30		24		false		          24      on Hop Hill?  That was kind of an interim update,				false

		783						LN		30		25		false		          25      obviously, so...				false

		784						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		785						LN		31		1		false		           1          Seeing none.  We will move on to Wallula Gap.				false

		786						LN		31		2		false		           2      Also Mr. Barnes.				false

		787						LN		31		3		false		           3                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair				false

		788						LN		31		4		false		           4      Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,				false

		789						LN		31		5		false		           5      EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.				false

		790						LN		31		6		false		           6          Staff are working with the applicant to complete				false

		791						LN		31		7		false		           7      supplemental wetland report materials.  Staff are				false

		792						LN		31		8		false		           8      also working with the applicant to identify				false

		793						LN		31		9		false		           9      additional analysis and mitigation following receipt				false

		794						LN		31		10		false		          10      of the TCP study from the Yakama Nation cultural				false

		795						LN		31		11		false		          11      resource program staff.				false

		796						LN		31		12		false		          12          Are there any questions?				false

		797						LN		31		13		false		          13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Comments?				false

		798						LN		31		14		false		          14          Hearing none.  We will move on to Goldeneye				false

		799						LN		31		15		false		          15      battery storage project.  Ms. Snarski.				false

		800						LN		31		16		false		          16                        MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you.  Again,				false

		801						LN		31		17		false		          17      this is Joanne Snarski, the siting specialist for the				false

		802						LN		31		18		false		          18      proposed Goldeneye battery energy storage facility in				false

		803						LN		31		19		false		          19      Skagit County.				false

		804						LN		31		20		false		          20          Most notably, Chair Beckett and project staff				false

		805						LN		31		21		false		          21      members will be traveling to meet with the Upper				false

		806						LN		31		22		false		          22      Skagit Indian Tribe for government-to-government				false

		807						LN		31		23		false		          23      consultation.  The meeting is a special meeting for				false

		808						LN		31		24		false		          24      the tribal council specifically to consult with EFSEC				false

		809						LN		31		25		false		          25      on Goldeneye energy storage project.				false

		810						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		811						LN		32		1		false		           1          It is worth noting, during the scheduling of this				false

		812						LN		32		2		false		           2      consultation, EFSEC made sure the Upper Skagit Tribe				false

		813						LN		32		3		false		           3      was aware that Chair Beckett has recused himself from				false

		814						LN		32		4		false		           4      deliberations and voting on the Council's				false

		815						LN		32		5		false		           5      recommendation to the governor on the Goldeneye BESS				false

		816						LN		32		6		false		           6      project -- or excuse me -- energy storage project.				false

		817						LN		32		7		false		           7          The tribe confirmed that they did not object to				false

		818						LN		32		8		false		           8      Chair Beckett representing EFSEC Council for this				false

		819						LN		32		9		false		           9      consultation.  Acting Chair Brewster will be in				false

		820						LN		32		10		false		          10      attendance, and staff will work with her to develop				false

		821						LN		32		11		false		          11      communications to the Council following the Monday				false

		822						LN		32		12		false		          12      meeting.  I don't think I mentioned the date, but the				false

		823						LN		32		13		false		          13      date is next Monday, the 22nd, September 22nd.				false

		824						LN		32		14		false		          14          Finally, staff are continuing to work with our				false

		825						LN		32		15		false		          15      partnering agencies to review and seek information on				false

		826						LN		32		16		false		          16      the application for site certification.				false

		827						LN		32		17		false		          17          I have no further updates.				false

		828						LN		32		18		false		          18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the				false

		829						LN		32		19		false		          19      updates.				false

		830						LN		32		20		false		          20          I would just add, as the chair who's recused				false

		831						LN		32		21		false		          21      myself on this project in this instance, that Acting				false

		832						LN		32		22		false		          22      Chair Brewster -- the two of us attending that				false

		833						LN		32		23		false		          23      meeting, in this instance Acting Chair Brewster will				false

		834						LN		32		24		false		          24      be the chair by which that input and consultation				false

		835						LN		32		25		false		          25      back to the Council for Goldeneye BESS will be				false

		836						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		837						LN		33		1		false		           1      provided by Acting Chair Brewster.  So just wanted to				false

		838						LN		33		2		false		           2      add that for clarity for the record.				false

		839						LN		33		3		false		           3          Are there other questions or comments on the				false

		840						LN		33		4		false		           4      Goldeneye battery storage project?				false

		841						LN		33		5		false		           5          Any from our local representative?  I don't see				false

		842						LN		33		6		false		           6      any hands.				false

		843						LN		33		7		false		           7          Okay.  Then we will move on to our transmission				false

		844						LN		33		8		false		           8      programatic environmental impact statement.  And				false

		845						LN		33		9		false		           9      Mr. Greene will provide us the update.				false

		846						LN		33		10		false		          10                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you.				false

		847						LN		33		11		false		          11          Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council				false

		848						LN		33		12		false		          12      members.  This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for				false

		849						LN		33		13		false		          13      EFSEC.				false

		850						LN		33		14		false		          14          EFSEC staff and our consultant, WSP, are busy at				false

		851						LN		33		15		false		          15      work putting together the final revisions to the				false

		852						LN		33		16		false		          16      transmission programatic EIS with an anticipated				false

		853						LN		33		17		false		          17      publication date for the final programmatic EIS in				false

		854						LN		33		18		false		          18      early October of this year.				false

		855						LN		33		19		false		          19          Are there any questions?				false

		856						LN		33		20		false		          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any				false

		857						LN		33		21		false		          21      further questions?				false

		858						LN		33		22		false		          22          I know there is a general intent to continue to				false

		859						LN		33		23		false		          23      do some further outreach.  And I'm sorry if I missed				false

		860						LN		33		24		false		          24      a piece in my ear from your update just now, but --				false

		861						LN		33		25		false		          25      but there is an intent to do some integrated				false

		862						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		863						LN		34		1		false		           1      outreach, including with the Department of Ecology,				false

		864						LN		34		2		false		           2      knowing they have their three programmatic				false

		865						LN		34		3		false		           3      environmental impact statements out as well.				false

		866						LN		34		4		false		           4          And so I just want to thank the staff of both				false

		867						LN		34		5		false		           5      agencies for at times what is an added bit of work to				false

		868						LN		34		6		false		           6      try and have that -- that integrated engagement and				false

		869						LN		34		7		false		           7      look forward to just seeing how that --- that				false

		870						LN		34		8		false		           8      ultimately plays out, including, you know, what I				false

		871						LN		34		9		false		           9      would call who are potential first movers that would				false

		872						LN		34		10		false		          10      help us understand how did we do on the effectiveness				false

		873						LN		34		11		false		          11      of the programmatics, which are a lot of work just to				false

		874						LN		34		12		false		          12      bring forward.  So I want to thank everybody for that				false

		875						LN		34		13		false		          13      as well, so...				false

		876						LN		34		14		false		          14                        MR. GREENE:  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		877						LN		34		15		false		          15          We -- we do anticipate doing further outreach in				false

		878						LN		34		16		false		          16      concert with the Department of Ecology once the final				false

		879						LN		34		17		false		          17      programatic EIS is published, and we anticipate				false

		880						LN		34		18		false		          18      continuing our engagement efforts with tribal				false

		881						LN		34		19		false		          19      representatives as projects begin to use the				false

		882						LN		34		20		false		          20      programatic EIS to make sure that it is being used in				false

		883						LN		34		21		false		          21      a manner that is as designed.				false

		884						LN		34		22		false		          22                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.				false

		885						LN		34		23		false		          23      And would encourage that for sure.				false

		886						LN		34		24		false		          24          Okay.  Then we will move on to our Horse Heaven				false

		887						LN		34		25		false		          25      Wind Farm project, which will have an update, but				false

		888						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		889						LN		35		1		false		           1      first and soon we will be recessing to executive				false

		890						LN		35		2		false		           2      session, which I'll speak to in more detail in a				false

		891						LN		35		3		false		           3      moment.				false

		892						LN		35		4		false		           4          But, Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Moon, are there any				false

		893						LN		35		5		false		           5      opening comments you wanted to make before we recess				false

		894						LN		35		6		false		           6      into executive session?				false

		895						LN		35		7		false		           7                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Not at this time,				false

		896						LN		35		8		false		           8      no.  Thank you.				false

		897						LN		35		9		false		           9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.				false

		898						LN		35		10		false		          10                        MS. MOON:  I don't have any.  Thank				false

		899						LN		35		11		false		          11      you.				false

		900						LN		35		12		false		          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  So just for				false

		901						LN		35		13		false		          13      clarity of the public, there will be a further				false

		902						LN		35		14		false		          14      project update upon our return to our public forum				false

		903						LN		35		15		false		          15      here.  And for the record, at this time, the Council				false

		904						LN		35		16		false		          16      will be recessing to executive session for 30				false

		905						LN		35		17		false		          17      minutes -- it's now 2:05 -- as allowed in the Open				false

		906						LN		35		18		false		          18      Public Meeting Act's provision on executive session				false

		907						LN		35		19		false		          19      to discuss litigation to which the party -- agency is				false

		908						LN		35		20		false		          20      a party with EFSEC's legal counsel.  This is				false

		909						LN		35		21		false		          21      necessary to avoid disclosing attorney-client advice				false

		910						LN		35		22		false		          22      and attorney work product pertaining to the decisions				false

		911						LN		35		23		false		          23      before the Council that are subject to litigation.				false

		912						LN		35		24		false		          24          The first part of this discussion will be about				false

		913						LN		35		25		false		          25      the Horse Heaven project litigation, and the second				false

		914						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		915						LN		36		1		false		           1      part pertains to recently filed petitions for				false

		916						LN		36		2		false		           2      judicial review of the Council's amendment to its				false

		917						LN		36		3		false		           3      delegation of authority policy for plans submitted				false

		918						LN		36		4		false		           4      under site certification agreements.				false

		919						LN		36		5		false		           5          Due to my original recusal from this project,				false

		920						LN		36		6		false		           6      Horse Heaven, and the partial connection of the				false

		921						LN		36		7		false		           7      delegation policy to Horse Heaven for which I've also				false

		922						LN		36		8		false		           8      recused myself out of an abundance of caution, I will				false

		923						LN		36		9		false		           9      not participate in the executive session discussion				false

		924						LN		36		10		false		          10      except as an observer.  Any decisions of these issues				false

		925						LN		36		11		false		          11      in general will be made in the Council's open public				false

		926						LN		36		12		false		          12      meeting per statute.  There are no intended decisions				false

		927						LN		36		13		false		          13      on any of these issues for today, just for				false

		928						LN		36		14		false		          14      clarification as well.				false

		929						LN		36		15		false		          15          So with that, we will recess into executive				false

		930						LN		36		16		false		          16      session and will return at 2:40.  So the next public				false

		931						LN		36		17		false		          17      meeting will not begin until at least 2:40.  So thank				false

		932						LN		36		18		false		          18      you.				false

		933						LN		36		19		false		          19                               (Pause in meeting				false

		934						LN		36		20		false		          20                                proceedings from 2:07 p.m.				false

		935						LN		36		21		false		          21                                to 2:41 p.m. for purposes				false

		936						LN		36		22		false		          22                                of executive session.)				false

		937						LN		36		23		false		          23				false

		938						LN		36		24		false		          24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Good afternoon.				false

		939						LN		36		25		false		          25      This is EFSEC Council Chair Beckett just noting we				false

		940						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		941						LN		37		1		false		           1      are gathering back in here.  And I will note at 2:41,				false

		942						LN		37		2		false		           2      we have gavelled back into our regular public				false

		943						LN		37		3		false		           3      session.  I'll get my computer back open here as				false

		944						LN		37		4		false		           4      well.				false

		945						LN		37		5		false		           5          Do we have everyone online that we started with,				false

		946						LN		37		6		false		           6      Ms. Barker?				false

		947						LN		37		7		false		           7                        MS. BARKER:  Yes.				false

		948						LN		37		8		false		           8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  So with				false

		949						LN		37		9		false		           9      that, let me return us to our Horse Heaven project				false

		950						LN		37		10		false		          10      briefing.  And I believe Ms. Moon will kick us off in				false

		951						LN		37		11		false		          11      the project update, and Ms. Hafkemeyer may well soon				false

		952						LN		37		12		false		          12      join in along the way.  So I'll turn this over to				false

		953						LN		37		13		false		          13      both of you.				false

		954						LN		37		14		false		          14                        MS. MOON:  Thank you.				false

		955						LN		37		15		false		          15          Good afternoon, Council Chair Beckett and EFSEC				false

		956						LN		37		16		false		          16      Council members.  I, Amy Moon, am reporting on the				false

		957						LN		37		17		false		          17      Horse Heaven wind project in Benton County.				false

		958						LN		37		18		false		          18          At the August 20th Council meeting, Sean Greene,				false

		959						LN		37		19		false		          19      the State Environmental Policy Act specialist,				false

		960						LN		37		20		false		          20      provided a presentation and information on the				false

		961						LN		37		21		false		          21      Pre-operational Technical Advisory Group, otherwise				false

		962						LN		37		22		false		          22      known as the PTAG, P-T-A-G.  He advised -- he				false

		963						LN		37		23		false		          23      provided information on the Species-5 recommendation.				false

		964						LN		37		24		false		          24          As presented by Mr. Greene, Species-5 has				false

		965						LN		37		25		false		          25      prescriptive mitigation requirements that do not				false

		966						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		967						LN		38		1		false		           1      allow the siting of primary project components within				false

		968						LN		38		2		false		           2      0.6 miles of a documented ferruginous hawk nest and				false

		969						LN		38		3		false		           3      within two miles of a documented ferruginous hawk				false

		970						LN		38		4		false		           4      nest unless the nesting site is no longer available				false

		971						LN		38		5		false		           5      or the foraging habitat within two miles of the nest				false

		972						LN		38		6		false		           6      is no longer viable, with the exception of the east				false

		973						LN		38		7		false		           7      battery energy storage system, or BESS, B-E-S-S, that				false

		974						LN		38		8		false		           8      is specifically exempted.				false

		975						LN		38		9		false		           9          At the August Council meeting, Mr. Greene				false

		976						LN		38		10		false		          10      presented the certificate holder's recommendation,				false

		977						LN		38		11		false		          11      which included recommendations associated with six				false

		978						LN		38		12		false		          12      nests of which the recommendations were not supported				false

		979						LN		38		13		false		          13      unanimously by the PTAG.				false

		980						LN		38		14		false		          14          The August 20th Council meeting closed with open				false

		981						LN		38		15		false		          15      mitigation questions for the Council.  We are here				false

		982						LN		38		16		false		          16      today to offer EFSEC staff recommendations regarding				false

		983						LN		38		17		false		          17      Species-5 mitigation and to request the Council make				false

		984						LN		38		18		false		          18      a determination on the Species-5 mitigation criteria				false

		985						LN		38		19		false		          19      for the nest areas, including the group of 39 where				false

		986						LN		38		20		false		          20      the PTAG reached consensus, and those where consensus				false

		987						LN		38		21		false		          21      was not reached, which are represented by the letters				false

		988						LN		38		22		false		          22      A, B, C, D, E, and F on the confidential figures that				false

		989						LN		38		23		false		          23      you-all, Council, have.				false

		990						LN		38		24		false		          24          So please refer to the confidential figures				false

		991						LN		38		25		false		          25      provided in the Council SharePoint that's at your				false

		992						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		993						LN		39		1		false		           1      disposal, and use these letters in your discussions.				false

		994						LN		39		2		false		           2      Staff also provided a summary document to the Council				false

		995						LN		39		3		false		           3      that may be useful for reference.				false

		996						LN		39		4		false		           4          Are there any questions on those provided				false

		997						LN		39		5		false		           5      documents?  Thank you.				false

		998						LN		39		6		false		           6          EFSEC staff recommend applying the buffer				false

		999						LN		39		7		false		           7      unanimously recommended by the PTAG for the 39 nests				false

		1000						LN		39		8		false		           8      that are identified in the facilitator report and				false

		1001						LN		39		9		false		           9      recommendation from the certificate holder.				false

		1002						LN		39		10		false		          10          Is there any discussion on that, or questions?				false

		1003						LN		39		11		false		          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  None at this time,				false

		1004						LN		39		12		false		          12      it appears.				false

		1005						LN		39		13		false		          13                        MS. MOON:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		1006						LN		39		14		false		          14          As the certificate holder is not proposing				false

		1007						LN		39		15		false		          15      primary infrastructure within the 0.6-, or one				false

		1008						LN		39		16		false		          16      kilometer, to two-mile buffer of Nest A, the Council				false

		1009						LN		39		17		false		          17      does not need to make a determination on this nest at				false

		1010						LN		39		18		false		          18      this time.				false

		1011						LN		39		19		false		          19          However, if the Council would like to make a				false

		1012						LN		39		20		false		          20      determination on this nest, staff recommend that				false

		1013						LN		39		21		false		          21      primary infrastructure be allowed within the 0.6- to				false

		1014						LN		39		22		false		          22      two-mile buffer.				false

		1015						LN		39		23		false		          23          Are there any discussion or questions on that?				false

		1016						LN		39		24		false		          24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Brewster.				false

		1017						LN		39		25		false		          25                        MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey				false

		1018						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1019						LN		40		1		false		           1      Brewster.				false

		1020						LN		40		2		false		           2          Is there a benefit to making a decision on that				false

		1021						LN		40		3		false		           3      at this point?  If no determination is needed,				false

		1022						LN		40		4		false		           4      perhaps it can be held off.				false

		1023						LN		40		5		false		           5                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Do you want to				false

		1024						LN		40		6		false		           6      answer that?				false

		1025						LN		40		7		false		           7                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.  Council				false

		1026						LN		40		8		false		           8      Member Brewster, I -- yeah, as I see it, there's				false

		1027						LN		40		9		false		           9      no -- because there's no micro-siting corridor for				false

		1028						LN		40		10		false		          10      turbines or any primary infrastructure that's				false

		1029						LN		40		11		false		          11      currently approved in that area, in the radius of				false

		1030						LN		40		12		false		          12      that, the certificate holder would need to come back				false

		1031						LN		40		13		false		          13      and amend the SCA to allow for that.  So it could				false

		1032						LN		40		14		false		          14      be -- this question would only really become relevant				false

		1033						LN		40		15		false		          15      if and when that were to occur.  So if you don't have				false

		1034						LN		40		16		false		          16      to make that decision, I would recommend that you not				false

		1035						LN		40		17		false		          17      make that decision.				false

		1036						LN		40		18		false		          18                        MS. BREWSTER:  Thanks.				false

		1037						LN		40		19		false		          19                        MS. MOON:  Any further questions on				false

		1038						LN		40		20		false		          20      that?  I'll move forward.				false

		1039						LN		40		21		false		          21          So staff recommend applying the two-mile buffer				false

		1040						LN		40		22		false		          22      for nests represented by letters B, C, D, E, and F.				false

		1041						LN		40		23		false		          23      And based on a Council discussion, staff will prepare				false

		1042						LN		40		24		false		          24      a draft resolution.  So once you guys have a				false

		1043						LN		40		25		false		          25      discussion and respond to us on your outcome of that				false

		1044						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1045						LN		41		1		false		           1      discussion, I can prepare a draft resolution to the				false

		1046						LN		41		2		false		           2      Council.				false

		1047						LN		41		3		false		           3          And so I want to leave it open right now for you				false

		1048						LN		41		4		false		           4      to discuss the nests at B, C, D, E, and F and that				false

		1049						LN		41		5		false		           5      recommendation to apply a two-mile buffer.				false

		1050						LN		41		6		false		           6          Do you have any questions on that?				false

		1051						LN		41		7		false		           7                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  And the 39 nests				false

		1052						LN		41		8		false		           8      in Nest A.				false

		1053						LN		41		9		false		           9                        MS. MOON:  Oh.  Yes.  And the 39				false

		1054						LN		41		10		false		          10      nests in Nest A -- or, I mean --				false

		1055						LN		41		11		false		          11                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah.				false

		1056						LN		41		12		false		          12                        MS. MOON:  -- Circle A.  Yeah.				false

		1057						LN		41		13		false		          13                        MR. GREENE:  We would request that				false

		1058						LN		41		14		false		          14      the Council make a determination on the application				false

		1059						LN		41		15		false		          15      of Species-5 for all 45 nests that are -- or sorry --				false

		1060						LN		41		16		false		          16      for 44 of the 45 nests that are subject to Species-5.				false

		1061						LN		41		17		false		          17                        MR. THOMPSON:  If I -- if I may				false

		1062						LN		41		18		false		          18      add, just to -- I don't think -- we're certainly not				false

		1063						LN		41		19		false		          19      looking for a final decision today.  We're -- I think				false

		1064						LN		41		20		false		          20      what staff's looking for is just, you know, if the				false

		1065						LN		41		21		false		          21      Council is comfortable with discussing initial				false

		1066						LN		41		22		false		          22      thoughts on this, just to get a sense of where the				false

		1067						LN		41		23		false		          23      opinion of the Council members are at this point,				false

		1068						LN		41		24		false		          24      that would help with drafting a decisional document				false

		1069						LN		41		25		false		          25      for a decision at a subsequent meeting.				false

		1070						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1071						LN		42		1		false		           1                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you.				false

		1072						LN		42		2		false		           2                        MS. MOON:  Yes.  Thanks, Jon, for				false

		1073						LN		42		3		false		           3      putting it so clearly.				false

		1074						LN		42		4		false		           4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Other Council				false

		1075						LN		42		5		false		           5      members?  Comments or feedback for the staff at this				false

		1076						LN		42		6		false		           6      point?				false

		1077						LN		42		7		false		           7          Council Member Pamplin.				false

		1078						LN		42		8		false		           8                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.				false

		1079						LN		42		9		false		           9          At this point, I'm very comfortable with the				false

		1080						LN		42		10		false		          10      resolution bringing forward to the Council as you've				false

		1081						LN		42		11		false		          11      described, Ms. Moon.  I just want to express my				false

		1082						LN		42		12		false		          12      appreciation to the PTAG members and the staff for --				false

		1083						LN		42		13		false		          13      it's clearly some tough discussions.  And appreciate				false

		1084						LN		42		14		false		          14      that you-all are framing this discussion and these				false

		1085						LN		42		15		false		          15      recommendations to the Council for us to make a				false

		1086						LN		42		16		false		          16      decision here in the next month, I believe.  So thank				false

		1087						LN		42		17		false		          17      you.				false

		1088						LN		42		18		false		          18                        MS. MOON:  Thank you.				false

		1089						LN		42		19		false		          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Other comments from				false

		1090						LN		42		20		false		          20      Council members?				false

		1091						LN		42		21		false		          21                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  I				false

		1092						LN		42		22		false		          22      would echo that sentiment from Council Member				false

		1093						LN		42		23		false		          23      Pamplin.  I appreciate all of the work put in by				false

		1094						LN		42		24		false		          24      staff and members of the PTAG in considering all of				false

		1095						LN		42		25		false		          25      the information that need to be processed for that.				false

		1096						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1097						LN		43		1		false		           1          I -- the 39 nests is a easy decision.  Consensus				false

		1098						LN		43		2		false		           2      was made.  It sounds like habitat and nest				false

		1099						LN		43		3		false		           3      availability were identified.  I support that				false

		1100						LN		43		4		false		           4      decision.				false

		1101						LN		43		5		false		           5          As for the Nests B through F -- again, having				false

		1102						LN		43		6		false		           6      read through all of the materials and appreciating				false

		1103						LN		43		7		false		           7      the robust discussion and deliberation by the PTAG --				false

		1104						LN		43		8		false		           8      I agree with the recommendation from staff to stick				false

		1105						LN		43		9		false		           9      with the two-mile radius buffers on those nests.				false

		1106						LN		43		10		false		          10                        MS. MOON:  All right.  Thank you,				false

		1107						LN		43		11		false		          11      both, Council Member Pamplin and Council Member				false

		1108						LN		43		12		false		          12      Brewster, and Jon, for supporting this				false

		1109						LN		43		13		false		          13      recommendation.				false

		1110						LN		43		14		false		          14          So based on Council discussion, staff --				false

		1111						LN		43		15		false		          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I'm sorry,				false

		1112						LN		43		16		false		          16      Ms. Moon.  It looks like --				false

		1113						LN		43		17		false		          17                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  There might be				false

		1114						LN		43		18		false		          18      more Council members.				false

		1115						LN		43		19		false		          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- Council Levitt				false

		1116						LN		43		20		false		          20      has his hand raised.  And I believe one other as				false

		1117						LN		43		21		false		          21      well.				false

		1118						LN		43		22		false		          22                        MR. LEVITT:  Yes.  I also want to				false

		1119						LN		43		23		false		          23      echo what the previous two Council members said.  I'm				false

		1120						LN		43		24		false		          24      supportive of the staff recommendation, and I deeply				false

		1121						LN		43		25		false		          25      appreciate all of the technical work that went into				false

		1122						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1123						LN		44		1		false		           1      both the PTAG and EFSEC staff coming to these				false

		1124						LN		44		2		false		           2      conclusions.  So, yeah, just wanted to share my				false

		1125						LN		44		3		false		           3      sentiment.  Thank you.				false

		1126						LN		44		4		false		           4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ms. Barker or				false

		1127						LN		44		5		false		           5      Ms. Brewster, can you tell me whose hand is up.				false

		1128						LN		44		6		false		           6      Because my screen is off.				false

		1129						LN		44		7		false		           7                        MS. BARKER:  Yes.  It's Elizabeth				false

		1130						LN		44		8		false		           8      Osborne.				false

		1131						LN		44		9		false		           9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ah.  Council				false

		1132						LN		44		10		false		          10      Osborne, please.				false

		1133						LN		44		11		false		          11                        MS. OSBORNE:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.				false

		1134						LN		44		12		false		          12          I think everyone will sense a theme here.  I also				false

		1135						LN		44		13		false		          13      am in support of staff developing a resolution as				false

		1136						LN		44		14		false		          14      described, consistent with the staff recommendation,				false

		1137						LN		44		15		false		          15      and also would like to express my appreciation for				false

		1138						LN		44		16		false		          16      the work of staff and the PTAG to provide the Council				false

		1139						LN		44		17		false		          17      with the advice that they have.  I know it was a lot				false

		1140						LN		44		18		false		          18      of work, and I'm very appreciative of that effort.				false

		1141						LN		44		19		false		          19      So thank you.				false

		1142						LN		44		20		false		          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		1143						LN		44		21		false		          21          Any other comments from Council members for the				false

		1144						LN		44		22		false		          22      Horse Heaven project?				false

		1145						LN		44		23		false		          23          Thank you for letting me "I spy" on your...				false

		1146						LN		44		24		false		          24                        MS. BREWSTER:  Yeah, sure.				false

		1147						LN		44		25		false		          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Are there				false

		1148						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1149						LN		45		1		false		           1      other comments from the staff or Council in response				false

		1150						LN		45		2		false		           2      to what you've heard here from Council members for				false

		1151						LN		45		3		false		           3      Horse Heaven?				false

		1152						LN		45		4		false		           4          And, again, soon the last call on comments from				false

		1153						LN		45		5		false		           5      the Horse Heaven Council members, in case anyone				false

		1154						LN		45		6		false		           6      changes their mind in the next minute.  Staff first				false

		1155						LN		45		7		false		           7      or Council, any closing comments or questions of				false

		1156						LN		45		8		false		           8      Council's feedback?				false

		1157						LN		45		9		false		           9                        MS. MOON:  I don't have any				false

		1158						LN		45		10		false		          10      questions.  I can summarize, though.  I can provide a				false

		1159						LN		45		11		false		          11      summary of what I heard Council...				false

		1160						LN		45		12		false		          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I think generally				false

		1161						LN		45		13		false		          13      that's good practice from a procedural standpoint.				false

		1162						LN		45		14		false		          14                        MS. MOON:  Okay.  So based on the				false

		1163						LN		45		15		false		          15      Council discussion -- and I apologize for not seeing				false

		1164						LN		45		16		false		          16      that there were hands raised online -- that staff				false

		1165						LN		45		17		false		          17      will prepare a draft resolution stating that Council				false

		1166						LN		45		18		false		          18      will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for the 39 nests				false

		1167						LN		45		19		false		          19      on which the PTAG reached consensus.  And the Council				false

		1168						LN		45		20		false		          20      will implement the two-mile buffer for the following				false

		1169						LN		45		21		false		          21      nests:  Nests A, B, C -- I mean, I'm sorry.  Not A.				false

		1170						LN		45		22		false		          22      I'm sorry.  A is -- let me retract.				false

		1171						LN		45		23		false		          23          Staff will draft a resolution stating that the				false

		1172						LN		45		24		false		          24      Council will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for				false

		1173						LN		45		25		false		          25      Nest A.  And then the Council will implement a				false

		1174						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1175						LN		46		1		false		           1      two-mile buffer for Nests B, C, D, E, and F.  This				false

		1176						LN		46		2		false		           2      draft resolution will be posted for public comment				false

		1177						LN		46		3		false		           3      ahead of Council action at the next Council meeting.				false

		1178						LN		46		4		false		           4          Sean.				false

		1179						LN		46		5		false		           5                        MR. GREENE:  One point of				false

		1180						LN		46		6		false		           6      clarification.  I believe the Council indicated that				false

		1181						LN		46		7		false		           7      they will not be making a determination on --				false

		1182						LN		46		8		false		           8                        MS. MOON:  A.				false

		1183						LN		46		9		false		           9                        MR. GREENE:  They are not -- they				false

		1184						LN		46		10		false		          10      are following staff's recommendation to not suggest a				false

		1185						LN		46		11		false		          11      determination on Nest A.				false

		1186						LN		46		12		false		          12                        MS. MOON:  Yes.  Correct.				false

		1187						LN		46		13		false		          13                        MR. GREENE:  Is that correct?				false

		1188						LN		46		14		false		          14                        MS. MOON:  Thank you, Sean.				false

		1189						LN		46		15		false		          15                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you.				false

		1190						LN		46		16		false		          16                        MS. MOON:  Thank you for tracking				false

		1191						LN		46		17		false		          17      that.				false

		1192						LN		46		18		false		          18          Anything else?				false

		1193						LN		46		19		false		          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Any further				false

		1194						LN		46		20		false		          20      restatements?  Since, understandably, we've had a				false

		1195						LN		46		21		false		          21      little, you know, churn in the restatements.  Did we				false

		1196						LN		46		22		false		          22      capture it all, Amy, from your standpoint?				false

		1197						LN		46		23		false		          23                        MS. MOON:  I think we captured it				false

		1198						LN		46		24		false		          24      all, and it will be in our draft resolution to --				false

		1199						LN		46		25		false		          25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Yes.				false

		1200						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1201						LN		47		1		false		           1                        MS. MOON:  -- to you.  Yeah.				false

		1202						LN		47		2		false		           2                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So I think that				false

		1203						LN		47		3		false		           3      spells out our next steps, is to draft this.  And we				false

		1204						LN		47		4		false		           4      will, as Ms. Moon stated, provide this to Council and				false

		1205						LN		47		5		false		           5      for public comment ahead of the October meeting.  And				false

		1206						LN		47		6		false		           6      I believe we have additional update about a request				false

		1207						LN		47		7		false		           7      from Scout with relation to the October meeting.				false

		1208						LN		47		8		false		           8                        MS. MOON:  Yeah.  Yeah.  Thank you,				false

		1209						LN		47		9		false		           9      Ami Hafkemeyer.				false

		1210						LN		47		10		false		          10          Yeah, Scout submitted a letter to EFSEC,				false

		1211						LN		47		11		false		          11      requesting a special meeting to make -- to make this				false

		1212						LN		47		12		false		          12      decision as soon as possible.  This decision that				false

		1213						LN		47		13		false		          13      we've just been discussing.  But staff will need some				false

		1214						LN		47		14		false		          14      time to prepare that draft resolution and post for				false

		1215						LN		47		15		false		          15      comment.				false

		1216						LN		47		16		false		          16          So in looking at the Council's availability ahead				false

		1217						LN		47		17		false		          17      of the regularly scheduled October 15th meeting, it				false

		1218						LN		47		18		false		          18      may be difficult to gather a quorum of Council				false

		1219						LN		47		19		false		          19      members to vote.  So if the Council would like to and				false

		1220						LN		47		20		false		          20      are able to move existing commitments around, staff				false

		1221						LN		47		21		false		          21      can work to schedule something at the end of the week				false

		1222						LN		47		22		false		          22      prior to the regularly scheduled October Council				false

		1223						LN		47		23		false		          23      meeting.  So that would be, like, potentially a				false

		1224						LN		47		24		false		          24      meeting on October 9th or 10th, if the Council wants				false

		1225						LN		47		25		false		          25      to support that or wants to meet.				false

		1226						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1227						LN		48		1		false		           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Well,				false

		1228						LN		48		2		false		           2      Council, any initial feedback?  I realize you may				false

		1229						LN		48		3		false		           3      need to look at calendars or reflect on that rather				false

		1230						LN		48		4		false		           4      than here in the public session.				false

		1231						LN		48		5		false		           5          I would note that, either way, how that relates				false

		1232						LN		48		6		false		           6      to public comment period should not be taken lightly,				false

		1233						LN		48		7		false		           7      obviously.  So I would just observe procedurally,				false

		1234						LN		48		8		false		           8      knowing what that comment plan would look like for an				false

		1235						LN		48		9		false		           9      earlier date versus October 15th would be important				false

		1236						LN		48		10		false		          10      to do very quickly if not here today.				false

		1237						LN		48		11		false		          11          But more importantly, Council for the Horse				false

		1238						LN		48		12		false		          12      Heaven project, any further feedback to Amy Moon or				false

		1239						LN		48		13		false		          13      Ami Hafkemeyer's comments and questions?				false

		1240						LN		48		14		false		          14          Council Brewster.				false

		1241						LN		48		15		false		          15                        MS. BREWSTER:  I would say, if we				false

		1242						LN		48		16		false		          16      need the meeting prior to the October regularly				false

		1243						LN		48		17		false		          17      scheduled meeting, I would be able to make myself				false

		1244						LN		48		18		false		          18      available if needed.				false

		1245						LN		48		19		false		          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Pamplin.				false

		1246						LN		48		20		false		          20                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks.  Thanks,				false

		1247						LN		48		21		false		          21      Mr. Chair.				false

		1248						LN		48		22		false		          22          Yeah, I'm just -- completely understand the				false

		1249						LN		48		23		false		          23      project proponent's request for a special meeting.				false

		1250						LN		48		24		false		          24      You know, October 10th versus October 15th I just				false

		1251						LN		48		25		false		          25      don't think is, you know, in the scheme of timelines				false

		1252						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1253						LN		49		1		false		           1      here, the five days is necessary to schedule a				false

		1254						LN		49		2		false		           2      special meeting.  I know my calendar is completely				false

		1255						LN		49		3		false		           3      slammed.  And so I'd be asking, if we do something,				false
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           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,



           2      September 17, 2025, at 621 Woodland Square Loop



           3      Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:32 p.m., the



           4      following monthly meeting of the Washington State



           5      Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to



           6      wit:



           7



           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>



           9



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Good afternoon.  If



          11      I could have everyone's attention, please.



          12          This is Kurt Beckett calling the September 17th



          13      meeting of the Energy Facility Siting Council to



          14      order.  It's 1:32 p.m.



          15          And, Ms. Barker, if you could call the roll,



          16      please.



          17                        MS. BARKER:  Certainly.



          18          Department of Commerce.



          19                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,



          20      present.



          21                        MS. BARKER:  Department of Ecology.



          22                        MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, present.



          23                        MS. BARKER:  Department of Fish and



          24      Wildlife.



          25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin,
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           1      present.



           2                        MS. BARKER:  Department of Natural



           3      Resources.



           4          Utilities and Transportation Commission.



           5                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster,



           6      present.



           7                        MS. BARKER:  Local government and



           8      optional State agencies.



           9          For the Hop Hill project, Paul Krupin.



          10          For the Carriger Solar project, Matt Chiles.



          11                        MR. CHILES:  Matt Chiles, present.



          12                        MS. BARKER:  The Wallula Gap



          13      project, Adam Fyall.



          14          For the Goldeneye BESS project, Robby Eckroth.



          15          Assistant attorney generals.  Jon Thompson.



          16                        MR. THOMPSON:  Present.



          17                        MS. BARKER:  Zack Packer.



          18                        MR. PACKER:  Present.



          19                        MS. BARKER:  Talia Thuet.



          20                        MS. THUET:  Present.



          21                        MS. BARKER:  For EFSEC staff, I



          22      will call those anticipated to speak today.



          23          Ami Hafkemeyer.



          24                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.



          25                        MS. BARKER:  Amy Moon.
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           1                        MS. MOON:  Present.



           2                        MS. BARKER:  Sara Randolph.



           3                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Present.



           4                        MS. BARKER:  Sean Greene.



           5                        MR. GREENE:  Present.



           6                        MS. BARKER:  John Barnes.



           7                        MR. BARNES:  Present.



           8                        MS. BARKER:  Joanne Snarski.



           9                        MS. SNARSKI:  Here.



          10                        MS. BARKER:  For optional --



          11      operational updates.



          12          Kittitas Valley wind project.



          13          Wild Horse Wind Power Project.



          14                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith,



          15      present.



          16                        MS. BARKER:  Grays Harbor Energy



          17      Center.



          18                        MR. PACE:  Pace, present.



          19                        MS. BARKER:  Chehalis Generation



          20      Facility.



          21          Columbia Generating Station.



          22                        MR. LaPORTE:  Josh LaPorte,



          23      present.



          24                        MS. BARKER:  Columbia Solar.



          25                        MS. DRACHENBERG:  Elizabeth
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           1      Drachenberg, present.



           2                        MS. BARKER:  Goose Prairie Solar.



           3                        MR. JIA:  Nelson Jia, present.



           4                        MS. BARKER:  Ostrea Solar.



           5                        MR. VOLTZ:  Jon Voltz, present.



           6                        MS. BARKER:  Is there anyone online



           7      for the counsel of the environment?



           8                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld is



           9      present.



          10                        MS. BARKER:  Chair, there is a



          11      quorum for all councils.



          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very



          13      much.



          14          Council members, we have a posted agenda before



          15      us.



          16          Is there a motion to adopt the agenda?



          17                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Mr. Chair, this is



          18      Nate Pamplin.  I move that we approve the agenda.



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.



          20          Is there a second?



          21                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.



          22      Second.



          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.



          24          The agenda has been moved and seconded, is on the



          25      table.  Are there any comments or changes to the
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           1      agenda from the Council?



           2          Hearing none.  All those in favor of approving



           3      the agenda, say "aye."



           4                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



           5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?



           6          Agenda is approved.



           7          Moving on to approval of minutes.  Council, we



           8      have the minutes before us.  Is there a motion to



           9      approve the minutes?



          10                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.



          11      So moved.



          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.



          13          Second?



          14                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Second.



          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council



          16      Pamplin.



          17          The minutes are on the table.  Are there any



          18      changes or amendments to the minutes from Council?



          19                        MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey



          20      Brewster.  I have one change.



          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Please.



          22                        MS. BREWSTER:  On Page 27, Line 24,



          23      the word is "needs."  Should be changed to "meets,"



          24      m-e-e-t-s.



          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council





                                                                      11

�







           1      Brewster.



           2          Are there other -- I'm sure that will be taken as



           3      a friendly amendment.



           4          Are there any other comments or changes?



           5          Okay.  Then hearing none, we will treat that



           6      suggestion as a friendly amendment.



           7          And all in favor of approving the minutes as



           8      amended, please say "aye."



           9                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed, say "nay."



          11          Minutes are approved.  Thank you.



          12          Moving on to our project updates.



          13          Kittitas Valley wind project.  Mr. Caseday.



          14                        MR. CASEDAY:  Yes.  Good afternoon,



          15      Chair Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  I'm sorry



          16      that I did not call roll call, but this is Jarred



          17      Caseday with EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley



          18      wind power project.



          19          And we had nothing nonroutine to report for the



          20      period.



          21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          22          Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.



          23      Ms. Galbraith.



          24                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Yes.



          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Galbraith.
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           1                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Thank you, Chair



           2      Beckett, Council members, and EFSEC staff.  This is



           3      Jennifer Galbraith from Puget Sound Energy



           4      representing the Wild Horse wind facility.



           5          I have a few updates for this reporting period.



           6      First, the Wild Horse Technical Advisory Committee



           7      met on August 21st for the annual meeting.  The



           8      meeting was held jointly with the Wild Horse



           9      coordinated resource management group to review



          10      history, agreements, processes, and results,



          11      upgrades, and management since inception of the Wild



          12      Horse CRM in 2006.



          13          This was an informational meeting.  There were no



          14      items that required formal actions or recommendations



          15      from the TAC for the Council's consideration.



          16          For the second update, as requested in a letter



          17      received from Ami Hafkemeyer, EFSEC director of



          18      siting and compliance, PSE provided a status update



          19      on our plans to install FAA-approved light-mitigating



          20      technology at Wild Horse in accordance with new



          21      legislative requirements to reduce light pollution at



          22      wind energy facilities in Washington State.



          23          As required by the RCW, PSE will apply to the FAA



          24      prior to January 1st, 2028, and will install a new



          25      light-mitigating system within 24 months of receiving
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           1      FAA approval.



           2          And for the final update, as of today, there has



           3      been no change to the damaged wind turbine tower



           4      initially reported to the Council on July 14th.  We



           5      continue to monitor the turbine 24/7 and are



           6      developing plans to safely decommission the tower



           7      following the wildfire season.  Emergency responders



           8      remain on standby in the event of tower failure, and



           9      the site will remain closed to the publ- -- pubic



          10      access for the remainder of 2025.



          11          Thank you very much.



          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much



          13      for the update.



          14          Any questions or comments from Council?



          15          Okay.  Hearing none.



          16          Moving on to Chehalis Generation Facility.



          17      Mr. Smith and Randolph, Sara Randolph.



          18                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Chair



          19      Beckett, Council members, and staff.  For the record,



          20      this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Chehalis.



          21          The facility update is provided in your packet.



          22      Last month, it was discussed that the flow level of



          23      the Chehalis River, the facility's water source, had



          24      dropped below 165 cubic feet per second.  With enough



          25      rainfall, the facility was able to resume withdrawal
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           1      of water, that they did not need to purchase water to



           2      maintain operations.  As a result, a special Council



           3      meeting to take up action to approve purchase of



           4      water from the City was not needed.



           5          Staff met with Chehalis facility to develop a



           6      plan for anticipating Council action during periods



           7      of low river flow.  The facility will notify EFSEC as



           8      soon as they begin using their reserves, giving us



           9      earlier notice than in the past.  Staff will also



          10      communicate with the facility periodically, while



          11      reserves are being used, to track the potential need



          12      for Council action.



          13          This approach will be used for the next two to



          14      three years.  However, if the plan proves



          15      insufficient, staff will reopen discussions with the



          16      facility and may propose addressing the issue through



          17      an amendment to the site certification agreement, or



          18      the SCA.  Thank you.



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very



          20      much.



          21          And I don't believe we had Jeremy Smith with us



          22      today.  I just wanted to confirm.



          23                        MS. RANDOLPH:  I didn't hear him on



          24      the line.



          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.  Okay.  Thank
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           1      you.  And thank you, again, for the update.



           2          Moving on to Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Eric --



           3      Mr. Pace, if you're on, as well as then followed by



           4      Sara Randolph again.



           5                        MR. PACE:  Good afternoon, Chair



           6      Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  Eric Pace



           7      reporting for Grays Harbor.



           8          Grays Harbor Energy does not have anything



           9      nonroutine to report for the period.



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,



          11      Mr. Pace.



          12          Ms. Randolph?



          13                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  Chair Beckett,



          14      Council members, and staff, for the record again,



          15      this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for Grays



          16      Harbor.



          17          The facility update is provided in your packet.



          18      There are two items that will be discussed for the



          19      Council.  First is the National Pollutant Discharge



          20      Elimination System, or NPDES, permit renewal.  And



          21      second is the air operating permit, or the AOP,



          22      renewal.



          23          EFSEC received NPDES permit renewal application



          24      from the facility on December 17th, 2023, and permit



          25      ending June 30th, 2024, and has continued to operate
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           1      under an administrative extension which was approved



           2      by EFSEC for the previous NPDES permit in accordance



           3      with Washington Administrative Code, or WAC,



           4      173.220.180.



           5          Grays Harbor submitted an engineering report



           6      which was followed by several rounds of a review and



           7      coordination between the EFSEC staff and the



           8      facility.  EFSEC approved the engineering report on



           9      April 2nd and has been working with our contractor at



          10      Ecology to develop the NPDES renewal permit.



          11          Staff have made a tentative determination to



          12      issue the following public comment.  Will bring the



          13      comments and documents to Council for vote on final



          14      issuance after the comment period.  Staff recommend



          15      that the comment period begins on September 29th and



          16      continue for 30 days, ending at close of business on



          17      October 28th.



          18          A public meeting is not planned for this comment



          19      period.  Historically, public meetings for the



          20      facility's permits have not been attended by the



          21      public, and a meeting is not required.  However, we



          22      will have one if requested.



          23          If there are any questions on any technical



          24      aspects of the permit, our contractors with Ecology



          25      are here and able to address any concerns.
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           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any



           2      question or comment?  I'll check on my screen here



           3      again since we have some of our members online.



           4          Okay.  I don't think so.  So moving --



           5                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Okay.



           6                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- on.  Thank you,



           7      Ms. Randolph.



           8                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Yes.  I'll continue



           9      on for the air operating permit, or AOP.



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          11                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Sorry.



          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  No.  All good.



          13                        MS. RANDOLPH:  The AOP first



          14      notification was issued by EFSEC July 17th, 2024.



          15      The AOP renewal application was submitted on December



          16      11th, 2024, adding in the acid rain permit in with a



          17      Title V AOP permit, ending June 17, 2025, and



          18      continue to operate under administrative extension.



          19          The acid rain permit contains the statement of



          20      basis; SO2 allowances under -- allocated under this



          21      permit; and NOx requirements for each affected unit;



          22      comments, notes, and justifications regarding permit



          23      decisions and changes made to the permit application;



          24      and any additional requirements or conditions as per



          25      WAC 173-406-501, acid rain permit contents, as
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           1      adopted by WAC 463-78.



           2          The permit application submitted for this source



           3      per WAC 173-406-106, standard requirements as adopted



           4      by WAC 463-78, the owners and operators of the source



           5      must comply with the standard requirements and



           6      special provisions set forth in the application.  In



           7      accordance with WAC 463-78, general and operating



           8      permit regulations for air pollution sources, which



           9      adopts WAC 173-406, acid rain regulation, and



          10      WAC 173-401, operating permit regulation, is based on



          11      the provisions of Title 40, Code of Federal



          12      Regulations, or CFR, Parts 72 through 76, which is



          13      part of the Title IV of the Clean Air Act.



          14          In accordance with WAC 173-406-103, Combustion



          15      Turbine Generator No. 1, or CTG 1, and CTG 2 are



          16      utility units because they serve generators greater



          17      than 25 megawatts and do not qualify for any of the



          18      exemptions provided under the WAC 173-406-103.  As



          19      such, they are subject to the acid rain requirements



          20      under WAC 173-406.



          21          In coordination with Olympic Region Clean Air



          22      Agency, or ORCAA, staff have reviewed the application



          23      materials.  Staff are finalizing documents to put out



          24      for public comment and anticipate it to go out for



          25      public comment on October 6.
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           1          Following public comment period, staff will bring



           2      the comments and documents to Council.  If no



           3      substantive comments, then it will go to the



           4      Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, for EPA to



           5      review for 45 days.  Once the EPA has concluded their



           6      review, staff will bring the permit back to the



           7      Council to vote for issuance.



           8          If there are any questions on any technical



           9      aspects of the permit, our contractors from ORCAA are



          10      here and able to address any concerns.



          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,



          12      Ms. Randolph.



          13                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you.  Thank



          14      you.



          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any



          16      questions or further feedback for the staff?



          17      Appreciate the thorough update.



          18          Okay.  Hearing and seeing none.  We will move on



          19      to Columbia Solar.  Ms. Drachenberg.



          20                        MS. DRACHENBERG:  Good afternoon,



          21      Chair, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Elizabeth



          22      Drachenberg, Columbia Solar.



          23          There are no nonroutine updates to report for



          24      this period.



          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.
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           1          Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and



           2      WNP 1 and 4.  And my understanding is Josh LaPorte is



           3      with us to give the update today.



           4                        MR. LaPORTE:  That's correct, Chair



           5      Beckett.  Thank you.



           6          Good afternoon, EFSEC Council and staff.  This is



           7      Josh LaPorte for the Columbia Generating Station and



           8      Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.



           9          The facilities update is included in your packet



          10      for both sites, and there are no additional



          11      nonroutine updates to report for the month of August



          12      for either site.



          13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  And I just



          14      want to acknowledge the staff's update as well on



          15      some of the previous environmental issues of the last



          16      meeting.  I assume we have nothing further on that,



          17      but let me just double-check with Ms. Hafkemeyer.



          18                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  That's correct.



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  That



          20      concludes the update, then.  Unless there were



          21      questions from Council.  Seeing none.



          22          Moving on, then, to Goose Prairie.  Mr. Jia.



          23                        MR. JIA:  Good afternoon, everyone.



          24      This is Nelson providing an update for the month of



          25      August.
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           1          Total generation, approximately 21,667 megawatt



           2      hours.  And on some positive news, all of our



           3      inverters on-site were fully available for the month



           4      of August.  So we were able to fix our A/C breaker



           5      issue, which is nice.



           6          Otherwise, no other updates from an environmental



           7      safety compliance perspective.  Thank you.



           8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.



           9          Comments?  Hearing none.



          10          We will move on to Ostrea Solar.  Mr. Voltz.



          11                        MR. VOLTZ:  Thank you, Chair



          12      Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is Jon



          13      Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing



          14      Ostrea Solar project.



          15          In the month of August, construction progressed



          16      in full.  All scopes are underway.  We received the



          17      last of the solar modules.  Those have all been



          18      delivered out.  The main power transformer is



          19      on-site, set on the pad, preparing for the dress and



          20      testing there.  We also received all of the



          21      inverters.  All 22 have arrived and been set on the



          22      pad.  So we are continuing with install and



          23      proceeding toward mechanical completion.



          24          Other than that, nothing nonroutine to report for



          25      the period.
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           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,



           2      Mr. Voltz.



           3          I would call out one item that was in the monthly



           4      update that I thought was bearing calling out, which



           5      was just in terms of local outreaches and I would



           6      call it a newer neighbor into Yakima County.  The



           7      project had found time amidst its construction



           8      schedule to participate in the back-to-school drive



           9      for Yakima County Schools.  And just thought that was



          10      worth noting here in the public session.  So



          11      appreciate Cypress Creek's effort in that regard.



          12          Unless there's other comments, questions, we will



          13      move on to Carriger Solar.  And Ms. Snarski is here



          14      to provide an update on that project, including -- I



          15      will note for the public that our intent is to signal



          16      the process in other upcoming public comment periods.



          17      Some of that is a little bit in flux still, I



          18      believe, but we'll hear from Ms. Snarski, and she'll



          19      fill in the details, so...



          20                        MS. SNARSKI:  I'll do my best.



          21          Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council



          22      members.  For the record, this is Joanne Snarski, the



          23      siting specialist for the proposed Carriger Solar



          24      facility in Klickitat County.



          25          On June 25th, 2025, the Council voted to send a
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           1      recommendation to approve the Carriger Solar facility



           2      site certification agreement and was subsequently



           3      sent to the governor for review.  On August 22nd,



           4      2025, Governor Ferguson provided a letter to Chair



           5      Beckett, directing the Council to reconsider certain



           6      aspects of the draft site certification agreement.



           7      The governor outlined the following actions for EFSEC



           8      to take.



           9          First, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an



          10      opportunity to review and provide input on the June



          11      19, 2025, memorandum from the EFSEC chair to the



          12      EFSEC Council members, describing the chair and the



          13      staff's June 4th, 2025, meeting with the tribe.



          14          Second, EFSEC should give the Yakama Nation an



          15      opportunity to provide further input on the following



          16      five mitigation measures.



          17          On the increased setbacks of fencing and solar



          18      panels from SR 142 and Knight Road; the increased



          19      setbacks on fencing and solar panels on both north



          20      and south side of the Department of Natural Resources



          21      managed parcel, the installation of further screening



          22      tools, such as earthen berms, rock piles, or native



          23      vegetation, to further mitigate visual impacts to the



          24      users of the north side of the adjacent State-owned



          25      parcel, the DNR parcel; the traffic control plan as
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           1      required in the SCA, the site certification



           2      agreement, to ensure the tribal -- the tribe has



           3      access to its TCPs and that they are maintained



           4      throughout construction.



           5          Finally, the fifth mitigation is that EFSEC will



           6      include Yakama Nation in the review of the initial



           7      site restoration and the detailed site restoration



           8      plans as required in the SCA.



           9          In response to the request, the governor's



          10      request, on August 26, 2025, Chair Beckett sent a



          11      letter to Chairman Gerald Lewis of the Yakama Nation



          12      Tribal Council.  Chair Beckett requested the tribe



          13      review all of the actions I just described and sent



          14      along all of the supporting documentation for that



          15      review.



          16          In that letter, we requested that the Yakama



          17      Nation respond to these requests by September 26th in



          18      order to meet a 60-day timeline that was identified



          19      by the governor.  Following receipt of additional



          20      comments from the Yakama Nation, staff will review



          21      and develop response documents or revisions to the



          22      draft site certification agreement as appropriate.



          23          We expect these decisional documents to be posted



          24      for public comment in early October and are currently



          25      targeting a comment period from August -- or excuse





                                                                      25

�







           1      me -- October 6th through October 19th.  Staff are



           2      proposing a special Council meeting on October 21st



           3      for the -- for the purposes of Council action.  And



           4      we will provide required public notice for this



           5      meeting once these details unfold and are available.



           6          That's all I have for now.



           7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           8          So just for clarity of not only the record but



           9      for those who may be watching, the public, the



          10      intended comment period is October 6 through the



          11      19th.  That will be published officially, so what I



          12      just stated is not yet in the record officially, but



          13      that's --



          14                        MS. SNARSKI:  Correct.



          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- our intent, and



          16      so we wanted --



          17                        MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.



          18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- to signal that



          19      as early as we could here in our public meeting



          20      today.



          21          So, Council, were there other questions, comments



          22      you wanted to share as a group and/or back to the



          23      staff?



          24          Council Pamplin.



          25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thank you,
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           1      Mr. Chair.



           2          Ms. Snarski, is the Council's decision in June to



           3      recommend approval of this project to the governor,



           4      since the governor wrote a letter -- and hasn't



           5      approved it yet -- and laid out a number of



           6      conditions, is there an action that we need to take



           7      relative to our June decision, or does that decision



           8      essentially kind of die on the vine until we act



           9      again at the October meeting?



          10                        MS. SNARSKI:  I think that's kind



          11      of a legal question.  Maybe Jon would better be



          12      suited to answer.



          13                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, Council Member



          14      Pamplin, I'd be happy to venture an answer, then.



          15          The section of RCW 80.50, the EFSEC-enabling



          16      statutes that talks about the steps that happen with



          17      regard to the Council making a recommendation to the



          18      governor and then the governor's options thereafter,



          19      it basically allows the governor to request that the



          20      Council reconsider certain aspects of the site



          21      certification agreement.



          22          And then thereafter, depending on what decision



          23      the Council makes, to return the site certification



          24      agreement with any revisions that you make.  It



          25      doesn't talk about amending the recommendation or
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           1      anything of that sort.  It's just the only thing that



           2      the statute speaks to is just returning the site



           3      certification agreement that the governor has asked



           4      you to reconsider parts of.



           5          The recommendation, I wouldn't say it died on the



           6      vine.  It's -- you've made your recommendation, and



           7      then this is just a follow-on process to focus in on



           8      certain aspects of it and decide whether you want to



           9      change them at the governor's request and then make



          10      those amendments to the SCA, if you choose to do so.



          11          Does that answer your question?



          12                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah.  Thanks to you



          13      both.  And I wasn't trying to -- please don't infer



          14      into the substance of the question.  It was just a



          15      policy process --



          16                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.  Yeah.



          17                        MR. PAMPLIN:  -- relative to an



          18      action EFSEC took and then do we need to kind of



          19      unring that bell or just -- or essentially ring it



          20      again after we see the -- we have the meeting on



          21      October 21st.  Thank you.



          22                        MR. THOMPSON:  Well, yeah, if I --



          23      actually, if I can follow up, Council Member Pamplin.



          24          Yeah, it's -- I think it's a good practice and



          25      advisable for you to -- to explain what -- what
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           1      you've done in response to the governor's direction.



           2      And the form that would generally take is a Council



           3      resolution, so -- that would -- that would explain,



           4      yeah, just explain what you've -- what you've -- what



           5      you've done, what you've chosen to do or not do with



           6      respect to the terms of the SCA.  I think that would



           7      be the --



           8                        MR. PAMPLIN:  So it'd be a revised



           9      SCA or an amended SCA at that time.



          10                        MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.



          11                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks.



          12                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  If I could add,



          13      staff are anticipating developing a resolution to



          14      capture the process we're engaging in right now and



          15      proposing that that would go for public comment and



          16      Council review along with, should there be any



          17      appropriate revisions to the SCA, both of those would



          18      be provided together, depending on what ultimately



          19      comes back -- comes back as comments from Yakama



          20      Nation, which remains to be seen.



          21          And so the resolution is our plan to sort of



          22      capture this process, and then any -- any changes or



          23      additions to an SCA would also be put out for public



          24      comment as well.



          25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you.
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           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And I would just



           2      add that was Ami Hafkemeyer from the EFSEC staff,



           3      just for benefit of our minutes.  So thank you for



           4      the added context, Ami.



           5          Other questions or comments from the Carriger



           6      Council?



           7          Okay.  Hearing none.  Let me double-check with



           8      Adrienne that we don't have online hands I don't see.



           9          Okay.  All right.  Then we will move on to the



          10      Hop Hill solar project, Mr. Barnes.



          11                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair



          12      Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,



          13      EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.



          14          EFSEC staff are awaiting from the applicant's



          15      supplemental materials concerning project



          16      enlargement.  These materials are needed for a SEPA



          17      review and determination of this project.



          18          Once supplemental materials are received, we will



          19      continue to coordinate and review the application



          20      with our contractor, contracted agencies, and tribal



          21      governments.



          22          Are there any questions?



          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, questions



          24      on Hop Hill?  That was kind of an interim update,



          25      obviously, so...
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           1          Seeing none.  We will move on to Wallula Gap.



           2      Also Mr. Barnes.



           3                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair



           4      Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,



           5      EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.



           6          Staff are working with the applicant to complete



           7      supplemental wetland report materials.  Staff are



           8      also working with the applicant to identify



           9      additional analysis and mitigation following receipt



          10      of the TCP study from the Yakama Nation cultural



          11      resource program staff.



          12          Are there any questions?



          13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Comments?



          14          Hearing none.  We will move on to Goldeneye



          15      battery storage project.  Ms. Snarski.



          16                        MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you.  Again,



          17      this is Joanne Snarski, the siting specialist for the



          18      proposed Goldeneye battery energy storage facility in



          19      Skagit County.



          20          Most notably, Chair Beckett and project staff



          21      members will be traveling to meet with the Upper



          22      Skagit Indian Tribe for government-to-government



          23      consultation.  The meeting is a special meeting for



          24      the tribal council specifically to consult with EFSEC



          25      on Goldeneye energy storage project.
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           1          It is worth noting, during the scheduling of this



           2      consultation, EFSEC made sure the Upper Skagit Tribe



           3      was aware that Chair Beckett has recused himself from



           4      deliberations and voting on the Council's



           5      recommendation to the governor on the Goldeneye BESS



           6      project -- or excuse me -- energy storage project.



           7          The tribe confirmed that they did not object to



           8      Chair Beckett representing EFSEC Council for this



           9      consultation.  Acting Chair Brewster will be in



          10      attendance, and staff will work with her to develop



          11      communications to the Council following the Monday



          12      meeting.  I don't think I mentioned the date, but the



          13      date is next Monday, the 22nd, September 22nd.



          14          Finally, staff are continuing to work with our



          15      partnering agencies to review and seek information on



          16      the application for site certification.



          17          I have no further updates.



          18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



          19      updates.



          20          I would just add, as the chair who's recused



          21      myself on this project in this instance, that Acting



          22      Chair Brewster -- the two of us attending that



          23      meeting, in this instance Acting Chair Brewster will



          24      be the chair by which that input and consultation



          25      back to the Council for Goldeneye BESS will be
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           1      provided by Acting Chair Brewster.  So just wanted to



           2      add that for clarity for the record.



           3          Are there other questions or comments on the



           4      Goldeneye battery storage project?



           5          Any from our local representative?  I don't see



           6      any hands.



           7          Okay.  Then we will move on to our transmission



           8      programatic environmental impact statement.  And



           9      Mr. Greene will provide us the update.



          10                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you.



          11          Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council



          12      members.  This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for



          13      EFSEC.



          14          EFSEC staff and our consultant, WSP, are busy at



          15      work putting together the final revisions to the



          16      transmission programatic EIS with an anticipated



          17      publication date for the final programmatic EIS in



          18      early October of this year.



          19          Are there any questions?



          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, any



          21      further questions?



          22          I know there is a general intent to continue to



          23      do some further outreach.  And I'm sorry if I missed



          24      a piece in my ear from your update just now, but --



          25      but there is an intent to do some integrated





                                                                      33

�







           1      outreach, including with the Department of Ecology,



           2      knowing they have their three programmatic



           3      environmental impact statements out as well.



           4          And so I just want to thank the staff of both



           5      agencies for at times what is an added bit of work to



           6      try and have that -- that integrated engagement and



           7      look forward to just seeing how that --- that



           8      ultimately plays out, including, you know, what I



           9      would call who are potential first movers that would



          10      help us understand how did we do on the effectiveness



          11      of the programmatics, which are a lot of work just to



          12      bring forward.  So I want to thank everybody for that



          13      as well, so...



          14                        MR. GREENE:  Yes.  Thank you.



          15          We -- we do anticipate doing further outreach in



          16      concert with the Department of Ecology once the final



          17      programatic EIS is published, and we anticipate



          18      continuing our engagement efforts with tribal



          19      representatives as projects begin to use the



          20      programatic EIS to make sure that it is being used in



          21      a manner that is as designed.



          22                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.



          23      And would encourage that for sure.



          24          Okay.  Then we will move on to our Horse Heaven



          25      Wind Farm project, which will have an update, but
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           1      first and soon we will be recessing to executive



           2      session, which I'll speak to in more detail in a



           3      moment.



           4          But, Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Moon, are there any



           5      opening comments you wanted to make before we recess



           6      into executive session?



           7                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Not at this time,



           8      no.  Thank you.



           9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.



          10                        MS. MOON:  I don't have any.  Thank



          11      you.



          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  So just for



          13      clarity of the public, there will be a further



          14      project update upon our return to our public forum



          15      here.  And for the record, at this time, the Council



          16      will be recessing to executive session for 30



          17      minutes -- it's now 2:05 -- as allowed in the Open



          18      Public Meeting Act's provision on executive session



          19      to discuss litigation to which the party -- agency is



          20      a party with EFSEC's legal counsel.  This is



          21      necessary to avoid disclosing attorney-client advice



          22      and attorney work product pertaining to the decisions



          23      before the Council that are subject to litigation.



          24          The first part of this discussion will be about



          25      the Horse Heaven project litigation, and the second
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           1      part pertains to recently filed petitions for



           2      judicial review of the Council's amendment to its



           3      delegation of authority policy for plans submitted



           4      under site certification agreements.



           5          Due to my original recusal from this project,



           6      Horse Heaven, and the partial connection of the



           7      delegation policy to Horse Heaven for which I've also



           8      recused myself out of an abundance of caution, I will



           9      not participate in the executive session discussion



          10      except as an observer.  Any decisions of these issues



          11      in general will be made in the Council's open public



          12      meeting per statute.  There are no intended decisions



          13      on any of these issues for today, just for



          14      clarification as well.



          15          So with that, we will recess into executive



          16      session and will return at 2:40.  So the next public



          17      meeting will not begin until at least 2:40.  So thank



          18      you.



          19                               (Pause in meeting



          20                                proceedings from 2:07 p.m.



          21                                to 2:41 p.m. for purposes



          22                                of executive session.)



          23



          24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Good afternoon.



          25      This is EFSEC Council Chair Beckett just noting we
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           1      are gathering back in here.  And I will note at 2:41,



           2      we have gavelled back into our regular public



           3      session.  I'll get my computer back open here as



           4      well.



           5          Do we have everyone online that we started with,



           6      Ms. Barker?



           7                        MS. BARKER:  Yes.



           8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  So with



           9      that, let me return us to our Horse Heaven project



          10      briefing.  And I believe Ms. Moon will kick us off in



          11      the project update, and Ms. Hafkemeyer may well soon



          12      join in along the way.  So I'll turn this over to



          13      both of you.



          14                        MS. MOON:  Thank you.



          15          Good afternoon, Council Chair Beckett and EFSEC



          16      Council members.  I, Amy Moon, am reporting on the



          17      Horse Heaven wind project in Benton County.



          18          At the August 20th Council meeting, Sean Greene,



          19      the State Environmental Policy Act specialist,



          20      provided a presentation and information on the



          21      Pre-operational Technical Advisory Group, otherwise



          22      known as the PTAG, P-T-A-G.  He advised -- he



          23      provided information on the Species-5 recommendation.



          24          As presented by Mr. Greene, Species-5 has



          25      prescriptive mitigation requirements that do not
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           1      allow the siting of primary project components within



           2      0.6 miles of a documented ferruginous hawk nest and



           3      within two miles of a documented ferruginous hawk



           4      nest unless the nesting site is no longer available



           5      or the foraging habitat within two miles of the nest



           6      is no longer viable, with the exception of the east



           7      battery energy storage system, or BESS, B-E-S-S, that



           8      is specifically exempted.



           9          At the August Council meeting, Mr. Greene



          10      presented the certificate holder's recommendation,



          11      which included recommendations associated with six



          12      nests of which the recommendations were not supported



          13      unanimously by the PTAG.



          14          The August 20th Council meeting closed with open



          15      mitigation questions for the Council.  We are here



          16      today to offer EFSEC staff recommendations regarding



          17      Species-5 mitigation and to request the Council make



          18      a determination on the Species-5 mitigation criteria



          19      for the nest areas, including the group of 39 where



          20      the PTAG reached consensus, and those where consensus



          21      was not reached, which are represented by the letters



          22      A, B, C, D, E, and F on the confidential figures that



          23      you-all, Council, have.



          24          So please refer to the confidential figures



          25      provided in the Council SharePoint that's at your
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           1      disposal, and use these letters in your discussions.



           2      Staff also provided a summary document to the Council



           3      that may be useful for reference.



           4          Are there any questions on those provided



           5      documents?  Thank you.



           6          EFSEC staff recommend applying the buffer



           7      unanimously recommended by the PTAG for the 39 nests



           8      that are identified in the facilitator report and



           9      recommendation from the certificate holder.



          10          Is there any discussion on that, or questions?



          11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  None at this time,



          12      it appears.



          13                        MS. MOON:  All right.  Thank you.



          14          As the certificate holder is not proposing



          15      primary infrastructure within the 0.6-, or one



          16      kilometer, to two-mile buffer of Nest A, the Council



          17      does not need to make a determination on this nest at



          18      this time.



          19          However, if the Council would like to make a



          20      determination on this nest, staff recommend that



          21      primary infrastructure be allowed within the 0.6- to



          22      two-mile buffer.



          23          Are there any discussion or questions on that?



          24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Brewster.



          25                        MS. BREWSTER:  This is Stacey
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           1      Brewster.



           2          Is there a benefit to making a decision on that



           3      at this point?  If no determination is needed,



           4      perhaps it can be held off.



           5                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Do you want to



           6      answer that?



           7                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.  Council



           8      Member Brewster, I -- yeah, as I see it, there's



           9      no -- because there's no micro-siting corridor for



          10      turbines or any primary infrastructure that's



          11      currently approved in that area, in the radius of



          12      that, the certificate holder would need to come back



          13      and amend the SCA to allow for that.  So it could



          14      be -- this question would only really become relevant



          15      if and when that were to occur.  So if you don't have



          16      to make that decision, I would recommend that you not



          17      make that decision.



          18                        MS. BREWSTER:  Thanks.



          19                        MS. MOON:  Any further questions on



          20      that?  I'll move forward.



          21          So staff recommend applying the two-mile buffer



          22      for nests represented by letters B, C, D, E, and F.



          23      And based on a Council discussion, staff will prepare



          24      a draft resolution.  So once you guys have a



          25      discussion and respond to us on your outcome of that
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           1      discussion, I can prepare a draft resolution to the



           2      Council.



           3          And so I want to leave it open right now for you



           4      to discuss the nests at B, C, D, E, and F and that



           5      recommendation to apply a two-mile buffer.



           6          Do you have any questions on that?



           7                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  And the 39 nests



           8      in Nest A.



           9                        MS. MOON:  Oh.  Yes.  And the 39



          10      nests in Nest A -- or, I mean --



          11                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah.



          12                        MS. MOON:  -- Circle A.  Yeah.



          13                        MR. GREENE:  We would request that



          14      the Council make a determination on the application



          15      of Species-5 for all 45 nests that are -- or sorry --



          16      for 44 of the 45 nests that are subject to Species-5.



          17                        MR. THOMPSON:  If I -- if I may



          18      add, just to -- I don't think -- we're certainly not



          19      looking for a final decision today.  We're -- I think



          20      what staff's looking for is just, you know, if the



          21      Council is comfortable with discussing initial



          22      thoughts on this, just to get a sense of where the



          23      opinion of the Council members are at this point,



          24      that would help with drafting a decisional document



          25      for a decision at a subsequent meeting.
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           1                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you.



           2                        MS. MOON:  Yes.  Thanks, Jon, for



           3      putting it so clearly.



           4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Other Council



           5      members?  Comments or feedback for the staff at this



           6      point?



           7          Council Member Pamplin.



           8                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.



           9          At this point, I'm very comfortable with the



          10      resolution bringing forward to the Council as you've



          11      described, Ms. Moon.  I just want to express my



          12      appreciation to the PTAG members and the staff for --



          13      it's clearly some tough discussions.  And appreciate



          14      that you-all are framing this discussion and these



          15      recommendations to the Council for us to make a



          16      decision here in the next month, I believe.  So thank



          17      you.



          18                        MS. MOON:  Thank you.



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Other comments from



          20      Council members?



          21                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  I



          22      would echo that sentiment from Council Member



          23      Pamplin.  I appreciate all of the work put in by



          24      staff and members of the PTAG in considering all of



          25      the information that need to be processed for that.





                                                                      42

�







           1          I -- the 39 nests is a easy decision.  Consensus



           2      was made.  It sounds like habitat and nest



           3      availability were identified.  I support that



           4      decision.



           5          As for the Nests B through F -- again, having



           6      read through all of the materials and appreciating



           7      the robust discussion and deliberation by the PTAG --



           8      I agree with the recommendation from staff to stick



           9      with the two-mile radius buffers on those nests.



          10                        MS. MOON:  All right.  Thank you,



          11      both, Council Member Pamplin and Council Member



          12      Brewster, and Jon, for supporting this



          13      recommendation.



          14          So based on Council discussion, staff --



          15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I'm sorry,



          16      Ms. Moon.  It looks like --



          17                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  There might be



          18      more Council members.



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- Council Levitt



          20      has his hand raised.  And I believe one other as



          21      well.



          22                        MR. LEVITT:  Yes.  I also want to



          23      echo what the previous two Council members said.  I'm



          24      supportive of the staff recommendation, and I deeply



          25      appreciate all of the technical work that went into
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           1      both the PTAG and EFSEC staff coming to these



           2      conclusions.  So, yeah, just wanted to share my



           3      sentiment.  Thank you.



           4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ms. Barker or



           5      Ms. Brewster, can you tell me whose hand is up.



           6      Because my screen is off.



           7                        MS. BARKER:  Yes.  It's Elizabeth



           8      Osborne.



           9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ah.  Council



          10      Osborne, please.



          11                        MS. OSBORNE:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.



          12          I think everyone will sense a theme here.  I also



          13      am in support of staff developing a resolution as



          14      described, consistent with the staff recommendation,



          15      and also would like to express my appreciation for



          16      the work of staff and the PTAG to provide the Council



          17      with the advice that they have.  I know it was a lot



          18      of work, and I'm very appreciative of that effort.



          19      So thank you.



          20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          21          Any other comments from Council members for the



          22      Horse Heaven project?



          23          Thank you for letting me "I spy" on your...



          24                        MS. BREWSTER:  Yeah, sure.



          25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Are there
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           1      other comments from the staff or Council in response



           2      to what you've heard here from Council members for



           3      Horse Heaven?



           4          And, again, soon the last call on comments from



           5      the Horse Heaven Council members, in case anyone



           6      changes their mind in the next minute.  Staff first



           7      or Council, any closing comments or questions of



           8      Council's feedback?



           9                        MS. MOON:  I don't have any



          10      questions.  I can summarize, though.  I can provide a



          11      summary of what I heard Council...



          12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I think generally



          13      that's good practice from a procedural standpoint.



          14                        MS. MOON:  Okay.  So based on the



          15      Council discussion -- and I apologize for not seeing



          16      that there were hands raised online -- that staff



          17      will prepare a draft resolution stating that Council



          18      will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for the 39 nests



          19      on which the PTAG reached consensus.  And the Council



          20      will implement the two-mile buffer for the following



          21      nests:  Nests A, B, C -- I mean, I'm sorry.  Not A.



          22      I'm sorry.  A is -- let me retract.



          23          Staff will draft a resolution stating that the



          24      Council will implement the 0.6-mile buffer for



          25      Nest A.  And then the Council will implement a
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           1      two-mile buffer for Nests B, C, D, E, and F.  This



           2      draft resolution will be posted for public comment



           3      ahead of Council action at the next Council meeting.



           4          Sean.



           5                        MR. GREENE:  One point of



           6      clarification.  I believe the Council indicated that



           7      they will not be making a determination on --



           8                        MS. MOON:  A.



           9                        MR. GREENE:  They are not -- they



          10      are following staff's recommendation to not suggest a



          11      determination on Nest A.



          12                        MS. MOON:  Yes.  Correct.



          13                        MR. GREENE:  Is that correct?



          14                        MS. MOON:  Thank you, Sean.



          15                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you.



          16                        MS. MOON:  Thank you for tracking



          17      that.



          18          Anything else?



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Any further



          20      restatements?  Since, understandably, we've had a



          21      little, you know, churn in the restatements.  Did we



          22      capture it all, Amy, from your standpoint?



          23                        MS. MOON:  I think we captured it



          24      all, and it will be in our draft resolution to --



          25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Yes.
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           1                        MS. MOON:  -- to you.  Yeah.



           2                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So I think that



           3      spells out our next steps, is to draft this.  And we



           4      will, as Ms. Moon stated, provide this to Council and



           5      for public comment ahead of the October meeting.  And



           6      I believe we have additional update about a request



           7      from Scout with relation to the October meeting.



           8                        MS. MOON:  Yeah.  Yeah.  Thank you,



           9      Ami Hafkemeyer.



          10          Yeah, Scout submitted a letter to EFSEC,



          11      requesting a special meeting to make -- to make this



          12      decision as soon as possible.  This decision that



          13      we've just been discussing.  But staff will need some



          14      time to prepare that draft resolution and post for



          15      comment.



          16          So in looking at the Council's availability ahead



          17      of the regularly scheduled October 15th meeting, it



          18      may be difficult to gather a quorum of Council



          19      members to vote.  So if the Council would like to and



          20      are able to move existing commitments around, staff



          21      can work to schedule something at the end of the week



          22      prior to the regularly scheduled October Council



          23      meeting.  So that would be, like, potentially a



          24      meeting on October 9th or 10th, if the Council wants



          25      to support that or wants to meet.
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           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Well,



           2      Council, any initial feedback?  I realize you may



           3      need to look at calendars or reflect on that rather



           4      than here in the public session.



           5          I would note that, either way, how that relates



           6      to public comment period should not be taken lightly,



           7      obviously.  So I would just observe procedurally,



           8      knowing what that comment plan would look like for an



           9      earlier date versus October 15th would be important



          10      to do very quickly if not here today.



          11          But more importantly, Council for the Horse



          12      Heaven project, any further feedback to Amy Moon or



          13      Ami Hafkemeyer's comments and questions?



          14          Council Brewster.



          15                        MS. BREWSTER:  I would say, if we



          16      need the meeting prior to the October regularly



          17      scheduled meeting, I would be able to make myself



          18      available if needed.



          19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Pamplin.



          20                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks.  Thanks,



          21      Mr. Chair.



          22          Yeah, I'm just -- completely understand the



          23      project proponent's request for a special meeting.



          24      You know, October 10th versus October 15th I just



          25      don't think is, you know, in the scheme of timelines
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           1      here, the five days is necessary to schedule a



           2      special meeting.  I know my calendar is completely



           3      slammed.  And so I'd be asking, if we do something,



           4      it be an after-hours meeting.  And I'm fine with



           5      that.  And I'm sorry if that's an inconvenience for



           6      others.  But 5:00 meetings are great for me.  My



           7      schedule's usually pretty open.



           8          But having said that, this is also an opportunity



           9      for the public comment.  So rather than having an



          10      additional public comment period outside of another



          11      timeline, I just -- I don't know if the juice is



          12      worth the squeeze there.  So unless there's just a



          13      complete traffic jam on your agenda for October at



          14      the regularly scheduled meeting, I suggest we just



          15      have this decision come forward at the regular



          16      October meeting.  Thanks.



          17                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council.



          18          Are there other online Council members who wish



          19      to comment?



          20          Thank you, Council Brewster.  Technical issue



          21      here on my computer, it looks like.



          22          Seeing none.  Okay.



          23          I think that concludes feedback to the staff on



          24      Horse Heaven.



          25          Any other comments or questions of staff to the
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           1      Council for Horse Heaven?



           2                        MS. MOON:  I don't have anything



           3      further.



           4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Then we will



           5      conclude the Horse Heaven project discussion.



           6          And before we adjourn, I had one update from a



           7      Council membership standpoint that I wanted to turn



           8      this to Council Levitt from the Department of Ecology



           9      to share a few updates on his membership of the



          10      Council.  So Council Levitt.



          11                        MR. LEVITT:  Thank you, Chair.



          12          Yeah, this is Eli Levitt, Ecology's current



          13      Council member.  As of October 1st, Ecology has put



          14      forth a recommendation for a new Council member.



          15      That will be Blake Nelson.  He's a section manager in



          16      Ecology's solid waste management program.



          17          I just want to take a moment to say thank you for



          18      the honor and privilege for serving as a Council



          19      member.  I appreciate the work of the Council, Chair



          20      Beckett, Chair Drew in the past, and others who have



          21      helped me through this process of being a Council



          22      member.  You know, I do really think the role that we



          23      serve is an important role, bringing our agency



          24      expertise and knowledge and trying to apply it to all



          25      of these proposals as well as current projects.
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           1          I'm hopeful that the Council will continue with



           2      EFSEC staff to look at the public comment process and



           3      making sure that people feel both heard and seen



           4      through that public comment process, whether it's



           5      meetings in person or written public comment.  So



           6      we've been looking at that lately, and I do think



           7      some of the improvements we're putting on paper



           8      should be quite helpful.



           9          I do also want to briefly advocate that I hope



          10      the Council and EFSEC staff continue to do site



          11      visits and get out regularly to those places where



          12      projects are proposed or even ongoing.  I think it's



          13      an excellent way to make sure we're understanding



          14      everything about our project as well as getting to



          15      know community members and leaders and those who are



          16      interested and/or concerned in projects.



          17          You know, this site visit tradition, it goes back



          18      a long time.  When I first started at Ecology, Hedia



          19      Adelsman, once a Council member for Ecology, mentored



          20      me briefly.  And, you know, I remember her coming



          21      back with just the stories of riding in vans and



          22      minivans, buses, to go to various places in the state



          23      and meet with people one-on-one.  And that's a really



          24      important part of our process, getting to know people



          25      in the communities.
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           1          So, again, thank you for the privilege of serving



           2      on the Council, and I wish -- I wish everyone the



           3      best of luck as we continue this process moving



           4      forward.



           5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Levitt,



           6      thank you very much for your service as well as the



           7      update and update on Blake Nelson beginning to serve



           8      on October 1st on the EFSEC Council as part of -- as



           9      the Department of Ecology's representative.



          10          And I personally want to thank you for your time



          11      and helping me onboard as the new chair as well as



          12      your time and service, especially on things like



          13      Horse Heaven, given the discussion today.  So that



          14      amongst many projects.  So it's been a pleasure, and



          15      we thank you.



          16          If there are other Council comments to add to



          17      mine, I'll certainly open that up for any further



          18      comment.



          19          And I should note, Eli, that we will -- Council



          20      Member Levitt, that we ask that you agree to return



          21      for a proper thank-you at a brief future cameo



          22      appearance at one of our regular meetings.



          23          Sorry, Council Brewster.



          24                        MR. LEVITT:  Sounds good.



          25                        MS. BREWSTER:  This is --
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           1                        MR. LEVITT:  Thank you.



           2                        MS. BREWSTER:  -- Stacey Brewster.



           3      Council Levitt, it has been a pleasure serving with



           4      you.  I've appreciated your time on the Council.  And



           5      I'm sorry to see you go, but I'll look forward to



           6      meeting your replacement.



           7                        MR. LEVITT:  Thank you.



           8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           9          Just looking for other hands.  And I finally see



          10      another screen I should have been looking at earlier.



          11          All right.  Well, with that, again, thank you,



          12      Council Levitt.  And we wish you well in your



          13      continued juggling of many issues, which we know is



          14      certainly part of your consideration here.  So we



          15      will miss you, as was said.



          16          Are there any other closing Council comments



          17      before we adjourn?



          18          All right.  Seeing none.



          19          Ms. Hafkemeyer, any closing comments on behalf of



          20      the staff?  And it's okay if not, but thought I would



          21      ask.



          22                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  I don't have



          23      anything further.  Thank you.



          24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  All right.



          25      Excellent.  Well, then we are adjourned.  Thank you,
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           1      everyone, for your time and participation today.  It



           2      is 3:02 p.m., and we are now officially adjourned.



           3                               (Meeting adjourned at



           4                                3:02 p.m.)



           5



           6



           7



           8



           9



          10



          11



          12



          13



          14



          15



          16



          17



          18



          19



          20



          21



          22



          23



          24



          25





                                                                      54

�







             1      STATE OF WASHINGTON )     I, John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR,
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                         That the foregoing Monthly Meeting of the Washington

             5      State Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was conducted

                    in my presence and adjourned on September 17, 2025, and

             6      thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

                    transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

             7      said meeting, transcribed to the best of my ability;



             8           That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

                    of any party to this matter or relative or employee of any

             9      such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

                    interested in the said matter or the outcome thereof;
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                         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

            11      this 1st day of October, 2025.
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